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WITHOUT DEMAND, 
CAPACITY IS A
LIABILITY...
DEMAND FOR RAIL
IS CHANGING AND 
GREAT SERVICE 
IS THE KEY. 

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

CSX Corporation

500 Water Street, 15th Floor

Jacksonville, FL 32202

(904) 359-3200

www.csx.com

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR 

AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT

Computershare Investor Services LLC

Attn: Shareholder Communications

2 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60602

Most questions regarding your account may be answered by

contacting the automated Computershare Investor Services

Help Line at (800) 521-5571 from your touch-tone phone, 24

hours a day, 7 days a week. Service representatives are 

available on the Help Line from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Central Time,

Monday through Friday. You may also write to Computershare

at the address listed above or on the internet at 

www.computershare.com/contactus.

STOCK LISTING 

CSX’s common stock is listed on the New York, London and

Swiss exchanges and trades with unlisted privileges on the

Midwest, Boston, Cincinnati, Pacific and Philadelphia stock

exchanges. The official trading symbol is “CSX.” 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Ernst & Young LLP

Jacksonville, FL

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

May 5, 2004 at 10 a.m. EST

Times-Union Center for the Performing Arts

300 West Water Street 

Jacksonville, FL 32202

INVESTOR INQUIRIES

To receive copies of reports filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission, recent press releases, quarterly 

and annual report and additional information about CSX

Corporation, visit our website at www.csx.com. Institutional

investors and financial analysts with questions can contact

Investor Relations at (904) 359-4812. Media and public 

relations inquiries should be directed to CSX Corporate

Communications at (904) 366-2949. 

DIRECT STOCK PURCHASE AND DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT

CSX provides dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plans

for shareholders and potential shareholders as a convenient

method of acquiring CSX shares through direct purchase, 

dividend reinvestment and optional cash payments. 

CSXDirectInvestSM permits the purchase and sale of shares

directly though Computershare, our transfer agent. Through

this plan, no service charges or brokerage commissions apply

to share purchases, and sales can be made with minimal

charges and commissions. Initial investment for a non-share-

holder is $500 plus a $10 one-time enrollment fee. You do 

not need to own shares of CSX stock to enroll in this plan.

However, if you are a current shareholder, the initial invest-

ment and enrollment fee are waived. Other benefits of

CSXDirectInvestSM include the ability to: 

- Reinvest dividends automatically in CSX common stock 

without payment of any brokerage commissions or service

charges, or you may receive dividend payments on some 

or all of your shares. 

- Make optional cash investments with as little as $50 per

month, or up to $10,000 per month, without any charges

or commissions. 

- Make gifts of CSX shares to others through the plan.

To obtain a prospectus or other information regarding

CSXDirectInvestSM, please call or write the Computershare

Dividend Reinvestment Department at the phone number or

address below. Or, if you prefer, please visit the web site at

www.computershare.com. 

Computershare Investor Services LLC

CSXDirectInvestSM

2 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60602 

(800) 521-5571

SHAREHOLDER HOUSE PARTIES AT THE GREENBRIER

Throughout the year, The Greenbrier offers Shareholder House

Parties featuring discounted rates and special activities. The

2004 dates are: April 8-11 (Easter), July 2-5 (Independence

Day) and September 3-6 (Labor Day). For information, contact

Maryann Sanford, Reservations Department, The Greenbrier,

300 W. Main Street, White Sulphur Springs, WV 24986, or

phone toll-free (800) 624-6070.

The Greenbrier also offers shareholders a 10 percent discount

on its Modified American Plan rates, applicable to one visit per

year. Reservations are on a space-available basis and do not

apply during CSX House Parties or when a shareholder attends

a conference.
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WE’RE MOVING BEYOND
TRADITIONAL BOUNDARIES.
WHILE COAL IS STILL
IMPORTANT, WE’RE ALSO
PURSUING NEW MARKETS
TO DRIVE GROWTH.  

Intermodal Transportation. 
Add the economic advantages of rail 
to the benefits of exceptional service, 
and you get the value of intermodal. 
With the nation’s most extensive 
intermodal network, CSX Intermodal 
is creating a new generation of 
customers and producing strong 
revenue growth.



WE ARE TRANSFORMING
CSX TO COMPETE IN A
NEW WAY – IN THE NEARLY
$300 BILLION U.S. FREIGHT
SHIPPING INDUSTRY – 
NOT JUST THE $30 BILLION
RAIL INDUSTRY.

Modal Conversion. 
We’re helping new and existing
customers make the most of the
cost and safety advantages of rail
over trucks. With door-to-door 
service focus, industry alliances,
and innovative new service 
products, we offer a competitive
advantage that trucks simply 
cannot match.



Leveraging our collective expertise.
You don’t survive in business for 
more than 175 years without doing
something right, and you can’t thrive
in the future without learning some-
thing new. We’re combining the
expertise of railroad veterans with
fresh insights from outside the rail
industry and becoming North America’s
most progressive railroad.

OUR 36,000 PEOPLE ARE
FOCUSED LIKE NEVER
BEFORE ON A SINGLE GOAL.
CREATING NEW DEMAND 
FOR FLEXIBLE, RELIABLE,
SAFE AND COST-EFFECTIVE
TRANSPORTATION. 



Cost Discipline. We have proven
that through focused efforts, we can
generate significant revenue growth.
Now, we must prove that we can
apply that same focus and intensity
to improving our cost discipline. 
We’ll do that by analyzing our cost
structure, restructuring our organiza-
tion, implementing process changes,
adopting cost-effective technologies
and establishing reasonable but 
firm accountabilities for achieving 
our financial targets.

WE’RE MAKING THE 
TOUGH CHOICES REQUIRED 
TO IMPROVE OUR 
ORGANIZATION’S EFFICIENCY
AND TO FOSTER COST 
DISCIPLINE THROUGHOUT 
OUR ORGANIZATION. 



WE’RE BECOMING AN
ORGANIZATION THAT’S
ENTREPRENEURIAL, EASY
TO DO BUSINESS WITH,
AND BOTH FISCALLY AND
SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE.
WE’RE THE NEW CSX.

CSX is a company that knows where
it’s going and the path to get there.
We’re expanding our markets, improving
our service, reducing our costs and
renewing our commitment to public 
safety and community service. 
We’re showing America that freight
transportation is on a new track.



FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS After two years of hard-won 
financial gains, service - enhancing operating improve-
ments, and a much - improved safety record, CSX
Corporation and its affiliated companies encountered
tough challenges in 2003. But while adversities 
contributed to a difficult year overall, they also served 
a valuable purpose. By challenging our operating 
systems, safety performance and business practices,
the year revealed our strengths and weaknesses – 
and highlighted opportunities for improvement. As the
year progressed, we continued our evolution toward
our primary business – rail transportation – through 
the sale of CSX Lines, began the restructuring of our
management workforce and reinforced our focus on
service, safety and productivity. We are positioning CSX
to reassert the strength of our transportation network and
to improve financial, service and safety performance.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION Although 2003 results fell short of
expectations, we saw encouraging evidence that the
strategy is sound and capable of delivering the financial
performance CSX shareholders deserve. Capitalizing
on operational improvements to grow business volumes 
and reducing costs is the right focus for this company 
and a strategy that can take it to new levels.

This focus on growth was evident in our Surface
Transportation revenue performance. Despite 
operational challenges, CSX Transportation (CSXT) 
and CSX Intermodal produced revenue growth that 
outpaced the general economy in many commodity 
areas. In fact, fourth quarter revenue and traffic 

volumes were the highest on record for our railroad
and intermodal companies. We believe that with better
service we can successfully execute our strategic plan.
Customers have demonstrated their desire to move
more freight by rail, provided we can offer a level of
service that meets their needs.

Responding to the need for better service, we
implemented a series of aggressive actions in 2003 to
create a leaner, more nimble organization and regain
the momentum that characterized our progress in 
the previous two years. As 2003 ended, key railroad 
performance metrics at CSXT stabilized, and in 2004,
Tony Ingram, a 33-year railroad veteran, was brought
into the organization as executive vice president and
chief operating officer to help transform our operations,
deliver improved customer service and capitalize on
increased demand. In addition, 2004 brings with it the
launch of the CSX ONE Plan. This initiative is designed
to simplify and optimize our operating network through
reduced terminal handlings and more efficient routings.
Through this effort, we will improve the consistency and
reliability of our service to customers and reduce costs.

From a broader business perspective, we will continue
to focus on key policy issues that affect CSXT and the rail
industry. This includes a call on the U.S. Congress to 
complete work on a comprehensive national energy bill.
The bill is sorely needed to promote the increased 
use of clean, efficient fuel sources – like coal – and to 
eliminate the portion of the diesel fuel tax that is paid
only by railroads and barge companies, and which costs
the rail industry $170 million per year.

MICHAEL WARD

C h a i r m a n ,  

P r e s i d e n t  a n d  

C E O  

“Our primary asset is a railroad, but
we don’t think of ourselves as a rail
company. We are a transportation
company. And the distinction is huge:
more than $300 billion in additional
market opportunity.”



In addition, we will continue our efforts at the state 
and federal level to pursue much needed litigation
reform. Every American is paying a hidden tax – in
ways that range from higher costs to disappearing 
doctors to a civil justice system that allows frivolous 
lawsuits to continue. Change is needed now.

COST DISCIPLINE Our daily, intense focus is on improving
our organization. We will continue to build on several 
of the important financial goals we achieved in 2003 –
including meeting free cash flow and debt reduction 
targets. In addition, we generated significant revenue
growth through aggressive efforts to win modal 
conversions and offer innovative service products.
However, because these positive trends were offset 
by operational costs that continue to be too high, we
remain committed to sharply improving CSX’s costs.

CSXT encountered a difficult economic environment
through most of the year, including harsh weather and
very high fuel prices. But, we did not do enough to 
overcome these challenges. We recognize the need to
react with greater agility, both to maintain service levels
and to hold down costs.

We are responding with initiatives designed to 
produce sustainable, responsible solutions. Foremost
among them is a detailed analysis of our cost structure
under the keen eye of Chief Financial Officer Oscar
Munoz, who joined CSX in May 2003. This is a full 
evaluation of fundamental business processes to identify
opportunities for Six Sigma and other improvements
that go far deeper – and will affect our financial 

performance far longer – than incremental cost cutting.
Additionally, we determined that removing layers of
management could both reduce costs and improve
operating efficiency.

MARKET EXPANSION Of course, key to higher profits is our
success in capturing a larger share of the freight trans-
portation market. Our commercial initiatives continued
to show success in 2003, as Surface Transportation 
revenue increased by more than three percent year over
year, and we passed the one million truckload milestone
in CSXT’s campaign to convert freight from highway to
rail. This success is driven by the development of inno-
vative service products at both the rail and intermodal
units. From new and expanded intermodal service 
to promotion of bulk commodity transfer operations,
we are leveraging our rail infrastructure to provide cus-
tomers with new door- to - door shipping opportunities.

Although CSX’s revenue growth has been encouraging,
it is dwarfed by the potential that remains. To unleash 
it, we must provide traditional truck customers with the
service reliability and ease of doing business required
to attract their shipments to rail.

We are accomplishing this with programs like the
load board initiative at our intermodal company, where
we are going head- to -head, and in some cases coop-
erating, with the trucking industry through monitoring
and bidding on shipments posted on Internet web 
sites. Traditionally, customers and third-party shippers
have posted transportation needs on the Internet and
trucking companies have competed for this business.

The largest railroad in
eastern North America,
with a 23,000-mile 
rail network linking 
commercial markets 
in 23 states, the District 
of Columbia and two
Canadian provinces.

CSX TRANSPORTATION INC.CSX CORPORATION

The only transconti-
nental intermodal
transportation 
service provider in
the United States, 
operating dedicated
truck-to-rail and 
ship-to-rail services
across North
America.

CSX INTERMODAL INC.

Operator of container-
freight terminal 
facilities in Hong
Kong, China,
Australia, Europe,
Russia and Latin
America.

CSX WORLD TERMINALS



Today, CSX Intermodal also competes for this business,
providing a lower cost shipping alternative for many 
customers and tapping into new market opportunities.
In addition, the importance of intermodal as a key 
link to the global supply chain is growing. More and
more production is moving offshore, creating a larger
market for finished goods that must move from ocean
vessels to inland consumer markets. It is an important,
emerging trend in our industry and one that we are 
well positioned to benefit from in the long term,
since CSXT serves more ports than any other North
American railroad.

Also on the international front, our CSX World
Terminals unit maintained its position in the global 
container terminal business. However, as the year came
to a close, we were challenged by the loss of a major
customer at our Hong Kong facility in the first quarter 
of 2004. CSX World Terminals is seeking to replace 
this lost volume with new business.

At the railroad, we are introducing new operating
technologies and shipment-management approaches –
such as wireless event reporting that provides 
up - to - the - minute status information on shipments – 
and new and enhanced web-based customer service
tools that make it easier for customers to order cars,
track shipments and conduct financial transactions.

With these new tools and the continuing improvements
in service performance, CSX is in position to make
impressive strides, capturing intermodal and merchan-
dise traffic previously moving on America’s highways.

COMMITMENT As the owner of the largest railroad in the
eastern United States and a vital component of the national
economy, we recognize – and welcome – the tremendous
responsibility entrusted to our corporation. In 2003, we
demonstrated our commitment on many levels, to many
constituencies. For our nation, we provided essential 
services to the military during wartime mobilization,
and supported our many employees called to active duty.
In our communities, we implemented a new philanthropic
plan aimed at having a more meaningful impact on 
targeted education and civic improvement programs.
For our employees’ safety, we invested in new operating
technologies and continued to promote a culture of shared
responsibility for safety initiatives. For our customers, we
offered new service products and customer service tools,
while taking steps to streamline operations and improve
reliability. And for our shareholders, we demonstrated 
our commitment to make the tough choices that are nec-
essary to make CSXT not only North America’s premier
railroad, but CSX one of America’s premier companies.

This is our vision.

MICHAEL WARD Chairman, President and CEO 

Provider of information
technology services
that include freight
scheduling, tracking,
and monitoring applica-
tions; data resource
and network manage-
ment; and system
architecture solutions.

CSX TECHNOLOGY

Historic resort located
in White Sulphur
Springs, W.Va., world 
renowned for its 
cuisine and culinary
programs, luxurious
accommodations, and
impeccable service.

Provides inter-company
real estate services,
asset and property 
management, and 
enhances the value 
of surplus rights 
and assets through
development, sales
and leasing activities.

THE GREENBRIERCSX REAL PROPERTY INC.



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Operating Revenue $ 7,793 $ 8,152 $ 8,110 $ 8,191 $10,375 
Operating Expense 7,167 7,025 7,153 7,386 9,802 
Operating Income 626 1,127 957 805 573 

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations $     246 $     424 $ 293 $ 186 $ 32 

Earnings Per Share:
From Continuing Operations $    1.14 $ 2.00 $    1.39 $    0.88 $    0.15 
From Continuing Operations, Assuming Dilution 1.14 1.99 1.38 0.88 0.15 

FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments $     368 $ 264 $     618 $ 686 $ 974 
Working Capital Deficit (307) (665) (1,023) (1,231) (910)
Total Assets 21,760 20,951 20,801 20,548 20,828 
Long-term Debt 6,886 6,519 5,839 5,896 6,304 
Shareholders’ Equity 6,453 6,241 6,120 6,017 5,756 

OTHER DATA PER COMMON SHARE

Cash Dividends $    0.40 $ 0.40 $    0.80 $    1.20 $    1.20 
Book Value 30.01 29.07 28.64 28.28 26.35 
Market Price

High 36.29 41.40 41.30 33.44 53.94 
Low 25.50 25.09 24.81 19.50 28.81 

EMPLOYEES -  ANNUAL AVERAGES

Rail 32,892 33,468 35,014 35,496 31,952 
Other 4,624 6,471 6,446 9,955 16,998 

Total 37,516 39,939 41,460 45,451 48,950

SEE ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

2003 – Pretax income of $93 million, $57 million after tax, or 26 cents per share, as a cumulative effect of accounting change, representing the reversal of the 
accrued liability for crosstie removal costs in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” (See Note 1, 
Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies)

– A charge of $232 million pretax, $145 million after  tax, in conjunction with the change in estimate of casualty reserves to include an estimate of incurred but not 
reported claims for asbestos and other occupational injuries to be received over the next seven years. (See Note 10, Casualty, Environmental, and Other Reserves)

– A charge of $108 million pretax, $67 after tax, to account for the Company entering into two settlement agreements with Maersk that resolved all material disputes
pending between the companies arising out of the 1999 sale of the international container-shipping assets. (See Note 18, Commitments and Contingencies). 

– A charge of $34 million pretax, $21 million after tax as the initial charge for separation expenses related to the Management Restructuring announced in 
November 2003. In addition, the Company recorded a credit $22 million pretax, $13 million after tax related to revised estimates for railroad retirement taxes 
and the amount of benefits that will be paid to individuals under the $1.3 billion charges for separation plans initially recorded in 1991 and 1992. For the year, 
the Company has recorded a net restructuring charge of $22 million, $13 million after tax that includes these items and additional separation charges that 
were included in the third quarter results. (See Note 4, Restructuring) 

2002 – A charge to write-down indefinite lived intangible assets as a cumulative effect of accounting change, which reduced earnings $83 million pretax, $43 million 
after tax and consideration of minority interest, 20 cents per share (See Note 1, Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies).

2001 – A charge of $60 million pretax, $37 million after tax to account for the settlement of the 1987 New Orleans tank car fire litigation.
1999 – A loss on the sale of international container-shipping assets net of a related benefit from discontinuing depreciation of those assets from the date they were classified 

as “held for disposition.” The net effect of the loss and the depreciation benefit reduced earnings by $360 million pretax, $271 million after tax.
– A charge of $55 million pretax, $34 million after tax to recognize the cost of a workforce reduction program at the Company’s rail and intermodal units.
– A gain of $27 million pretax, $17 million after tax on the sale of the Company’s Grand Teton Lodge resort subsidiary.



CAROLYN T. SIZEMORE 
Vice President and Controller

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The consolidated financial statements of CSX have
been prepared by management, which is responsible
for their content and accuracy. The statements present
the results of operations, cash flows and financial 
position of the Company in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States 
and, accordingly, include certain amounts based on
management’s judgments and estimates.

CSX and its subsidiaries maintain internal controls
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets 
are safeguarded and transactions are properly authorized
by management and are recorded in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. Controls include accounting tests, written policies
and procedures and a code of corporate ethics routinely

communicated to all employees. An internal audit staff
monitors compliance with, and the effectiveness of,
established policies and procedures.

The Audit Committee of the board of directors,
composed solely of outside directors, meets periodically
with management, internal auditors and the independent
auditors to review audit findings, adherence to corporate
policies and other financial matters. The firm of Ernst 
& Young LLP, independent auditors, has been engaged 
to audit and report on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements. Its audit was conducted in accor-
dance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States and included a review of internal
accounting controls to the extent deemed necessary 
for the purpose of its report.

MICHAEL WARD
Chairman, President and CEO, CSX Corporation

OSCAR MUNOZ
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
¥ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Ñscal year ended December 26, 2003

OR

n TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from  to

Commission Ñle number 1-8022

CSX Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as speciÑed in its charter)

Virginia 62-1051971
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) IdentiÑcation No.)

500 Water Street, 15th Floor, 32202
(Zip Code)Jacksonville, Florida

(Address of principal executive oÇces)

(904) 359-3200
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $1 Par Value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has Ñled all reports required to be Ñled by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to Ñle such reports), and (2) has been subject to such Ñling
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ¥ No n

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent Ñlers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant's knowledge, in deÑnitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. ¥

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated Ñler (as deÑned in Exchange Act
Rule 12b-2). Yes ¥ No n

On June 27, 2003, the aggregate market value of the Registrant's voting stock held by non-aÇliates
was approximately $5.3 billion (based on the New York Stock Exchange closing price on such date).

On March 5, 2004, there were 215,036,069 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant's DeÑnitive Proxy Statement to be Ñled with respect to its annual meeting of
shareholders scheduled to be held on May 5, 2004 (""Proxy Statement'')



CSX CORPORATION

FORM 10-K

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Item No. Page

PART I

1. Business ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3

2. Properties ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4

3. Legal Proceedings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4

4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security HoldersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5

PART II

5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6

6. Selected Financial DataÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8

7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9

7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38

8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 39

9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
DisclosureÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

9A. Controls and Procedures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

PART III

10. Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

11. Executive Compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

14. Principal Accounting Fees and ServicesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93

PART IV

15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-KÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 94

Signatures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 99

2



CSX CORPORATION

FORM 10-K

PART I

Item 1. Business

CSX Corporation (""CSX'' or the ""Company'') operates one of the largest rail networks in
the United States and also arranges for and provides integrated rail and truck (""intermodal'')
transportation services across the United States and key markets in Canada and Mexico. Its
marine operations include an international terminal services company, which operates and
develops container terminals, distribution facilities and related terminal activities.

In February 2003, CSX conveyed most of its interest in its domestic container-shipping
subsidiary, CSX Lines LLC (""CSX Lines''), to a new venture formed with the Carlyle Group for
approximately $300 million (gross cash proceeds of approximately $240 million, $214 million net
of transaction costs and $60 million of securities).

Operating Segments

Following are the operating revenue and operating income by segment at December 26, 2003
(see Management's Discussion and Analysis for prior year data):

Surface International Eliminations/
Rail Intermodal Transportation Terminals Other(2) Total

(Dollars in Millions) (Unaudited)(1)

Operating Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,182 $1,257 $7,439 $226 $128 $7,793

79% 16% 95% 3% 2% 100%

Operating Income (Loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 541 $ 110 $ 651 $ 69 $(94) $ 626

86% 18% 104% 11% (15)% 100%

(1) Prior periods have been reclassiÑed to conform to the current presentation.

(2) Eliminations/Other consists of the following:
‚ Charge incurred upon entering into settlement agreements with Maersk
‚ ReclassiÑcation of International Terminals minority interest expense
‚ Operations of CSX Lines and gain amortization
‚ Expenses related to the 2003 retirement of the Company's former Chairman and Chief

Executive OÇcer
‚ Other items

Surface Transportation

CSX Transportation Inc.

CSX Transportation Inc. (""CSXT'') is the largest rail network in the eastern United States,
providing rail freight transportation over a network of more than 23,000 route miles in 23 states,
the District of Columbia and two Canadian provinces. Headquartered in Jacksonville, Florida,
CSXT accounted for 79% of CSX's operating revenue and 86% of operating income in 2003.

CSX Intermodal Inc.

CSX Intermodal Inc. (""CSXI'') is the nation's only transcontinental intermodal transportation
service provider, operating a network of dedicated intermodal facilities across North America.
The CSXI network runs approximately 450 dedicated trains between its 45 terminals weekly.
CSXI accounted for 16% of CSX's operating revenue and 18% of operating income in 2003. Its
headquarters are located in Jacksonville, Florida.

3



International Terminals

CSX World Terminals LLC (""CSX World Terminals'') operates container-freight terminal
facilities in Asia, Europe, Australia, Latin America and the United States. CSX World Terminals
accounted for 3% of CSX's operating revenues and 11% of operating income in 2003. CSX World
Terminals is headquartered in Charlotte, North Carolina.

Non-transportation

The Greenbrier is a AAA Five-Diamond resort located in White Sulphur Springs, West
Virginia. CSX Real Property Inc. is responsible for sales, leasing and development of CSX-owned
properties, and is headquartered in Jacksonville, Florida.

General

CSX employed an average of 37,516 employees during 2003. The Company considers
employee relations to be good. Most of CSX's employees are represented by labor unions and
are covered by collective bargaining agreements. Some of these agreements are scheduled to
expire in 2004. CSX is in the process of renegotiating most of these agreements, but the
outcome of these negotiations is uncertain at this time. For rail employees negotiations have
generally taken place over a number of years and previously have not resulted in any extended
work stoppages. The existing agreements have remained in eÅect and will continue to remain in
eÅect until new agreements are reached or the Railway Labor Act's procedures (which include
mediation, cooling-oÅ periods, and the possibility of Presidential intervention) are exhausted.

The Company makes available free of charge through its website at www.csx.com, its annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and all
amendments thereto, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are Ñled with or
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

For additional information concerning business conducted by CSX during 2003, see
""Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations'' and
Note 19 to the Financial Statements under the caption ""Business Segments.''

Item 2. Properties

In response to this Item, see the information set forth on page 32 under the caption
""Depreciation Policies Under the Group Life Method,'' in Note 1 to the Financial Statements
under the caption ""Nature of Operations and SigniÑcant Accounting Policies,'' and in Note 9 to
the Financial Statements under the caption ""Properties.''

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

CSX is involved in routine litigation incidental to its business and is a party to a number of
legal actions and claims, various governmental proceedings and private civil lawsuits, including
those related to environmental matters. Federal Employers' Liability Act claims by employees,
other personal injury claims, and disputes and complaints involving certain transportation rates
and charges. Some of the legal proceedings include claims for punitive as well as compensatory
damages, and others purport to be class actions. While the Ñnal outcome of these matters
cannot be predicted with certainty, considering among other things the meritorious legal defenses
available and liabilities that have been recorded along with applicable insurance, it is the opinion
of CSX management that none of these items will have a material adverse eÅect on the results of
operations, Ñnancial position or liquidity of CSX. However, an unexpected adverse resolution of
one or more of these items could have a material adverse eÅect on the results of operations in a
particular quarter or Ñscal year. The company is also party to a number of actions, the resolution
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of which could result in gain realization in amounts that could be material to results of operations
in the quarters received.

In further response to this Item, see the information set forth in ""Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,'' of this document under the
caption ""Casualty, Legal and Environmental Reserves'' and under the caption ""Commitments and
Contingencies.''

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 2003.

Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

Executive oÇcers of CSX Corporation are elected by the CSX Board of Directors and
generally hold oÇce until the next annual election of oÇcers. OÇcers of CSX business units are
elected annually by the respective Boards of Directors of the business units. There are no family
relationships or any arrangement or understanding between any oÇcer and any other person
pursuant to which such oÇcer was selected. EÅective March 31, 2004 our executive oÇcers will
be as follows:

Name and Age Business Experience During Past 5 Years

Michael J. Ward, 53 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive OÇcer of
CSX, having been elected as Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer
in January 2003 and as President in July 2002. He has served CSX
Transportation, Inc., the Company's rail subsidiary, as President
since November 2000 and as President and Chief Executive OÇcer
since October 2002. Previously, Mr. Ward served CSX
Transportation as Executive Vice President Ì Operations from April
through November 2000, as Executive Vice President Ì Coal
Service Group from August 1999 to April 2000, and prior to that as
Executive Vice President Ì Coal and Merger Planning from October
1998 to August 1999.

Andrew B. Fogarty, 58 President and Chief Executive OÇcer, CSX World Terminals, LLC,
since January 2004. Before January 2004, Mr. Fogarty served as
Senior Vice President Ì Corporate Services of CSX since May 2003
and as Executive Vice President Ì Corporate Services of CSX from
July 2001 to May 2003. Before that, he served as Senior Vice
President Ì Corporate Services.

Ellen M. Fitzsimmons, 43 Senior Vice President Ì Law and Public AÅairs since December
2003. Before December 2003, Ms. Fitzsimmons served as Senior
Vice President Ì Law and Corporate Secretary since May 2003 and
as Senior Vice President Ì Law from February 2001 to May 2003.
Prior thereto, she served as General Counsel Ì Corporate.

Clarence W. Gooden, 52 Senior Vice President Ì Merchandise Service Group, CSX
Transportation since 2002. Prior to 2002, Mr. Gooden served as
President of CSX Intermodal from 2001 to 2002; Senior Vice
President Ì Coal Service Group from 2000 to 2001; Vice
President Ì System Transportation from 1999 to 2000; Vice
President Ì Transportation Field Operations from 1998 to 1999.
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Name and Age Business Experience During Past 5 Years

Robert J. Haulter, 50 Senior Vice President Ì Human Resources and Labor Relations
since December 2003. Before December 2003, Mr. Haulter served
as CSX Senior Vice President Ì Human Resources since July 2002.
Before July 2002, he served CSX Transportation, Inc., as Senior
Vice President Ì Human Resources from May 2002 to July 2002; as
Vice President Ì Human Resources from December 2000 to May
2002; as Assistant Vice President of Operations Support from
September 2000 to December 2000; as Assistant Vice President Ì
Strategic Development from November 1999 to September 2000;
and as Assistant Vice President Ì Integration Planning before
November 1999.

Oscar Munoz, 44 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial OÇcer since May 2003.
Before May 2003, Mr. Munoz served as Chief Financial OÇcer and
Vice President, Consumer Services, AT&T Corporation, from
January 2001 to May 2003; as Senior Vice President Ì Finance &
Administration, Qwest Communications International, Inc. from June
to December 2000; as Chief Financial OÇcer & Vice President,
U.S. West Retail Markets from April 1999 to May 2000; and before
April 1999 as Controller and Vice President, USWEST
Communications, Inc.

Carolyn T. Sizemore, 41 Vice President and Controller of CSX since April 2002. Prior to April
2002, Ms. Sizemore served as Assistant Vice President and
Assistant Controller from July 2001 to April 2002; Assistant Vice
President Financial Planning from June 1999 to July 2001; and prior
to June 1999, as Senior Director Ì Financial and Strategic
Measurement.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

CSX's common stock is listed on the New York, London and Swiss stock exchanges and
trades with unlisted privileges on the Midwest, Boston, Cincinnati, PaciÑc and Philadelphia stock
exchanges. The oÇcial trading symbol is ""CSX.''

Description of Common and Preferred Stocks

A total of 300 million shares of common stock are authorized, of which 215,071,005 shares
were outstanding as of December 26, 2003. Each share is entitled to one vote in all matters
requiring a vote of shareholders. There are no pre-emptive rights. At December 26, 2003, there
were 56,331 registered common stock shareholders.

A total of 25 million shares of preferred stock are authorized, none of which are currently
outstanding. CSX previously issued Series A preferred stock consisting of 250,000 shares of $7
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock. All outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock were
redeemed as of July 31, 1992. Prior to October 2003, 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock had
been designated as Series B Preferred Stock in conjunction with the Company's Shareholder
Rights Plan. In October 2003, the expiration date of the shareholder rights under the Shareholder
Rights Plan was accelerated, resulting in the eÅective termination of the Plan. The Company's
Articles of Incorporation were amended to eliminate the designation of shares for Series B
Preferred.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes the equity compensation plans under which CSX Corporation
common stock may be issued as of December 26, 2003.

(a) (b) (c)

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities under equity
to be issued compensation plans

upon exercise of Weighted-average (excluding
outstanding options, exercise price of securities reÖected
warrants and rights outstanding options, in column (a))

Plan Category (000's) warrants and rights (000's)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22,633 $39.11 7,060(1)

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders(2)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 664 $44.89 Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,297 7,060(1)

(1) The number of shares remaining available for future issuance under plans approved by
shareholders includes 59,038 shares available for employee purchase pursuant to the 2002
Employee Stock Purchase Plan; 642,192 shares available for stock option grants, payment
of director compensation, and stock grants pursuant to the CSX Stock Plan for Directors;
and 6,358,934 shares available for grant in the form of stock options, performance units,
restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards pursuant to the CSX Omnibus
Incentive Plan.

(2) The 1990 Stock Award Plan (""1990 Plan'') is the only CSX equity compensation plan that
has not been approved by shareholders. Upon approval of the CSX Omnibus Incentive Plan
by shareholders in 2000, the plan was closed to further grants. No options have been
granted under the 1990 Plan since 1999.

The following table sets forth, for the quarters indicated, the dividends declared and the high
and low sales prices of the Company's common stock:

Quarter

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

2003

Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10

Common Stock Price:

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $30.85 $33.16 $32.99 $36.29

Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $25.50 $28.20 $28.92 $29.07

2002

Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10

Common Stock Price:

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $41.40 $37.90 $36.77 $30.12

Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $34.81 $32.41 $25.75 $25.09
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Earnings from Continuing Operations

Operating Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 7,793 $ 8,152 $ 8,110 $ 8,191 $10,375

Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,167 7,025 7,153 7,386 9,802

Operating IncomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 626 $ 1,127 $ 957 $ 805 $ 573

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations ÏÏ $ 246 $ 424 $ 293 $ 186 $ 32

Earnings Per Share:

From Continuing Operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.14 $ 2.00 $ 1.39 $ 0.88 $ 0.15

From Continuing Operations, Assuming
Dilution ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.14 $ 1.99 $ 1.38 $ 0.88 $ 0.15

Financial Position

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term
Investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 368 $ 264 $ 618 $ 686 $ 974

Working Capital DeÑcit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (307) $ (665) $(1,023) $(1,231) $ (910)

Total AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $21,760 $20,951 $20,801 $20,548 $20,828

Long-term DebtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 6,886 $ 6,519 $ 5,839 $ 5,896 $ 6,304

Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 6,453 $ 6,241 $ 6,120 $ 6,017 $ 5,756

Other Data Per Common Share

Cash Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.80 $ 1.20 $ 1.20

Book ValueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 30.01 $ 29.07 $ 28.64 $ 28.28 $ 26.35

Market Price

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 36.29 $ 41.40 $ 41.30 $ 33.44 $ 53.94

Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 25.50 $ 25.09 $ 24.81 $ 19.50 $ 28.81

Employees Ì Annual Averages

Rail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 32,892 33,468 35,014 35,496 31,952

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,624 6,471 6,446 9,955 16,998

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37,516 39,939 41,460 45,451 48,950

See accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements
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SigniÑcant events include the following:

2003 Ì Pretax income of $93 million, $57 million after tax, or 26 cents per share, as a
cumulative eÅect of accounting change, representing the reversal of the accrued
liability for crosstie removal costs in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS 143,
""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.'' (See Note 1, Nature of
Operations and SigniÑcant Accounting Policies)

Ì A charge of $232 million pretax, $145 million after tax in conjunction with the
change in estimate of casualty reserves to include an estimate of incurred but
not reported claims for asbestos and other occupational injuries to be received
over the next seven years. (See Note 10, Casualty, Environmental, and Other
Reserves)

Ì A charge of $108 million pretax, $67 after tax to account for the Company
entering into two settlement agreements with Maersk that resolved all material
disputes pending between the companies arising out of the 1999 sale of the
international container-shipping assets. (See Note 18, Commitments and
Contingencies).

Ì A charge of $34 million pretax, $21 million after tax as the initial charge for
separation expenses related to the management restructuring announced in
November 2003. In addition, the Company recorded a credit of $22 million
pretax, $13 million after tax related to revised estimates for railroad retirement
taxes and the amount of beneÑts that will be paid to individuals under the
$1.3 billion charges for separation plans initially recorded in 1991 and 1992. For
the year, the Company has recorded a net restructuring charge of $22 million,
$13 million after tax that includes these items and additional separation charges
that were included in the third quarter results. (See Note 4, Restructuring)

2002 Ì A charge to write-down indeÑnite lived intangible assets as a cumulative eÅect
of accounting change, which reduced earnings $83 million pretax, $43 million
after tax and consideration of minority interest, 20 cents per share (See Note 1,
Nature of Operations and SigniÑcant Accounting Policies).

2001 Ì A charge of $60 million pretax, $37 million after tax to account for the settlement
of the 1987 New Orleans tank car Ñre litigation.

1999 Ì A loss on the sale of international container-shipping assets net of a related
beneÑt from discontinuing depreciation of those assets from the date they were
classiÑed as ""held for disposition.'' The net eÅect of the loss and the
depreciation beneÑt reduced earnings by $360 million pretax, $271 million after
tax.

Ì A charge of $55 million pretax, $34 million after tax to recognize the cost of a
workforce reduction program at the Company's rail and intermodal units.

Ì A gain of $27 million pretax, $17 million after tax on the sale of the Company's
Grand Teton Lodge resort subsidiary.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Overview

General

CSX Corporation (""CSX'' or the ""Company'') operates one of the largest rail networks in
the United States and also arranges for and provides integrated rail and truck (""intermodal'')
transportation services across the United States and key markets in Canada and Mexico. Surface
Transportation, which includes CSX's rail and intermodal units, generated revenue of $7.4 billion
in 2003 compared to $7.2 billion in 2002. Operating income for Surface Transportation was
$651 million in 2003 compared to $995 million in 2002. CSX's marine operations include an
international terminal services company, which operates and develops container terminals,
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distribution facilities and related terminal activities. In February 2003, CSX conveyed most of its
interest in its domestic container-shipping subsidiary, CSX Lines, to a new venture formed with
the Carlyle Group. CSX also owns and operates the Greenbrier, a AAA Five-Diamond resort
located in White Sulphur Springs, West Virginia.

In 2003, revenue and volume grew in response to strategies to persuade new customers to
ship via a combination of rail and truck, the introduction of new customer services, and the
economic recovery. However, as discussed below increased costs and operating ineÇciency in
the rail network decreased CSX's overall proÑtability.

Surface Transportation

CSX's rail system is a network, deÑned by its more than 23,000 route miles, through which
goods and services Öow. The ineÇciency of any one element in that network can have an eÅect
on other components, and ultimately aÅect the operating eÇciency of the entire network. The
decline in CSX's operating eÇciency, coupled with the increased price of fuel and other higher
costs, reduced CSX's proÑt in 2003.

In addition to reviewing various Ñnancial measures, CSX management uses non-Ñnancial
indicators to monitor performance and operating eÇciency of its network. Those include:

% Improvement
Key Non-Financial Performance Indicators 2003 2002 (Decline)

Personal Injury Frequency Index (Per 100 Employees) ÏÏÏÏÏ 2.20 1.98 (11)%

FRA Train Accidents Frequency (Per Million Train Miles) ÏÏÏ 4.37 3.34 (31)

Average Velocity, All Trains (Miles Per Hour) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21.1 22.5 (6)

Average System Dwell Time (Hours)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25.3 23.2 (9)

Average Total Cars-On-Line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 229,926 229,609 Ì

On-Time OriginationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 62.0% 76.4% (19)

On-Time ArrivalsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 56.9% 76.9% (26)

Average Recrews (Per Day)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50 26 (92)%

The decline in these non-Ñnancial performance measures contributed to higher operating
expenses and resulted in a higher operating ratio for Surface Transportation, which increased to
91.2% in 2003 from 86.1% in 2002. The number of injuries per 100 employees increased by 11%,
while the number of FRA-reportable train accidents per million train miles showed a 31% increase
from 2002 to 2003. Average train velocity, which is a measure of eÇciency, decreased 6% from
22.5 miles per hour in 2002 to 21.1 miles per hour in 2003. The average system dwell time, which
measures the amount of time between car arrival and departure from yards, increased 9% from
2002 to 2003. The percent of scheduled trains departing the origin station at or prior to the
scheduled departure time and the percent of scheduled trains arriving at the destination station
within two hours of the scheduled arrival time both showed year-over-year declines. The number
of relief crews called per day on average, which is an indicator of eÇciency in the use of crews,
showed the largest percent decline, increasing from 26 to 50.

CSX management is taking steps to identify the source of operating ineÇciencies and reduce
operating expenses. Management also is evaluating ways to restore the network operating
eÇciency, while maintaining volume. This includes reducing both gross ton-miles and the number
of times a railcar is handled, or switched, en route to its Ñnal destination. Because American
industry has changed signiÑcantly in recent years. Management believes there are portions of
CSX's non-core network that could be more eÇciently used by third parties. The Company is
currently evaluating the lease or sale of up to 3,000 miles of its non-core network. This would
allow CSX to return approximately 50 locomotives to the core network, reduce capital outlays
and decrease operating expenses.
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These changes will allow for and require organizational improvements. CSX is undertaking a
major management restructuring that began in November 2003 and is expected to conclude near
the end of the Ñrst quarter of 2004. Management believes that the conveyance of CSX Lines in
February of 2003 and the resolution of the disputes with Maersk relating to the 1999 sale of the
international container shipping assets will allow management to focus on its core surface
transportation segment.

International Terminals

CSX World Terminals' (""CSXWT'') Hong Kong terminal accounted for approximately 67% of
CSXWT's revenues and 62% of operating income in 2003. The Hong Kong terminal showed a
year-over-year volume decrease of 7.2%, which corresponded with a 5.8% decrease in revenue
versus 2002. Competitive pressures are rising as customers are shifting their traÇc from facilities
in Hong Kong to newly opened terminals in South China's Guangdong region. This shift will also
translate into reduced volumes and revenue. A signiÑcant customer of CSXWT announced that it
would terminate its marine terminal services contract during the Ñrst quarter of 2004. This is
expected to negatively impact CSXWT's 2004 operating income by approximately $29 million and
cash Öow by approximately $21 million. In December 2004, another contract is scheduled to
expire. Negotiations are in process to maintain this contract, but if negotiations are unsuccessful,
2005 operating income may be negatively impacted by $20 million. CSXWT expects that it will be
able to replace all or substantially all of the lost volume with new customers representing long
and short-term commercial commitments. However, due to the increased competitive pressures,
it is possible that the proÑt margins achieved in the past will not be realized in the near term.

Recognizing its need to diversify beyond the Hong Kong terminal, CSXWT has been
expanding its capacity and market reach. During 2003, CSX's minority owned terminal operation
located in the Shandong Province of the People's Republic of China commenced operations.
CSXWT has also completed the Ñrst phase of its terminal construction in Caucedo, which is
located in the Dominican Republic. The Caucedo terminal company is an unconsolidated entity of
CSXWT that began operations in December 2003. In response to competition in the South China
Guangdong region, CSXWT has initiatives in process to maintain and improve its productivity
standards.

In addition to volume, CSXWT monitors terminal productivity or lifts per hour. For the years
ended December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, lifts per hour for some of the main terminals
was as follows:

Lifts Per HourPort's %
of CSXWT % Improvement

Terminal Operating Income 2003 2002 (Decline)

Hong Kong, China ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 62% 40.4 39.1 3%

Adelaide, Australia ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5% 22.3 21.6 3%

Germershiem, Germany ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5% 23.7 25.2 (6)%

Rio Haina, Dominican RepublicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5% 25.8 26.1 (1)%

Overall, terminal productivity remained relatively stable in 2003 compared to 2002.

Financial Results of Operations

Consolidated Results

CSX follows a 52/53-week Ñscal reporting calendar. Fiscal years 2003 and 2002 consisted of
52 weeks ending on December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, respectively.
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2003 vs. 2002

Operating Revenue

Operating revenue decreased $359 million for the year ended December 26, 2003 to
$7.8 billion, compared to $8.2 billion for the prior year. A $627 million decline in consolidated
revenue resulted from a reduction of revenue in the domestic container-shipping segment as a
majority of CSX's interest in CSX Lines was conveyed during the Ñrst quarter of 2003 (See Note
3, Divestitures). Excluding revenue from this conveyance, revenue increased $268 million
primarily due to an increase in Surface Transportation revenue.

Operating Income

Operating income for the year ended December 26, 2003 was down $501 million to
$626 million, compared to $1.1 billion in the prior year. The prior year included $38 million of
operating income of CSX Lines, which was conveyed to a new venture formed with the Carlyle
Group in the Ñrst quarter of 2003. Excluding operating income from this conveyance, 2003
operating income decreased $463 million.

The decrease in operating income is primarily the result of two charges taken during 2003
totaling $340 million. The Company recorded a $232 million charge in conjunction with the
change in estimate for casualty reserves, which is reÖected in operating expense as ""Provision
for Casualty Claims'' (See Note 10, Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves). Also, CSX
entered into two settlement agreements, which together resolve all material outstanding disputes
with Maersk. This decreased the Company's operating income by $108 million, and is reÖected in
operating expense as the additional loss on sale of international container-shipping assets (See
Note 18, Commitments and Contingencies).

The Company also recorded $34 million pretax as the initial charge for separation expenses
related to the management restructuring announced in November 2003. In addition, the Company
recorded a credit of $22 million pretax related to revised estimates for railroad retirement taxes
and the amount of beneÑts that will ultimately be paid to individuals under the $1.3 billion charges
for separation plans initially recorded in 1991 and 1992. For the year, the Company has recorded
a net restructuring charge of $22 million that includes these items and additional separation
charges that were included in the third quarter results. (See Note 4, Restructuring).

Materials, supplies and other expenses decreased $62 million, or 4%, year-over-year, as a
result of the conveyance of most of the Company's interest in its domestic container-shipping
subsidiary, CSX Lines. Excluding the $244 million of expenses of CSX Lines, materials, supplies
and other increased $193 million year-over-year. Approximately $80 million of this increase
relates to increased costs for personal injuries and safety issues. An additional $20 million of the
expense deterioration is due to increased cost of derailments. The remaining increase results
from volume increases, inÖationary eÅects and general operational ineÇciencies, as reÖected by
the decline in the non-Ñnancial performance indicators.

Fuel expense for Surface Transportation operations increased $117 million in 2003, as
compared to the prior year. The expense increase is primarily due to $102 million in fuel price
increases, while increased volumes were also a factor. The average price per gallon of fuel was
96 cents per gallon for 2003 compared to 78 cents per gallon for 2002. In order to minimize
future exposure to fuel price Öuctuation risk, during 2003 the Company entered into a series of
swaps in order to Ñx the price on a portion of its estimated future fuel purchases. As of
December 26, 2003, 18% and 21% of 2004 and 2005, respectively, estimated fuel purchases were
hedged. Fuel swaps did not have an eÅect on fuel expense for the year ended December 26,
2003.

12



Favorably impacting expense was the absence of a management bonus at its Surface
Transportation companies in 2003, as approximately $45 million of such expense was recorded
in 2002.

Other Income

Other income increased $16 million to $57 million for the year ended December 26, 2003,
compared to $41 million for the prior year. A decrease in discounts on sales of accounts
receivable due to the discontinuance of this program and a loss on sale in 2002 that did not
recur in 2003 had a favorable impact, but were partially oÅset by lower interest income and
reduced real estate gains.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $27 million for the year ended December 26, 2003 as compared
to the prior year. Lower interest rates on Öoating rate debt and the favorable impact of interest
rate swaps (see Note 12, Derivative Financial Instruments) continued to beneÑt the Company.

Net Earnings

Net earnings were $246 million, or $1.14 per share, for the year ended December 26, 2003,
compared to $424 million, or $1.99 per share for the prior year.

The year ended December 26, 2003 included an after-tax cumulative eÅect of accounting
change beneÑt of $57 million, 26 cents per share, related to the adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard (""SFAS'') 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,''
while the year ended December 27, 2002 included an after-tax cumulative eÅect of accounting
change charge of $43 million, 20 cents per share, related to the adoption of SFAS 142, ""Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.''

Earnings before the cumulative eÅect of accounting changes were $189 million and
$467 million for the years ended December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, respectively. The
$278 million year-over-year decrease in net earnings primarily results from a $145 million after-
tax charge to increase the Company's provision for casualty reserves, a $67 million after-tax
charge to record the loss on sale of international container-shipping assets and a $21 million
after-tax charge to record amounts associated with the management restructuring.

The remaining decrease results from the decline in operating income as discussed above,
somewhat oÅset by the favorable impact of decreased interest expenses and income taxes.

2002 vs. 2001

Operating Revenue

Fiscal year 2001 consisted of 52 weeks ending on December 28, 2001. Operating revenue of
$8.2 billion in 2002 was slightly higher than 2001, resulting mainly from an increase in revenues
at the Company's domestic container-shipping unit, CSX Lines, which oÅset a small decrease at
the Company's Surface Transportation units.

Operating Income

Operating expense of $7.0 billion in 2002 was 2% lower due mainly to lower fuel and labor
costs at the Company's Surface Transportation business. The eÅect on 2001 of the $60 million
New Orleans litigation settlement contributed to the favorable year-to-year comparison.
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Other Income

Other income was up $32 million in 2002 as compared to 2001, due mainly to reduced losses
relating to equity investments and other favorable miscellaneous items, oÅset by lower interest
income.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was reduced by $73 million in 2002 as compared to 2001, due to
reÑnancing Ñxed-rate maturities at lower interest rates, and to a greater percentage of
outstanding debt during 2002 bearing a Öoating rate of interest through the use of interest rate
swap agreements.

Net Earnings

The Company reported net earnings for 2002 of $424 million, $1.99 per share, compared to
$293 million, $1.38 per share in 2001. Results for 2002 include the write-down of indeÑnite lived
intangible assets as a cumulative eÅect of accounting change, which reduced net earnings
$43 million after tax. Results for 2001 include a provision to account for the settlement of the
New Orleans tank car Ñre litigation, which reduced net earnings by $37 million after tax.
Excluding the cumulative eÅect of the accounting change and the New Orleans litigation
provision, net earnings were $467 million for 2002, compared with $330 million for 2001. This
increase is the result of increased operating income on a consolidated basis of $110 million
(excluding the pretax charge of $60 million in 2001 for the New Orleans litigation provision),
higher other income of $32 million and lower interest expense of $73 million.

The following tables provide a detail of operating revenue and expense by segment:

Surface International Eliminations/
Rail Intermodal Transportation Terminals Other(2) Total

(Dollars in Millions) (Unaudited)(1)

Fiscal Year Ended December 26, 2003

Operating Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,182 $1,257 $7,439 $226 $128 $7,793

Operating Expense

Labor and Fringe ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,555 73 2,628 51 61 2,740

Materials, Supplies and Other ÏÏÏÏÏ 1,329 201 1,530 76 56 1,662

Conrail Rents, Fees & Services ÏÏÏ 342 Ì 342 Ì Ì 342

Building and Equipment Rent ÏÏÏÏÏ 418 144 562 8 (4) 566

Inland TransportationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (399) 697 298 6 16 320

Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 579 32 611 9 9 629

FuelÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 566 Ì 566 Ì 15 581

Miscellaneous ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 7 (42) (35)

Provision for Casualty Claims(3)ÏÏ 229 Ì 229 Ì 3 232

Additional Loss on Sale(4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 108 108

Restructuring Charge Ì Net(5)ÏÏÏ 22 Ì 22 Ì Ì 22

Total Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,641 1,147 6,788 157 222 7,167

Operating Income (Loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 541 $ 110 $ 651 $ 69 $(94) $ 626

Operating RatioÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 91.2% 91.2% 91.2% 69.5%

Employment Ì Annual Averages ÏÏÏ 32,892 1,119 34,011 1,016

Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 974 47 1,021 9
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Surface International Eliminations/
Rail Intermodal Transportation Terminals Other(2) Total

(Dollars in Millions) (Unaudited)(1)

Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 2002

Operating Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,003 $1,180 $7,183 $236 $733 $8,152

Operating Expense

Labor and Fringe ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,530 67 2,597 57 232 2,886

Materials, Supplies and Other ÏÏÏÏÏ 1,212 179 1,391 77 256 1,724

Conrail Rents, Fees & Services ÏÏÏ 322 Ì 322 Ì Ì 322

Building and Equipment Rent ÏÏÏÏÏ 425 131 556 9 36 601

Inland TransportationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (365) 633 268 7 95 370

Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 576 29 605 9 24 638

FuelÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 449 Ì 449 Ì 66 515

Miscellaneous ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 8 (39) (31)

Total Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,149 1,039 6,188 167 670 7,025

Operating Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 854 $ 141 $ 995 $ 69 $ 63 $1,127

Operating RatioÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 85.8% 88.1% 86.1% 70.8%

Employment Ì Annual Averages ÏÏÏ 33,468 1,091 34,559 1,261

Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 981 29 1,010 11

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2001

Operating Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,082 $1,112 $7,194 $236 $680 $8,110

Operating Expense

Labor and Fringe ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,585 65 2,650 62 222 2,934

Materials, Supplies and Other ÏÏÏÏÏ 1,212 173 1,385 70 234 1,689

Conrail Rents, Fees & Services ÏÏÏ 336 Ì 336 Ì Ì 336

Building and Equipment Rent ÏÏÏÏÏ 442 123 565 9 52 626

Inland TransportationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (371) 616 245 7 85 337

Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 550 31 581 8 24 613

FuelÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 525 Ì 525 Ì 60 585

New Orleans Litigation
Provision(6)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 60 Ì 60 Ì Ì 60

Miscellaneous ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 9 (36) (27)

Total Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,339 1,008 6,347 165 641 7,153

Operating Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 743 $ 104 $ 847 $ 71 $ 39 $ 957

Operating RatioÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87.8% 90.6% 88.2% 69.9%

Employment Ì Annual Averages ÏÏÏ 35,014 1,116 36,130 1,305

Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 848 12 860 19

(1) Prior periods have been reclassiÑed to conform to the current presentation.

(2) Eliminations/Other consists of the following:

‚ Charge incurred upon entering into settlement agreements with Maersk

‚ ReclassiÑcation of International Terminals minority interest expense

‚ Operations of CSX Lines and gain amortization

‚ Expenses related to the 2003 retirement of the Company's former Chairman and Chief
Executive OÇcer

‚ Other items
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(3) Represents 2003 charges recorded in connection with the Company's change in estimating
casualty reserves, which impacted Surface Transportation operating income by $229 million.
(See Note 10, Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves.)

(4) Represents 2003 charges incurred upon entering into settlement agreements with Maersk.
(See Note 18, Commitments and Contingencies.)

(5) Includes the 2003 restructuring charge recorded in connection with the management
restructuring and the favorable change in estimate of beneÑts to be paid under 1991 and
1992 separation plans. (See Note 4, Restructuring.)

(6) Represents a 2001 charge to account for the settlement of the 1987 New Orleans tank car
Ñre litigation. This charge reduced operating income by $60 million.

Surface Transportation Results

The following tables provide Surface Transportation carload and revenue data by service
group and commodity:

Fiscal Years Ended December 26, 2003, December 27, 2002 and December 28, 2001

Carloads Revenue

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

(Thousands) (Dollars in Millions)

Merchandise

Phosphates and Fertilizer ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 460 463 441 $ 329 $ 324 $ 306

Metals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 348 319 320 435 401 395

Forest and Industrial ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 604 590 596 806 771 777

Agricultural and Food ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 457 452 467 660 648 661

ChemicalsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 544 542 540 993 964 937

Emerging Markets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 476 424 435 471 398 384

Total Merchandise ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,889 2,790 2,799 3,694 3,506 3,460

AutomotiveÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 529 538 516 853 845 794

Coal, Coke and Iron Ore

Coal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,570 1,574 1,722 1,543 1,529 1,671

Coke and Iron OreÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 65 70 77 57 69 68

Total Coal, Coke and Iron Ore ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,635 1,644 1,799 1,600 1,598 1,739

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 35 54 89

Total Rail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,053 4,972 5,114 6,182 6,003 6,082

Intermodal

Domestic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,060 982 901 784 696 625

InternationalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,170 1,137 1,103 469 476 470

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 4 8 17

Total Intermodal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,230 2,119 2,004 1,257 1,180 1,112

Total Surface Transportation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,283 7,091 7,118 $7,439 $7,183 $7,194
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Rail

2003 vs. 2002

Operating Revenue

CSX categorizes rail revenues in three main areas:

1. Merchandise, which includes the following markets:

‚ Phosphates and Fertilizers
‚ Metals
‚ Forest and Industrial
‚ Agricultural and Food
‚ Chemicals
‚ Emerging Markets

2. Automotive

3. Coal, Coke and Iron Ore

Merchandise Revenue

Merchandise showed strength during 2003 with revenue up 5% on 4% volume growth. All
markets showed year-over-year revenue improvement, and all except phosphates and fertilizers
experienced increased volumes. Emerging markets realized the most improvement, with 18%
revenue growth on 12% volume growth. Aggregates and cement traÇc grew faster than average
industry growth rates due to new industrial development and increased conversion of truck traÇc
to rail. Ammunition volumes increased throughout the year and strength continued in waste
markets. The metals sector also showed strength in 2003. Revenue improved 8% on 9% volume
growth, driven by strong global steel demand, particularly for scrap and sheet steel. Other factors
contributing to improvement include strength in semi-Ñnish metals and continued increases in
modal conversions. Demand for building products, lumber and paper products resulted in an
increase in forest and industrial revenue of 5% on 2% volume growth. The agricultural and food
and chemical sectors also realized revenue increases, while volumes remained consistent with
2002. Phosphates and fertilizers revenues increased slightly year-over-year despite decreased
volume, due to domestic phosphates and ammonia strength.

Automotive Revenue

Volume declined largely due to a 200,000 unit year-over-year decrease in North American
light vehicle production. Haul extensions and price increases drove improvements in revenue per
car.

Coal, Coke and Iron Ore Revenue

Coal, coke and iron ore volumes and revenue remained consistent with results in the prior
year. Export moves were strong due to high European steam coal demand for electricity
generation. Steel related traÇc was weak throughout the year, but showed renewed strength
during the fourth quarter due to consolidation in the steel industry and shifts in scrap metal
demands that resulted in increased traÇc and revenue for CSX. Utility revenue was favorable due
to pricing initiatives and higher average length of haul. Improvements in these areas were oÅset
by abnormally harsh winter weather during the Ñrst quarter which adversely aÅected lake
loadings, as lakes were frozen.
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Operating Expense

Total rail operating expenses increased $492 million, or 10% in 2003 as compared to 2002.
Increases in most expense categories were somewhat oÅset by decreases in building and
equipment rent.

The primary component of the expense increase was a charge of $229 million recorded in
conjunction with the Company's change in estimate for its casualty reserves to include an
estimate of incurred but not reported claims for asbestos and other occupational injuries that
could be received over the next seven years. This charge is reÖected as ""Provision for Casualty
Claims'' in the Ñnancial statements. (See Note 10, Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves.)

Labor and fringe expense remained relatively consistent year-over-year. The cost of labor
inÖation was oÅset by December-over-December reductions in staÅ of approximately 1,200 and
the favorable impact of the absence of a management bonus in 2003, as approximately
$45 million of such expense was recorded in 2002.

Materials, supplies and other expenses increased $117 million, or 10%, year-over-year. One
of the primary drivers was approximately $80 million of increased cost for personal injury and
related safety issues. An additional $20 million of the expense deterioration is due to increased
cost of derailments. Additionally, due to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (""SFAS'') 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,'' as discussed below,
depreciation expense has been decreased and materials, supplies and other increased to
account for the discontinuation of the accrual of cross-tie removal as a component of
depreciation expense. The remaining increase results from volume increases, inÖationary eÅects
and general operational ineÇciencies.

Conrail rents, fees & services expense increased $20 million in 2003, as compared to the
prior year, as a result of increased usage of Shared Asset Areas, a contractual increase in the
rental fee for Shared Area facilities, and a favorable tax adjustment in the prior year. (See
Note 2, Investment In and Integrated Rail Operations With Conrail.)

Building and equipment rent decreased $7 million in 2003 compared to the prior year
principally as a result of reduced car rentals from other railroads.

Inland transportation, which represents CSXI's use of the CSXT rail networks, remained
relatively consistent year-over-year. The oÅsetting expense associated with this amount is
reÖected in CSXI's operating expense, and thus eliminates on a Surface Transportation level.

Depreciation remained consistent year-over-year. The rail segment had capital additions of
approximately $1 billion, but the additional depreciation was oÅset by the reduction in
depreciation associated with the adoption of SFAS 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations.'' In conjunction with the group-life method of accounting for asset costs, the
Company historically accrued crosstie removal costs as a component of depreciation, which is
not permitted under SFAS 143. The eÅect is to decrease depreciation expense and increase
material, supplies and other expense.

Fuel expense increased $117 million in 2003, as compared to the prior year. The expense
increase is primarily due to $102 million in fuel price increases, while increased volumes were
also a factor. The average price per gallon of fuel was 96 cents per gallon for 2003 compared to
78 cents per gallon for 2002. In order to minimize future exposure to fuel price Öuctuation risk,
during 2003 the Company entered into a series of swaps in order to Ñx the price of a portion of
its estimated future fuel purchases. As of December 26, 2003, 18% and 21% of 2004 and 2005,
respectively, estimated fuel purchases were hedged. Fuel swaps did not have an eÅect on fuel
expense for the year ended December 26, 2003.

The net $22 million restructuring charge in 2003 represents the cost of CSX's reorganization
charges oÅset by reductions in 1991/1992 separation reserves. (See Note 4, Restructuring.)
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Operating Income

Operating income decreased $313 million to $541 million in 2003, compared to $854 million
in 2002 primarily due to the $229 million provision for casualty claims, the $22 million net
restructuring charge and other expense increases as previously discussed. Excluding the
provision for casualty claims and net restructuring charge, operating income would have been
$792 million.

2002 vs. 2001

Operating Revenue

Overall rail revenues were down $79 million to $6.0 billion in 2002, with increases in
merchandise and automotive revenues being oÅset by lower coal revenues. CSX's pricing
programs and product mix helped overcome a 3% decrease in carloads in 2002.

Merchandise Revenue

Overall merchandise revenues were up 1%, or $47 million in 2002 over 2001. Improvements
in phosphates and fertilizers, chemicals, emerging markets, metals and paper and forest
products more than oÅset decreases in minerals, agricultural products and food and consumer
products. Pricing programs and favorable mix helped the Company oÅset the eÅect of a small
decrease in merchandise carloads in 2002 as compared to 2001.

Automotive Revenue

Automotive revenues improved 6%, or $51 million in 2002 as a result of yield improvement
driven by favorable mix and extended linehauls. Year-over-year volume increases were driven by
higher light truck production levels and aggressive manufacturer incentives that stimulated
automobile sales during 2002.

Coal, Coke and Iron Ore Revenue

Coal revenues had a signiÑcant impact on the rail segment's 2002 Ñnancial results. Coal
revenue was down 9%, or $143 million from 2001's strong performance due to reduced volumes.
Export carloads were down signiÑcantly as a result of the reduced competitive standing of U.S.
coal in the international market, while metallurgical and industrial markets were down in the
second half of 2002.

Other Revenue

Other revenue decreased $35 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 primarily because there
were lower fuel surcharges billed to customers.

Operating Expense

Total rail operating expenses decreased $190 million, or 4% in 2002 as compared to 2001.
Reductions in most expense categories were somewhat oÅset by increases in depreciation and
reduced intercompany volume with CSX Intermodal. Also, 2001 included $60 million relating to
the New Orleans litigation settlement. Fuel costs decreased $76 million in 2002, of which
$69 million is attributable to lower fuel prices. The net impact on operating income of reduced
fuel price was $44 million since $25 million of fuel surcharge revenue was discontinued.

Labor and fringe costs decreased $44 million year-over-year including savings from
reductions in overall employment. These savings were oÅset by increased labor costs relating to
cost of living wage increases. Employee count was approximately 950 lower at the end of 2002
as compared to 2001.

19



Building and equipment costs were down $17 million mainly due to continued reduction in
car hire as the railroad took cars oÉine and ran more eÇciently.

Conrail operating fees, rents and services decreased $14 million in 2002 as compared to
2001. Decreased costs in operating the shared asset areas, tax settlements, eÇciency
improvements and adjustments to reÖect lower reserve requirements for car hire, overcharges,
interline and other claims all reduced this expense.

Materials, supplies and other costs at the rail unit were down $11 million in 2002, as
compared to 2001, due to reduced transportation costs, fewer accidents and adjustments to
estimated state and local tax liabilities to reÖect actual assessments. These decreases were
oÅset by higher legal fees and maintenance costs, and $40 million in favorable insurance
settlements received in 2001 that were not repeated in 2002.

Depreciation expense increased $26 million as compared to 2001, as a result of a higher
depreciable asset base.

Operating Income

Rail operating income increased by $111 million to $854 million in 2002 as compared to
2001, due to operating expense decreases noted previously and the New Orleans litigation
provision. Excluding the 2001 charge for the New Orleans litigation provision, operating income
was up $51 million or 6% for the year.

Intermodal

2003 vs. 2002

CSX Intermodal domestic revenue improved 13% on 8% volume increase due to increased
unloading and loading (""transloading'') of international containers into domestic containers and
new programs. Strength in truck brokerage continued due to the rollout of the new Pegasus
information management system, which provides real-time information regarding driver availability
and location, service quality tracking and Ñnancial performance. The parcel sector also showed
year-over-year strength. International strength in general import growth was partially oÅset by
continued international import/export diversions of freight carried entirely via water routes from
west coast ports to east coast ports. These diversions have resulted in volume declines, shorter
hauls and lower per-unit revenue.

Intermodal operating expense increased $108 million compared to the prior year. The
increase is due primarily to traÇc mix and inÖationary factors. Additionally, the Company
recognized a $15 million positive contract settlement in 2002. Operating income decreased to
$110 million in 2003, compared to $141 million in the prior year.

2002 vs. 2001

CSXI reported operating revenue of $1.2 billion in 2002, as compared to $1.1 billion in 2001.
The increase was primarily due to continued success in eÅorts to convert truck traÇc onto the
intermodal network.

CSXI operating expense increased $31 million in 2002. This increase was the result of
$32 million in higher inland transportation costs due to increased volumes handled during 2002.
Also, due to volume increases, building and equipment rent increased $8 million, and materials,
supplies and other increased $6 million. The increase was partially oÅset by a $15 million positive
contract settlement. Other costs were relatively Öat year-over-year.

CSXI operating income was up $37 million in 2002 as compared to 2001, due to the
$68 million increase in revenues, oÅset by a $31 million increase in operating expenses. These
results were also impacted by the $15 million positive contract settlement noted above.
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International Terminals

2003 vs. 2002

CSXWT's revenue decreased $10 million, or 4% to $226 million for 2003, compared to
$236 million in the prior year, primarily due to weakness in the Hong Kong market. Expense
decreased to $157 million for the year, compared to $167 million for 2002, partially attributable to
reduced labor and fringe costs associated with reduced volume at its Hong Kong operations and
a $6 million gain related to the divestiture of a portion of the Caucedo terminal ownership
interest, which oÅset other miscellaneous expenses in 2002. Operating income remained
consistent at $69 million in 2003 and 2002.

During 2003, a signiÑcant customer of CSXWT announced that it would terminate its marine
terminal services contract during the Ñrst quarter of 2004. This is expected to negatively impact
CSXWT's 2004 operating income by approximately $29 million and cash Öow by approximately
$21 million. In December 2004, another contract is scheduled to expire. Negotiations are in
process to maintain this contract, but if negotiations are unsuccessful, 2005 operating income
may be negatively impacted by $20 million. CSXWT expects that it will be able to replace all or
substantially all of the lost volume with new customers representing long and short-term
commercial commitments. However, due to the increased competitive pressures, it is possible
that the proÑt margins achieved in the past will not be realized in the near term. Under the
provisions of FASB Statement No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,'' companies are required to review their assets for potential impairment losses if
there are certain impairment indicators present. Given these indicators, the Company evaluated
the undiscounted cash Öows estimated to be generated by this terminal, whose long-lived assets
are recorded at $59 million, and concluded that the forecasted future undiscounted cash Öows
exceeded the book value of the assets; therefore no impairment write-down is necessary at this
time.

2002 vs. 2001

CSX World Terminals' operating revenues were Öat at $236 million in 2002 and 2001.
Operating expenses were up $2 million in 2002 over 2001 due to lower earnings from equity
investments. Miscellaneous operating expenses in 2002 and 2001 include $6 million and
$3 million gains, respectively, from transactions relating to equity investments. Operating income
was $69 million for 2002, a $2 million decrease from $71 million in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operations for 2003 was $804 million, compared to $1.1 billion for 2002,
and $827 million in 2001. The $323 million decrease in 2003, as compared to the prior year,
reÖects the $380 million termination of the accounts receivable facility. (See Note 8, Accounts
Receivable). Excluding that, cash provided by operating activities was slightly higher than 2002,
at $1.2 billion. Real estate activities contributed $122 million to operating cash Öow, as compared
to $137 million provided in 2002.

In 2002 cash provided from operations was $1.1 billion, a $300 million increase over 2001.
Higher operating income, lower interest expense and signiÑcant cash Öow relating to real estate
activities contributed to the increase, while there was a $85 million negative eÅect attributable to
the New Orleans tank car Ñre settlement payment.

Investing Activities

Net cash used by investing activities was $807 million in 2003 compared to $775 million in
2002 and $965 million in 2001. While 2003 capital expenditures approximated 2002 levels,
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reduced proceeds from maturities of short-term investments led to the increase in cash used for
investing activities. Proceeds of $214 million from the sale of CSX Lines in the Ñrst quarter of
2003 (See Note 3, Divestitures) helped to oÅset the impact of reduced short-term investment
proceeds.

Property additions totaled $1.1 billion in 2003 and 2002 and $930 million in 2001. The 2003
and 2002 increases over 2001 were related to replacement of cars and locomotives. Of Surface
Transportation's $1 billion in 2003 capital expenditures, substantially all related to replacing track,
locomotives and other costs necessary to maintain the Company's rail system. 2004 capital
expenditures are expected to be approximately $1 billion.

Financing Activities

Financing activities provided cash of $172 million during 2003 and $15 million in 2001,
compared to a $362 million use of cash during 2002. In 2003, net issuances of $419 million in
long-term debt were principally used to repay short-term obligations incurred as a result of the
termination of the Company's accounts receivable sales program.

Debt Issuances and Credit Facilities

In December 2003, CSX executed a $75 million revolving loan facility that matures in 2005.
Borrowings under the facility will bear interest at a rate that Öuctuates with LIBOR. In addition,
the Company pays an annual commitment fee of 0.15% for the period the facility is not drawn.
This debt may be redeemed at any time after May 2004, with additional borrowings allowed
through the maturity of the facility. As of December 26, 2003, the Company had $75 million in
aggregate principal amount outstanding under this borrowing.

In November 2003, CSX issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's
Notes due 2014 and $200 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's Notes due 2006.
The 2014 Notes bear interest at the rate of 5.30% per year and mature on February 15, 2014.
The 2006 Notes bear interest at the rate of 2.75% per year and mature on February 15, 2006.
The 2014 Notes may be redeemed by the Company at any time, but the 2006 Notes cannot be
redeemed before maturity.

In August 2003, the Company issued $300 million aggregate principal amount Notes due
2013. These Notes bear interest at the rate of 5.50% and mature on August 1, 2013. The Notes
may be redeemed by the Company at any time.

CSX increased its borrowings from Conrail by approximately $144 million year-over-year in
2003 in addition to the $146 million increase in 2002. Also, during 2002 the Conrail note was
extended to a Ñve year term.

During 2002, CSX issued $200 million of 4.88% notes due in 2009 and $400 million of 6.30%
notes due in 2012.

The Company has a $1 billion Ñve-year revolving credit facility and a $345 million 364-day
revolving credit facility. Generally, these facilities may be used to support the Company's
commercial paper, working capital and other general corporate purposes. Under the 364-day
facility, the Company pays an annual fee to the participating banks of .125% of total commitment.
Under the Ñve-year facility, the Company pays annual fees to the participating banks that may
range from 0.08% to 0.23% of total commitment, depending on the Company's credit rating. As of
December 26, 2003, the Company had no borrowings outstanding under these facilities and there
were no commercial paper borrowings outstanding. CSX had commercial paper borrowings
supported by these credit facilities of approximately $140 million at the end of 2002.
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Debt Repayments

CSX repaid long-term debt of $500 million in 2003, $1.2 billion in 2002, and $266 million in
2001. The Company also paid a net $141 million in short-term debt during 2003. The primary
sources of 2003 repayments were the $214 million of proceeds from the conveyance of CSX
Lines (see Note 3, Divestitures) and the issuance of new debt.

Long-term and short-term debt at December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, totaled
$7.3 billion and $7.1 billion, respectively. The ratio of debt to total capitalization was 51% at the
end of 2003, and 52% at the end of 2002 and 2001.

Convertible Debentures

In October 2001, CSX issued $564 million aggregate principal amount at maturity in
unsubordinated zero coupon convertible debentures (the ""debentures'') due October 30, 2021
for an initial oÅering price of approximately $462 million. At December 26, 2003 and
December 27, 2002, outstanding debentures are included in long-term debt, at a carrying value of
$447 million and $467 million, respectively. These debentures accrete (increase) in value at a
yield to maturity of 1% per year. The accretion rate may be reset on October 30, 2007,
October 30, 2011, and October 30, 2016 to a rate based on Ñve-year United States Treasury
Notes minus 2.8%. In no event, however, will the yield to maturity be reset below 1% or above
3% per annum. Accretion in value on the debentures is recorded for each period, but will not be
paid prior to maturity.

Under the terms of the debentures, holders had the option to require the Company to
purchase their debentures at a purchase price equal to the accreted value of the debentures in
October 2003. CSX purchased $15 million aggregate principal amount at maturity of the
debentures at an aggregate cost of $13 million. In November 2003, the Company made a one-
time cash payment of $23.00 per $1,000 aggregate principal amount at maturity to holders who
did not require the Company to purchase their debentures. This resulted in a $13 million cash
payment, which will be amortized over the remaining term of the debentures. In addition, the
terms of the debentures were amended to permit holders to cause the Company to purchase the
debentures on October 30, 2005, at their accreted value of $852.48 per $1,000 principal amount
at maturity, in addition to the purchase dates provided under the terms of the debentures.
Similarly, the debentures allow holders to require the Company to purchase their debentures in
October 2006, October 2008, October 2011, and October 2016, at a purchase price equal to the
accreted value of the debentures. In 2005, 2006 and 2008, CSX may elect to pay the purchase
price in cash and/or shares of common stock, while CSX may pay the purchase price only in
cash on the last two purchase dates. CSX may redeem the debentures for cash at any time on or
after October 30, 2008, at a redemption price equal to the accreted value of the debentures.

Holders may convert debentures into CSX common stock if certain requirements deÑned in
the debentures and the related indenture are met. Holders may convert if the closing sale price of
CSX common stock for at least 20 of the 30 preceding trading days is more than the applicable
percentage (which is initially 120% and will decline over the life of the debentures to 110%) of
the accreted conversion price per share of the Company's common stock. The ""accreted
conversion price'' per share of common stock is the quotient of the accreted value of a
debenture divided by the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of that
debenture. Holders may also convert if the Company's senior long-term unsecured credit ratings
are downgraded by Moody's Investors Service Inc. to below Ba1 and by Standard & Poor's
Rating Services to below BB°, if the debentures have been called for redemption, if the
Company makes speciÑed distributions to holders of CSX common stock, or if the company is a
party to speciÑed consolidations, mergers, or transfers or leases of all or substantially all of the
Company's assets. For each debenture surrendered for conversion, a holder will initially receive
17.75 shares of CSX common stock, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $46.16
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per share. The initial conversion rate will be adjusted for reasons speciÑed in the indenture, but
will not be adjusted for accretion. Instead, accretion on the debentures will be deemed paid by
the common stock received by the holder on conversion.

Shelf Registration Statements

CSX has $600 million of remaining capacity under a shelf registration that may be used,
subject to market conditions, to issue debt or other securities at the Company's discretion. The
Company presently intends to use the proceeds from the sale of any securities issued under its
shelf registration statements to Ñnance cash requirements, including reÑnancing existing debt as
it matures. While the Company seeks to give itself Öexibility with respect to meeting such needs,
there can be no assurance that market conditions would permit the Company to sell such
securities on acceptable terms at any given time, or at all.

Dividends

In mid-year 2001, the board of directors announced that the regular quarterly dividend
payable would be reduced to 10 cents per share. CSX had paid a regular quarterly dividend of 30
cents per share since the fourth quarter of 1997 and did so through June of 2001. Dividends paid
in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Dividend Per ShareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $0.40 $0.40 $0.80

Total Cash Paid for Dividends (In Millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 86 $ 86 $ 171

Working Capital

The Company's working capital deÑcit at December 26, 2003, was $307 million, as compared
to $665 million at December 27, 2002. A working capital deÑcit is not unusual for the Company
and other companies in the industry and does not indicate a lack of liquidity. The Company
continues to maintain adequate current assets to satisfy current liabilities and maturing
obligations when they come due and has suÇcient Ñnancial capacity to manage its day-to-day
cash requirements and any obligations arising from legal, tax and other regulatory rulings.

Credit Ratings

As of December 26, 2003, CSX Corporation's long-term unsecured debt obligations were
rated BBB and Baa2 by Standard and Poor's and by Moody's Investor Service, respectively. In
the event CSX's long-term unsecured bond ratings were reduced to BBB- and Baa3, the
Company's drawn and undrawn borrowing costs under the $1.0 billion and $345 million revolving
credit facilities would not materially increase. However, at year-end 2003, the Company had no
borrowings outstanding under these credit facilities. The Company's short-term commercial paper
program is rated A-2 and P-2 by Standard and Poor's and Moody's Investor Service,
respectively. Should these ratings decline to A-3 and P-3, the company's cost and access to the
commercial paper markets could be adversely aÅected. At year-end 2003, the Company had no
commercial paper borrowings outstanding.
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Schedule of Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth maturities of the Company's contractual obligations:

Type of Obligation 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

(Millions of Dollars)

Long-term Debt (see Note 11)(a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏ $426 $247 $ 598 $1,080 $ 615 $4,291 $ 7,257

Operating Leases Ì Net (see
Note 18)(b)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 150 138 112 117 98 516 1,131

Agreements with Conrail (see
Note 2)(c) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 260 247 236 229 224 3,118 4,314

Purchase Obligations (see Note 18)(d) 132 138 166 171 171 1,866 2,644

Total Contractual Obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $968 $770 $1,112 $1,597 $1,108 $9,791 $15,346

The following table sets forth the maturities of the Company's other commitments:

Type of Commitment 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

Unused Lines of Credit (see Note 11) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $345 $ Ì $1,000 $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $1,345

Guarantees (see Note 18)(e)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 140 122 98 140 102 240 842

OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 99 14 8 Ì Ì 36 157

Total Other Commitments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $584 $136 $1,106 $140 $102 $276 $2,344

(a) The fair market value of the interest rate swap agreements of $55 million, which is included in long-
term debt on the balance sheet, is not included on the debt maturity schedule. Capital leases of
$206 million are included in long-term debt.

(b) CSX has entered into various operating lease agreements primarily for rail transportation equipment.

(c) Agreements with Conrail represents commitments to pay Conrail per various agreements.

(d) Commercial commitments consists of a $2.6 billion maintenance program which expires in 2026 relating
to CSX's Öeet of locomotives. This program replaced an internal maintenance program.

(e) Approximately $440 million of these guarantees relate to certain lease obligations that CSX remains
contingently liable for that were assumed by Maersk. Accordingly, CSX has collateral liens on the
assets relating to these leases and indemnities provided by Maersk that it will fulÑll the commitments.
CSX believes that Maersk will fulÑll its contractual commitments with respect to such leases and that
CSX will have no further liabilities relating to these obligations. Approximately $97 million relates to
construction and cash deÑciency support guarantees at one of the Company's equity investments. CSX
guarantees approximately $300 million relating to leases assumed as part of CSX's conveyance of its
interest in CSX Lines.

OÅ-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There are no oÅ-balance sheet arrangements, except as noted above, that are reasonably
likely to have an eÅect on our Ñnancial condition or results of operations.

Market Risk

CSX addresses market risk exposure to Öuctuations in interest rates and the risk of volatility
in its fuel costs through the use of derivative Ñnancial instruments. The Company does not hold
or issue derivative Ñnancial instruments for trading purposes.

The Company addresses its exposure to interest rate market risk through a controlled
program of risk management that includes the use of interest rate swap agreements. As of
December 26, 2003, the Company had various interest rate swap agreements on $1.3 billion of
its outstanding notes payable. In the event of a 1% increase or decrease in the LIBOR interest
rate, the interest expense related to these agreements would increase or decrease approximately
$13 million on an annual basis.
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During 2003, the Company began a program to hedge its exposure to fuel price volatility
through swap transactions. As of December 26, 2003, CSX has hedged approximately 18% and
21% of expected requirements for 2004 and 2005, respectively. The Company expects that by
the end of 2004 the programs will result in an increase in the amount of fuel hedged to
approximately 76% of 2005 annual purchases. At December 26, 2003, a 1% change in fuel prices
would result in an increase or decrease in the asset related to the swaps of approximately
$1 million. The Company is subject to risk relating to changes in the price of diesel fuel. At the
end of 2003, the Company had not entered into any long-term commitments for forward fuel
purchases. The Company's rail unit average annual fuel consumption is approximately 570 million
gallons. A one-cent change in the price per gallon of fuel would impact fuel expense by
approximately $6 million.

The Company is exposed to loss in the event of non-performance by any counter-party to
the interest rate swap or fuel hedging agreements. The Company does not anticipate non-
performance by such counter-parties, and no material loss would be expected from non-
performance.

Exclusive of derivative contracts that swap Ñxed rate notes to Öoating interest rates, at
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, CSX had approximately $714 million and
$709 million, respectively, of Öoating rate debt outstanding. A 1% variance in interest rates would
on average eÅect annual interest expense by approximately $7 million.

While the Company's international terminals segment does business in several foreign
countries, a substantial portion of its revenue and expenses are transacted in U.S. dollars, or
currencies with little Öuctuation against the U.S. dollar. For this reason, CSX does not believe its
foreign currency market risk is signiÑcant.

A substantial increase in the fair market value of the Company's stock price could negatively
impact earnings per share due to the dilutive eÅect of stock options and convertible debt.

Investment In and Integrated Rail Operations with Conrail

See background, accounting and Ñnancial reporting eÅects and summary Ñnancial informa-
tion in Note 2, Investment In and Integrated Rail Operations with Conrail.

Conrail's Results of Operations

2003 vs. 2002

Conrail Inc. (""Conrail'') reported net income of $203 million in 2003, which included a
cumulative eÅect of accounting change beneÑt of $40 million. Excluding the cumulative eÅect of
accounting change, net income was $163 million, as compared with $180 million in 2002.
Operating revenues were up $25 million to $918 million from the prior year. However, operating
expenses were up 6% to $659 million.

In June 2003, CSX, Norfolk Southern Corporation (""NS'') and Conrail jointly Ñled a petition
with the Surface Transportation Board (""STB'') to establish direct ownership and control by
CSX's and NS' respective subsidiaries, CSX Transportation Inc. (""CSXT'') and Norfolk Southern
Railway (""NSR'') of their portions of the Conrail system already operated by them separately
and independently under various agreements. These portions of the Conrail system are currently
owned by Conrail's subsidiaries, New York Central Lines LLC (""NYC'') and Pennsylvania Lines
LLC (""PRR''). The ownership of NYC and PRR would be transferred (""spun oÅ'') to CSXT and
NSR, respectively. Conrail would continue to own, manage and operate the Shared Asset Areas
as previously approved by the STB. STB approval to proceed with the spin-oÅ transaction and a
favorable ruling from the IRS qualifying the
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transaction as a non-taxable disposition were received in November 2003. The transaction
remains subject to a number of other conditions.

If all necessary conditions are satisÑed, unsecured debt securities of newly formed
subsidiaries of CSXT and NSR would be oÅered in a 42%/58% ratio in exchange for Conrail's
unsecured debentures. The debt securities issued by its respective subsidiary would be fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by CSXT or NSR. Upon completion of the proposed transaction, the
subsidiaries would be merged into CSXT and NSR, respectively, and the new debt securities thus
would become direct unsecured obligations of CSXT or NSR. Conrail's secured debt and lease
obligations will remain obligations of Conrail and are expected to be supported by new leases
and subleases which, upon completion of the proposed transaction, would be the direct lease
and sublease obligations, also on a 42%/58% ratio, of CSXT and NSR. CSX will record the
proposed transaction at fair value based on the results of an independent valuation of NYC, with
any diÅerence from carrying value resulting in a gain or loss. The Company can not predict the
outcome of the valuation and the impact on the Company's Ñnancial statements.

CSX, NS and Conrail are working to complete the spin-oÅ transaction in 2004. Upon
consummation of the proposed transaction, CSX's investment in Conrail will no longer include the
amounts related to NYC and PRR. Instead the assets and liabilities of NYC will be reÖected in
their respective line items in CSX's consolidated balance sheet. Conrail will continue to own,
manage and operate the Shared Asset Areas.

2002 vs. 2001

Conrail reported net income of $180 million in 2002, compared with $174 million in 2001.
Operating revenues were down $10 million to $893 million in 2002, while operating expenses
were favorable $16 million year-over-year. Lower costs in the Shared Asset Areas, tax
settlements and lower reserve requirements for car hire, overcharges, interline and other claims
helped improve 2002 results.

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Conrail's operating activities provided cash of $412 million in 2003, compared with
$423 million in 2002 and $502 million in 2001. The decrease in cash provided by operations in
2003 is a result of decreased operating income. The decrease in cash provided by operations in
2002 compared to 2001 reÖected large payments of casualty claims. Cash generated from
operations is the principal source of liquidity and is primarily used for debt repayments and
capital expenditures.

Debt repayments totaled $57 million, $59 million and $61 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Capital expenditures were $35 million, $23 million and $47 million in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Total cash used for Ñnancing activities was $360 million, most of which results
from an increase in the amount receivable from CSX and Norfolk Southern under their respective
notes (See Note 2, Investment In and Integrated Rail Operations with Conrail).

Conrail had working capital deÑcits of $22 million and $29 million at December 26, 2003 and
December 27, 2002, respectively. A working capital deÑcit is not unusual for the Company and
does not indicate a lack of liquidity. The Company continues to maintain adequate current assets
to satisfy current liabilities and maturing obligations when they come due and has suÇcient
Ñnancial capacity to manage its day-to-day cash requirements and any obligations arising from
legal, tax and other regulatory rulings.

Divestitures

In February 2003, CSX conveyed most of its interest in its domestic container-shipping
subsidiary, CSX Lines LLC (""CSX Lines''), to a new venture formed with the Carlyle Group for
approximately $300 million (gross cash proceeds of approximately $240 million, $214 million net
of transaction costs, and $60 million of securities). CSX Lines was subsequently renamed
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Horizon Lines LLC (""Horizon''). Horizon has subleased equipment and/or assigned vessel
leases from certain aÇliates of CSX covering the primary Ñnancial obligations related to
$300 million of leases under which CSX or one of its aÇliates will remain a lessee/sublessor or
guarantor. A deferred pretax gain of approximately $127 million as a result of the transaction will
be recognized over the 12-year sub-lease term. Approximately $9 million of this gain was
recognized during 2003. The securities have a term of 7 years and a preferred return feature.
During the third quarter, CSX received a $15 million payment from Horizon Lines, which included
$3 million of interest, in return of a portion of its investment in Horizon and now holds $48 million
of securities.

Other Matters

Matters Arising out of Sale of International Container-Shipping Assets

In 2003, CSX Ñnalized a settlement agreement with Maersk resolving all remaining material
disputes pending directly between the two companies, consisting predominantly of two major
disputes. The Ñrst dispute involved a post-closing working capital adjustment to the sale price for
which the Company had recorded a receivable of approximately $70 million. The second dispute
involved a claim of 425 million Dutch Guilders (approximately $180 million at then prevailing
currency exchange rates) plus interest by Europe Container Terminals BV (""ECT'') alleging
breaches of contract by the Company at the Rotterdam container terminal facility owned by ECT.

Also in 2003, CSX entered into a Ñnal settlement agreement with Maersk allocating
responsibility between the two companies for third party claims and litigation relating to the
assets acquired by Maersk.

The two settlements reduced the Company's 2003 earnings by $108 million pretax,
$67 million after tax. This charge is reÖected in the Ñnancial statements as an additional loss on
the sale of the international container-shipping assets. Neither settlement has a material impact
on cash Öows.

Restructuring

In November 2003, the Company announced a management restructuring plan to streamline
the structure at a number of its companies, eliminate organizational layers and realign certain
functions. The initiative will reduce the non-union workforce by 800 to 1,000 positions over the
last quarter of 2003 and the Ñrst half of 2004. As of December 26, 2003, 20 employees have
been terminated under this program. The Company recorded an initial charge related to this
reduction of $34 million pretax, in 2003, to record the lowest amount of expense to be incurred
under this program. The total estimated cost of the program is expected to be in the range of
$60 million to $80 million. The majority of separation beneÑts will be paid from CSX's qualiÑed
pension plans, with the remainder being paid from general corporate funds.

Also in 2003, the Company recorded a $10 million restructuring charge related to another
workforce reduction program. Substantially all of this amount had been paid out at December 27,
2003.

In 2003, the Company recorded a $22 million pretax credit related to a favorable change in
estimate related to the 1991 and 1992 separation plans. These plans provided for workforce
reductions, improvements in productivity and other cost reductions. The reduction in estimate for
these plans results from lower railroad retirement taxes and other beneÑts than had been built
into the initial $1.3 billion charge.

A net $22 million restructuring charge was recorded representing the cost of the
restructuring initiatives oÅset by reductions in 1991/1992 separation reserves. The associated
expense is included in operating expense on the Income Statement as ""Restructuring Charge Ì
Net.''
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires that management make estimates in reporting the
amounts of certain assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the Ñnancial statements and the reported amount of certain revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results may diÅer from those estimates. SigniÑcant estimates
using management judgment are made for the following areas:

1. Casualty, legal and environmental reserves

2. Pension and postretirement medical plan accounting

3. Depreciation policies for its assets under the group-life method

These estimates and assumptions are discussed with the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors on a regular basis.

1. Casualty, Legal and Environmental Reserves

Casualty Reserve Management

Casualty reserves represent accruals for the uninsured portion of occupational injury and
personal injury claims. These reserves are recorded upon the Ñrst reporting of a claim, and
estimates are updated as information develops. The amount of liability accrued is based on the
type and severity of the claim, and an estimate of future claims development based on current
trends and historical data. The Company believes it has recorded liabilities in suÇcient amounts
to cover all identiÑed claims and estimates of incurred but not reported personal injury claims for
the next seven years. During 2003, the Company retained third party professionals to work with it
to project the number of asbestos and other occupational injury claims to be received over the
next seven years and the related costs. Based on this analysis the Company established
reserves for the probable and reasonably estimable asbestos and other occupational injury
liabilities. Other occupational claims include allegations of exposure to certain materials in the
work place, such as solvents and diesel fuel, or alleged physical injuries, such as carpal tunnel
syndrome or hearing loss. In conjunction with the change in estimate, in 2003 the Company
recorded a charge of $206 million to increase its provision for these claims. Approximately $141
million of this amount relates to asbestos claims. Additionally, the provision for personal injury
claims was increased by $26 million as a result of a change in estimate.

Estimates for all of these claims are subject to signiÑcant uncertainty relating to the
outcomes of negotiated settlements and other developments and are not suited to subjecting to a
sensitivity analysis. As facts and circumstances change, the Company may have to change its
estimates, and changes could have a material impact on the Company's Ñnancial results. Events
such as adverse verdicts, catastrophic accidents and legal settlements will cause the Company to
revise its estimated liabilities, which the Company reviews and appropriately adjusts quarterly.
Personal and occupational injury liabilities amount to $864 million and $605 million at
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, respectively. (See Note 10, Casualty, Environmental
and Other Reserves).

Legal Reserves

In accordance with SFAS 5, ""Accounting for Contingencies,'' an accrual for a loss
contingency is established if information available prior to issuance of the Ñnancial statements
indicates that it is (1) probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred
at the date of the Ñnancial statements, and (2) the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
If no accrual is made for a loss contingency because one or both of these conditions are not
met, or if an exposure to loss exists in excess of the amount accrued, disclosure of the
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contingency is made when there is at least a reasonable possibility that a loss or an additional
loss may have been incurred. The Company evaluates all exposures relating to legal liabilities on
an ongoing basis and records reserves when appropriate under the guidance noted above.

In 2003, CSX Ñnalized a settlement agreement with Maersk resolving all remaining material
disputes pending directly between the two companies, consisting predominantly of two major
disputes. The two settlements reduced the Company's 2003 earnings by $108 million pretax,
$67 million after tax. This charge is reÖected in the Ñnancial statements as an additional loss on
the sale of the international container-shipping assets. Neither settlement has a material impact
on cash Öows.

In 2001 Duke Energy Corporation (""Duke'') Ñled a complaint before the U.S. Surface
Transportation Board alleging that certain CSXT common carrier coal rates are unreasonably
high. In February 2004, the STB issued a decision Ñnding that the CSXT common carrier rates
were reasonable. While approving the rate levels, the STB also invited Duke to request a phase-
in of rate increases over some time period. The nature and amount of any such phase-in is
uncertain, and would only apply to billings subsequent to December 2001. CSXT will continue to
consider and pursue all available legal defenses in this matter. Administrative and legal appeals
are possible, and could take several years to resolve. An unfavorable outcome to this complaint
would not have a material eÅect on the Company.

The Company increased a reserve in 2001 to account for the impact of the negotiated
settlement of the New Orleans tank car Ñre. This negotiation resulted in the Company recording
an additional charge of $60 million pretax, $37 million after tax in 2001.

Environmental Management

CSXT is a party to various proceedings, including administrative and judicial proceedings,
involving private parties and regulatory agencies related to environmental issues. CSXT has been
identiÑed as a potentially responsible party (""PRP'') at approximately 260 environmentally
impaired sites, many of which are, or may be, subject to remedial action under the Federal
Superfund statute (""Superfund'') or similar state statutes. A number of these proceedings are
based on allegations that CSXT, or its railroad predecessors, sent hazardous substances to the
facilities in question for disposal. Some of the proceedings involve property formerly or currently
owned by CSXT or its railroad predecessors. Proceedings arising under Superfund or similar
state statutes can involve numerous other companies who generated the waste or owned or
operated the property and involve the allocation of liability for costs associated with site
investigation and cleanup, which could be substantial.

At least once each quarter, CSXT reviews its role with respect to each such location, giving
consideration to a number of factors, including:

‚ the type of cleanup required,

‚ the nature of CSXT's alleged connection to the location (e.g., generator of waste sent to
the site, or owner or operator of the site),

‚ the extent of CSXT's alleged connection (e.g., volume of waste sent to the location and
other relevant factors),

‚ the accuracy and strength of evidence connecting CSXT to the location,

‚ and the number, connection, and Ñnancial viability of other named and unnamed PRP's at
the location.

Based on the review process, CSXT has recorded reserves to cover estimated contingent
future environmental costs with respect to such sites. The recorded liabilities for estimated future
environmental costs at December 26, 2003, and December 27, 2002 were $45 million and

30



$35 million, respectively. These liabilities, which are undiscounted, include amounts representing
CSXT's estimate of unasserted claims, which CSXT believes to be immaterial. The liability
includes future costs for all sites where the Company's obligation is (1) deemed probable and
(2) can be reasonably estimated. The liability includes future costs for remediation and
restoration of sites as well as any signiÑcant ongoing monitoring costs, but excludes any
anticipated insurance recoveries. During 2003, the Company increased its estimate for
environmental liabilities by a net $10 million due to continuing evaluation of the adequacy of the
reserve. The majority of the December 26, 2003 environmental liability is expected to be paid out
over the next seven years.

The Company does not currently possess suÇcient information to reasonably estimate the
amounts of additional liabilities, if any, on some sites until completion of future environmental
studies. Also, changes in federal and state laws and regulations may impact, favorably or
unfavorably, the eÅort required to remediate sites. In addition, latent conditions at any given
location could result in exposure, the amount and materiality of which cannot presently be
reliably estimated. Based upon information currently available, however, the Company believes its
environmental reserves are adequate to accomplish remedial actions to comply with present laws
and regulations, and that the ultimate liability for these matters, if any, will not materially aÅect its
overall results of operations and Ñnancial condition.

2. Pension and Postretirement Medical Plan Accounting

The Company sponsors deÑned beneÑt pension plans, principally for salaried personnel. The
plans provide eligible employees with retirement beneÑts based principally on years of service
and compensation rates near retirement. In addition to the deÑned beneÑt pension plans, the
Company sponsors three plans that provide medical and life insurance beneÑts to most full-time
salaried employees upon their retirement. The postretirement medical plans are contributory
(partially funded by retirees), with retiree contributions adjusted annually. The life insurance plan
is non-contributory. The beneÑt obligation for these plans represents the liability of the Company
for current and retired employees and is aÅected primarily by the following:

1. Service cost (beneÑts attributed to employee service during the period)

2. Interest cost (interest on the liability due to the passage of time)

3. Actuarial gains/losses (experience during the year diÅerent from that assumed and
changes in plan assumptions)

4. BeneÑts paid to participants

Plan assets are amounts that have been segregated and restricted to provide beneÑts, and
include amounts contributed by the Company and amounts earned from investing contributions,
less beneÑts paid. The pension plans are funded at not less than the minimum funding standards
set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Plan assets consist primarily
of common stocks, corporate bonds and cash and cash equivalents. The Company funds the
cost of the postretirement medical and life insurance beneÑts on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
accounting for these plans is subject to the guidance provided in SFAS No. 87, ""Employers
Accounting for Pensions,'' and SFAS No. 106, ""Employers' Accounting for Postretirement
BeneÑts Other than Pensions.'' Both of these statements require that management make certain
assumptions relating to the following:

1. Long-term rate of return of plan assets

2. Discount rates used to measure future obligations and interest expense

3. Salary scale inÖation rates

4. Health care cost trend rates and other assumptions
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All of these assumptions and estimates can have a signiÑcant impact on the Company's
accounting for these plans and the amount of expense recorded in a reporting period. These
assumptions are made as of the beginning of the year. The Company uses a plan year of Oct. 1
through Sept. 30 to value its pension and postretirement plans on an actuarial basis. As
permitted by SFAS 87, the Company has elected to use this Ñscal year as it provides for more
timely analysis. The Company engages third-party actuaries to compute the amounts of liabilities
and expenses relating to these plans subject to the assumptions that the Company selects for its
plans. The Company reviews its actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and makes
modiÑcations to the assumptions based on current rates and trends when appropriate.
Additionally, as CSX expects a curtailment (event that impacts the future service, and therefore
beneÑts, to be earned by employees under the plan), to occur in the Ñrst quarter of 2004 as a
result of the Management Restructuring, and accordingly, will review actuarial assumptions as
required by SFAS 88 and SFAS 106. The impact of the curtailment is expected to be immaterial.
Currently, the Company does not expect any signiÑcant changes to its assumptions.

Long-term Rate of Return on Plan Assets

The expected return on the Company's pension plan assets is based on the Company's
expectation of the long-term average rate of return on assets in the pension funds (based on a
composite yield of AA-rated corporate bonds), which is reÖective of the current and projected
asset mix of the funds. As this estimate is long-term, it is not adjusted as frequently as other
assumptions used in pension accounting. However, the impact of the last few years' overall
market returns did cause CSX to reevaluate the rate used in calculating its liability at
September 30, 2002 (the end of the measurement period for 2002) and adjust it from 9.5% to
8.9%. This change will increase the amount of pension expense reported in future periods. The
Company evaluated the investment performance during 2003 as well as future expectations and
determined that an adjustment to the long-term rate of return is not warranted. CSX will continue
to evaluate its performance on an ongoing basis and if appropriate will adjust the long-term rate
of return. A 1% change in the rate of return assumption would change pension expense by
$15 million.

Discount Rates

Discount rates are based on comparable rates for long-term liabilities that reÖect a similar
time horizon to payments that the Company will make for pension and postretirement medical
payments. These rates are analyzed every year and adjusted accordingly. As such, management
has minimal discretion with respect to the discount rates used. The discount rate impacts the
amount of liability recorded and also the amount of the interest expense component of pension
and postretirement expense. CSX's assumed discount rates used in calculating the liability at
September 30, 2003 and September 30, 2002, respectively, were 6.0% and 6.5% for the pension
liabilities and 5.0% and 5.5% for postretirement medical beneÑts. The diÅerence between the rate
used for pension vs. postretirement is due to the diÅerent time horizon of future payments.

Salary Scale InÖation

Salary scale inÖation rates are based on current trends and historical data accumulated by
the Company. The Company reviews this assumption on a regular basis and makes adjustments
when appropriate. CSX lowered this rate from 4.5% in 2001 to 3.3% for 2002 and 2003.

Health Care Cost Trend Rates

The health care cost trend rate is based on current trends and historical data. Due to the
increasing costs of providing health care beneÑts, the Company increased the inÖation
assumption for health care costs for the 2002 year. No changes were deemed necessary to the
health care cost trend rate in 2003. The current assumed rate is 11% decreasing gradually until
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reaching 4.5% in 2012. A 1% change in the health care cost trend rate assumption would eÅect
expense by $2 million.

Summary Pension Assumptions

Postretirement
Pension BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Expected Long-term Return on Plan Assets:

BeneÑt Cost for Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.90% 9.50% n/a n/a

BeneÑt Obligation at End of Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.90% 8.90% n/a n/a

Discount Rates:

BeneÑt Cost for Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.50% 7.25% 5.50% 7.25%

BeneÑt Obligation at End of Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.00% 6.50% 5.00% 5.50%

Salary Scale InÖationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.30%

Other Assumptions Relating to Pensions and Postretirement BeneÑts

The calculations made by the actuaries also include assumptions relating to mortality rates,
turnover, and retirement age. These assumptions are based on historical data and are approved
by management. As a result of changes in assumptions for Ñscal year 2004, net periodic pension
beneÑt cost and postretirement beneÑt costs for 2004 are expected to increase approximately
$7 million.

In December 2003, the President of the United States signed into law the ""Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003'' (""the Act''), which introduces a
prescription drug beneÑt under Medicare Part D as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of
retiree health care beneÑt plans that provide a beneÑt that is actuarially equivalent to Medicare
Part D. SFAS 106 requires that changes in the law that take eÅect in the future and aÅect future
beneÑt coverage shall be considered in current-period beneÑt measurements. However, as
signiÑcant uncertainties exist for how to account for the subsidy a plan sponsor may not have
suÇcient information available to measure eÅects of the Act, prepare related actuarial valuations,
and ensure proper accounting. Therefore, FASB has issued staÅ position No. FAS 106-1 which
allows a plan sponsor to elect to defer recognizing the eÅects of the Act until authoritative
guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy is issued, or until certain other events occur.
When the guidance is issued, it may cause CSX to revise previously reported information. CSX is
currently evaluating how this legislation may impact its postretirement beneÑt plans. (See
Note 17, ""Employee BeneÑt Plans.'')

3. Depreciation Policies Under the Group-Life Method

The Company accounts for its rail assets, including main-line track, locomotives and freight
cars, using the group-life method. This method pools similar assets by road and equipment type
and then depreciates each group as a whole. These assets represent 94% of the Company's
total Ñxed assets and amounted to $12.9 billion on a net basis at December 26, 2003. Under the
group-life method, the useful lives of rail assets are determined by the performance of a life-
study which includes:

‚ statistical analysis of historical retirements for each group of property

‚ evaluation of the current operations

‚ previous assessment of the condition of the assets and outlook for their continued use

‚ comparison of assets to the same asset groups with other companies.
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The results of the life study process determine the service lives for each asset group. These
studies are conducted by a third party expert and analyzed by the Company's management.
Changes in asset lives due to the results of the life studies could signiÑcantly impact future
periods depreciation expense and thus the Company's results of operations. Events that could
cause the Company to change its estimates relating to the lives of its asset groups could be
changes in historical results, technological improvements and changes in speciÑc assets. In 2003,
the Company completed life studies for all of its rail assets. The eÅect of theses studies was to
increase the average useful lives on its equipment and track assets, while decreasing the
average useful lives on many of the roadway assets. These changes in average useful lives of
the assets will have minimal net reduction on depreciation expense in the future. As a result, the
net increase in depreciation expense was $1 million in 2003, while the impact will be a decrease
of approximately $13 million in 2004 and thereafter.

Additionally, with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (""SFAS'') 143,
""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations'' in 2003, CSX recorded pretax income of
$93 million, $57 million after tax as a cumulative eÅect of an accounting change, representing the
reversal of the accrued liability for crosstie removal costs. On an ongoing basis, depreciation
expense will be reduced, while labor and fringe and materials, supplies and other expense will be
increased by approximately $12 million annually.

In 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee (AcSEC) of the American Institute
of CertiÑed Public Accountants voted to approve the Statement of Position (SOP) Accounting for
Certain Costs and Activities related to Property, Plant and Equipment and presented it to the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) for approval. If the FASB causes the SOP to be
applicable, certain costs and activities that are currently capitalized may require immediate
recognition and alternatively, some costs and activities that are currently expensed may require
capitalization. In addition, the SOP will require additional reÑnement in asset componentization,
potentially altering the amount of depreciation expense recognized. While the Company is
evaluating the proposal, it has not yet determined what eÅect it may have if passed by the FASB.
However, the eÅect could be material.

New Accounting Pronouncements and Change In Accounting Policy

SFAS 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations'' was issued in 2001. This
statement addresses Ñnancial accounting and reporting for legal obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated retirement costs. In conjunction with
the group-life method of accounting for asset costs, the Company historically accrued crosstie
removal costs as a component of depreciation, which is not permitted under SFAS 143. As noted
above, with the adoption of SFAS 143 in Ñscal year 2003, CSX recorded pretax income of
$93 million, $57 million after tax as a cumulative eÅect of an accounting change, representing the
reversal of the accrued liability for crosstie removal costs. The adoption of SFAS 143 did not
have a material eÅect on prior reporting periods, and the Company does not believe it will have a
material eÅect on future earnings. On an ongoing basis, depreciation expense will be reduced,
while labor and fringe and materials, supplies and other expense will be increased by
approximately $12 million annually.

SFAS 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition and Disclosure'' was
issued in December 2002. SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,'' to provide alternative methods of transition to Statement 123's fair value method
of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and require disclosure of the eÅects of an
entity's accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation. EÅective
beginning with Ñscal year 2003, CSX has voluntarily adopted the fair value recognition provisions
of SFAS 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,'' and adopted the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition and
Disclosure Ì an amendment of SFAS 123.'' In accordance with the prospective method of

34



adoption permitted under SFAS 148, stock-based awards issued subsequent to Ñscal year 2002
are accounted for under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 utilizing the Black-
Scholes valuation method and, accordingly, are expensed. (See Note 15, Stock Plans.)

In 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'') issued Interpretation No. 46,
""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,'' which requires a variable interest entity (""VIE'') to
be consolidated by a company that is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable
interest entity's activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity's residual returns, or
both. Interpretation No. 46 also requires disclosures about VIEs that the company is not required
to consolidate but in which it has a signiÑcant variable interest. Also in 2003, Interpretation 46
(""46R''), a revision to FASB Interpretation No. 46 was issued, to clarify some of the provisions
of, and to exempt certain entities from Interpretation 46 requirements. Under the new guidance,
CSX will consolidate Four Rivers Transportation, Inc. (""FRT''), a shortline railroad, into its
Ñnancial statements at the beginning of Ñscal 2004. Presently, FRT is accounted for under the
equity method of accounting. The adoption of Interpretation No. 46 will not have a material
impact on results of operations in future reporting periods.

In 2002, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard Interpretation (""FASI'') No. 45,
""Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.'' This statement requires that certain guarantees be
recorded at fair value on the statement of Ñnancial position and additional disclosures be made
about guarantees. CSX did not realize a Ñnancial statement impact with the adoption of the
accounting provisions of this statement in Ñscal year 2003 and does not anticipate a future
impact. (See Note 18, Commitments and Contingencies.)

In 2001, SFAS 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets'', was issued. Under the
provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill and other indeÑnite lived intangible assets are no longer
amortized, but are reviewed for impairment on a periodic basis. The Company adopted this
standard for Ñscal 2002, and incurred a pretax charge of $83 million, $43 million after tax and
minority interest as a cumulative eÅect of an accounting change, which represents the diÅerence
between book value and the fair value of indeÑnite lived intangible assets. These indeÑnite lived
intangible assets are permits and licenses that the Company holds relating to a proposed
pipeline to transfer natural gas from Alaska's North Slope to the port in Valdez, Alaska. The fair
value was determined using a discount method of projected future cash Öows relating to these
assets. The carrying value of these assets is now approximately $3 million. The adoption of
SFAS 142 did not have a material eÅect on prior reporting periods, and the Company does not
believe it will have a material eÅect on future earnings. The Company does not have any other
signiÑcant indeÑnite lived intangible assets.

In 2002, SFAS 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,'' was
issued. This statement requires that long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are no longer
measured on a net realizable value basis, and future operating losses are no longer recognized
before they occur. In addition, this statement modiÑes the reporting requirements for discontin-
ued operations. Long-lived assets, whether to be held for disposition or held and used, should be
measured at the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less cost to dispose. The Company
applied the provisions of this statement relating to the accounting for the conveyance of its
wholly-owned subsidiary, CSX Lines, to a third party in 2003 (See Note 3, Divestitures). In
addition, another of the Company's subsidiaries, CSX World Terminals, was notiÑed of a
signiÑcant customer loss for 2004 and possible customer loss for 2005. Given these indicators,
the Company evaluated the undiscounted cash Öows estimated to be generated by this terminal,
whose long-lived assets are recorded at $59 million and concluded that the forecasted future
undiscounted cash Öows exceeded the book value of its long-lived assets, therefore no
impairment write-down is necessary at this time.

35



Regulation and Legislation

Rail operations are subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Surface Transportation Board
(""STB'') of the United States Department of Transportation (""DOT''), the Federal Railroad
Administration of DOT and other state and regulatory agencies. The regulation and legislation
passed by these organization can signiÑcantly aÅect the costs and proÑtability of the Company's
business.

In response to the heightened threat of terrorism in the wake of the September 2001 attacks
on the World Trade Center, Pentagon and airline infrastructure, federal, state and local regulatory
agencies are evaluating various proposals with respect to the transportation industry. Some of
these proposals relate to the transport of hazardous material. Certain metropolitan areas
considered at high risk for a terrorist attack may be the subject of future regulation. The ultimate
legislation passed by federal, state and local regulators related to issues of security has the
potential to severely aÅect CSX's operations and costs.

Factors Expected to InÖuence 2004

During the upcoming year, there are several key areas which continue to aÅect the
operations and proÑtability of CSX. Management believes that the Company must remain focused
on improving the eÇciency of its rail network, reducing its operating expense and restoring
higher service levels. General economic factors, including the cost of fuel, may also inÖuence
2004 operating results.

Improving operating eÇciency in Surface Transportation while maintaining volume is critical
to success in lowering the operating ratio, and in turn improving Ñnancial performance. To do so,
management believes that CSX must optimize its network routing, including a reduction in both
gross ton miles and the number of times a car is handled or switched en route to the Ñnal
destination. CSX is utilizing internal and external consultants to assist with the network
optimization eÅort.

Fuel represents a signiÑcant expense of CSX Surface Transportation operations and was a
factor in 2003 expense increases. Fuel prices can vary signiÑcantly from period to period and
signiÑcantly impact future results. Although CSX has implemented a fuel price hedging program,
it will remain subject to fuel price Öuctuations for the majority of 2004 fuel purchases.
Approximately 18% of 2004 fuel purchases are currently hedged at an average cost of 70 cents
per gallon, exclusive of taxes and transportation costs. Each month, the Company is
systematically increasing its hedged amount so that in July of 2005, 76% of the estimated fuel
purchases should be hedged for a 24 month period.

CSX faces inherent business risk of exposure to property damage and personal injury claims
in the event of train accidents, including derailments. The Company is also subject to exposure to
occupational injury claims. While CSX is working diligently to enhance its safety programs and to
continue to raise the awareness levels of its employees concerning safety, the Company cannot
ensure that it will not experience any material property damage, personal or occupational claims
in the future or that we will not incur signiÑcant costs to defend such claims. Additionally, the
Company cannot ensure that existing claims will not suÅer adverse development not currently
reÖected in reserve estimates, as the ultimate outcome of existing claims is subject to numerous
factors which are outside of CSX's control. CSX engages outside parties to assist with the
evaluation of certain of the occupational and personal injury claims, and believes that it is
adequately reserved to cover all potential claims. However, Ñnal amounts determined to be due
to any outstanding matters may diÅer materially from the recorded reserves.

The ability of the Company to eÅectively implement the management restructuring will be an
important factor in future success. Once complete, the organization of the Company should be
conducive to enhanced accountability, faster, more reliable communication, better decision
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making and a more competitive cost structure. Executing the restructuring while minimizing the
impact of the possible disruption associated with the elimination of a signiÑcant portion of the
Company's existing management will be critical to the Company's short-term success.

The ability of the Company to replace, in both the long and short-term, the business lost due
to competitive pressures in the Hong Kong terminals market will have a direct impact on the
proÑtability of the Company's International Terminals segment. While management is diligently
working to attract new customers, there can be no guarantee that new customers will be gained.
Also, it is likely that the margins experienced in the past at the Company's Hong Kong terminal
operations will not continue for the near term, even if the lost volume is replaced. The
International Terminals segment's revenue and operating income represented approximately 3%
and 11% of the Company's consolidated revenues and operating income, respectively for 2003.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act with respect to, among other items:

‚ projections and estimates of earnings, revenues, cost-savings, expenses, or other Ñnancial
items;

‚ statements of management's plans, strategies and objectives for future operations, and
management's expectations as to future performance and operations and the time by
which objectives will be achieved;

‚ statements concerning proposed new products and services; and

‚ statements regarding future economic, industry or market conditions or performance.

Forward-looking statements are typically identiÑed by words or phrases such as ""believe'',
""expect'', ""anticipate'', ""project'', and similar expressions. The Company cautions against
placing undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reÖect its current beliefs and are
based on information currently available to it as of the date the forward-looking statement is
made. The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement.
If the Company does update any forward-looking statement, no inference should be drawn that
the Company will make additional updates with respect to that statement or any other forward-
looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and actual
performance or results could diÅer materially from that anticipated by these forward-looking
statements. Factors that may cause actual results to diÅer materially from those contemplated by
these forward-looking statements include, among others:

‚ Operating factors Ì the Company's success in implementing its Ñnancial and operational
initiatives, the extent to which the Company is successful in gaining long-term relationships
with new customers or retaining existing relationships with current customers, changes in
operating conditions and costs, competition, commodity concentrations, computer viruses,
changes in labor costs and labor diÇculties including stoppages aÅecting either the
Company's operations or our customers' ability to deliver goods to the Company for
shipment, loss of essential services such as electricity, and natural occurrences such as
extreme weather conditions, Öoods and earthquakes or other disruptions of the Com-
pany's operations, systems, property or equipment;

‚ General economic and industry factors Ì material changes in domestic or international
economic or business conditions, including those aÅecting the rail industry such as
customer demand, eÅects of adverse economic conditions aÅecting shippers, adverse
economic conditions in the industries and geographic areas that consume and produce
freight, competition from other modes of freight transportation such as trucking,
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competition and consolidation within the transportation industry generally, changes in fuel
prices and changes in securities and capital markets;

‚ Legal and regulatory factors Ì developments and changes in laws and regulations, the
ultimate outcome of shipper and rate claims subject to adjudication, environmental
investigations or proceedings and the outcome of other types of claims and litigation
involving or aÅecting the Company.

Other important assumptions and factors that could cause actual results to diÅer materially
from those in the forward-looking statements are speciÑed elsewhere in this Annual Report and
in the Company's other SEC reports, accessible on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov and the
Company's website at www.csx.com.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The information required by this item is included in Part II, Item 7, ""Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations'' under the heading
""Market Risk.''
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CSX CORPORATION

REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of CSX Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of CSX Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, and the related consolidated
statements of income, cash Öows, and changes in shareholders' equity for each of the three
Ñscal years in the period ended December 26, 2003. These consolidated Ñnancial statements are
the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated Ñnancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall Ñnancial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated Ñnancial position of CSX Corporation and subsidiaries at
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash Öows for each of the three Ñscal years in the period ended December 26, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements, in 2003 the Company
changed its method of accounting for railroad tie removal costs and stock-based compensation,
and in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting for indeÑnite lived intangible assets.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Jacksonville, Florida
February 10, 2004
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CSX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For Fiscal Years Ended

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002 Dec. 28, 2001

(Dollars in Millions,
Except Per Share Amounts)

Operating Income

Operating RevenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 7,793 $ 8,152 $ 8,110

Operating Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,167 7,025 7,153

Operating Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 626 1,127 957

Other Income and Expense

Other Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 57 41 9

Interest Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 418 445 518

Earnings

Earnings Before Income Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 265 723 448

Income Tax Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76 256 155

Earnings before Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting ChangeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 189 467 293

Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change, Net of
Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 57 (43) Ì

Net EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 246 $ 424 $ 293

Per Common Share

Earnings Per Share:

Before Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.88 $ 2.20 $ 1.39

Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.26 (0.20) Ì

Including Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏ $ 1.14 $ 2.00 $ 1.39

Earnings Per Share, Assuming Dilution:

Before Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.88 $ 2.19 $ 1.38

Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.26 (0.20) Ì

Including Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏ $ 1.14 $ 1.99 $ 1.38

Average Common Shares Outstanding (Thousands)ÏÏÏ 213,964 212,729 211,668

Average Common Shares Outstanding,

Assuming Dilution (Thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 214,396 213,512 212,409

Cash Dividends Paid Per Common Share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.80

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CSX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 368 $ 264

Accounts Receivable Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,163 799

Materials and SuppliesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 170 180

Deferred Income Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 136 128

Assets Held for DispositionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 263

Other Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 66 155

Total Current AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,903 1,789

Properties ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19,267 18,560

Accumulated DepreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,537 5,274

Properties Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,730 13,286

Investment in Conrail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,678 4,653

AÇliates and Other Companies ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 515 381

Other Long-term AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 934 842

Total Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $21,760 $20,951

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 827 $ 802

Labor and Fringe BeneÑts PayableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 397 457

Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 280 246

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 426 391

Short-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2 143

Income and Other Taxes Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 123 144

Liabilities Held for Disposition ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 104

Other Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 155 167

Total Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,210 2,454

Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 836 604

Long-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,886 6,519

Deferred Income Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,752 3,567

Other Long-term Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,623 1,566

Total Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,307 14,710

Shareholders' Equity

Common Stock, $1 Par Value ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 215 215

Other CapitalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,579 1,547

Retained Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,957 4,797

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (298) (318)

Total Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,453 6,241

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $21,760 $20,951

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CSX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Fiscal Years Ended

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002 Dec. 28, 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating Activities
Net EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 246 $ 424 $293
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Net Cash

Provided:
Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 643 649 622
Deferred Income TaxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 119 172 197
Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change, Net of Tax (57) 43 Ì
Additional Loss on SaleÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 108 Ì Ì
Provision for Casualty ReservesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 232 Ì Ì
Restructuring Ì NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22 Ì Ì
Other Operating ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (108) (108) (13)
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Termination of Sale of Receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (380) Ì Ì
Accounts Receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19 30 7
Other Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 40 23 (17)
Accounts Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 49 (83) (51)
Other Current LiabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (129) (23) (211)

Net Cash Provided by Operating ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 804 1,127 827

Investing Activities
Property Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,059) (1,080) (930)
Net Proceeds from Divestitures and Sale of Assets ÏÏÏÏ 214 Ì Ì
Short-term Investments Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 68 350 (51)
Other Investing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (30) (45) 16

Net Cash Used by Investing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (807) (775) (965)

Financing Activities
Short-term Debt Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (141) 140 (524)
Long-term Debt Issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 919 748 962
Long-term Debt RepaidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (500) (1,159) (266)
Dividends Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (86) (86) (171)
Other Financing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20) (5) 14

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏ 172 (362) 15

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 169 (10) (123)
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 127 137 260

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 296 127 137
Short-term Investments at End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 72 137 481

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments at
End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 368 $ 264 $618

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Interest Paid Ì Net of Amounts Capitalized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 415 $ 448 $509
Income Taxes Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 134 $ 44 $250

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CSX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Accumulated
Shares Other

Outstanding Common Other Retained Comprehensive
(Thousands) Stock Capital Earnings Loss Total

(Dollars in Millions)

Balance Dec. 29, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 212,738 $213 $1,467 $4,337 $ Ì $6,017

Comprehensive Earnings:

Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 293 Ì 293

Other Comprehensive Income
(See Note 13) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì (45) (45)

Comprehensive EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 248

Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (171) Ì (171)

Common Stock Issued
(Repurchased) Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 950 1 25 Ì Ì 26

Balance Dec. 28, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 213,688 214 1,492 4,459 (45) 6,120

Comprehensive Earnings:

Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 424 Ì 424

Other Comprehensive Income
(See Note 13) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì (273) (273)

Comprehensive EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 151

Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (86) Ì (86)

Common Stock Issued
(Repurchased) Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 999 1 55 Ì Ì 56

Balance Dec. 27, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 214,687 215 1,547 4,797 (318) 6,241

Comprehensive Earnings:

Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 246 Ì 246

Other Comprehensive Income
(See Note 13) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 20 20

Comprehensive EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 266

Dividends ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (86) Ì (86)

Common Stock Issued
(Repurchased) Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 384 Ì 32 Ì Ì 32

Balance Dec. 26, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 215,071 $215 $1,579 $4,957 $(298) $6,453

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations and SigniÑcant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

CSX Corporation, including its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively, ""CSX'' or ""Com-
pany''), is a freight transportation company with principal business units providing rail, intermodal
and international terminal services.

‚ Rail transportation services are provided principally throughout the Eastern United States
and accounted for 79% of the Company's 2003 operating revenue.

‚ Intermodal services are provided through a dedicated network of terminals and facilities
across North America and accounted for 16% of operating revenue in 2003.

‚ International terminal operations are located in Asia, Europe, Australia and Latin America
and accounted for 3% of operating revenues in 2003.

In 2003, CSX conveyed most of its interest in its domestic container-shipping subsidiary,
CSX Lines LLC (""CSX Lines''), to a new venture formed with the Carlyle Group for
approximately $300 million (gross cash proceeds of approximately $240 million, $214 million net
of transaction costs and $60 million of securities). (See Note 3, Divestitures.)

Rail shipments include merchandise, automotive products and coal, coke and iron ore.
Service groups as a percent of rail revenue are as follows:

Fiscal Years
Ended

2003 2002

MerchandiseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 60% 58%

Automotive ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14% 14%

Coal, Coke and Iron OreÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26% 27%

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1%

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 100% 100%

Merchandise traÇc includes the following markets:

‚ Phosphates and Fertilizer ‚ Agricultural and Food

‚ Metals ‚ Chemicals

‚ Forest and Industrial ‚ Emerging Markets

Coal shipments originate mainly from mining locations in the Eastern United States and
primarily supply domestic utility and export markets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated Ñnancial statements include CSX and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All
signiÑcant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Investments in
companies that are not majority-owned are carried at cost (if less than 20% owned and the
Company has no signiÑcant inÖuence) or equity (if the Company has signiÑcant inÖuence).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Fiscal Year

CSX follows a 52/53 week Ñscal reporting calendar. Fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001
consisted of 52 weeks. A 52-week Ñscal year has four 13-week quarters. A 53-week year occurs
periodically with the next one occurring in 2004. Fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 ended on:

‚ December 26, 2003

‚ December 27, 2002

‚ December 28, 2001

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing income available to common stockholders
by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Earnings per
share, assuming dilution, starts with the basic calculation described above and adjusts the
denominator for the eÅect of potential dilution of common shares during the period, mainly from
employee stock options. This diÅerence increases the denominator for the additional common
shares that would have been outstanding if these shares had been issued. Potentially dilutive
common shares at CSX include stock options and awards, and shares that would be issued
relating to convertible long-term debt. References to earnings per share in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements assume dilution.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

On a daily basis, cash in excess of current operating requirements is invested in various
highly liquid investments having a maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisition.
These investments are carried at cost, which approximates market value, and are classiÑed as
cash equivalents.

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies consist primarily of fuel and items for replacement and maintenance
of track and equipment, and are carried at average cost.

Properties

All properties are stated at cost less an allowance for accumulated depreciation. Rail assets,
including main-line track, locomotives and freight cars are depreciated using the group-life
method. This method pools similar assets by road and equipment type and then depreciates each
group as a whole. These assets represent approximately 94% of the Company's total Ñxed
assets and amounted to $12.9 billion on a net basis at December 26, 2003. The majority of other
property is depreciated using the straight-line method on a per asset basis.

Regulations enforced by the Surface Transportation Board (""STB'') of the U.S. Department
of Transportation require periodic formal studies of ultimate service lives for all railroad assets,
which include:

‚ statistical analysis of historical retirements for each group of property

‚ evaluation of the current operations

‚ previous assessment of the condition of the assets and outlook for their continued use

‚ comparison of assets to the same asset groups with other companies.

46



CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

The results of the life study process determine the service lives for each asset group under
the group-life method. These studies are conducted by a third party expert and analyzed by the
Company's management. Resulting service life estimates are subject to review and approval by
the STB. Road assets, including main-line track, have estimated service lives ranging from 5
(system roadway machinery) to 80 (grading) years. Equipment assets, including locomotives
and freight cars, have estimated service lives ranging from 6 (vehicles) to 29 (work equipment)
years.

Changes in asset lives due to the results of the life studies could signiÑcantly impact future
periods depreciation expense and thus the Company's results of operations. Events that could
cause the Company to change its estimates relating to the lives of its asset groups could be
changes in historical results, technological improvements and changes in speciÑc assets. The
Company completed life studies on road, track and equipment in 2003 and has partially reÖected
the results in its 2003 Ñnancial statements. As a result, the net increase in depreciation expense
was $1 million in 2003, while the impact will be a decrease of approximately $13 million in 2004
and thereafter.

For retirements or disposals of depreciable rail assets that occur in the ordinary course of
business, the asset cost (net of salvage value or sales proceeds) is charged to accumulated
depreciation and no gain or loss is recognized. For retirements or disposals of non-rail
depreciable assets, infrequent disposal of rail assets outside the normal course of business and
for all dispositions of land, the resulting gains or losses are recognized at the time of disposal.
Expenditures that signiÑcantly increase asset values or extend useful lives are capitalized. Repair
and maintenance expenditures are charged to operating expense when the work is performed.

Properties and other long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
business conditions indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be fully recoverable.
Initial assessments of recoverability are based on estimates of undiscounted future net cash
Öows associated with an asset or a group of assets in accordance with SFAS 144. Where
impairment is indicated, the assets are evaluated, and their carrying amount is reduced to fair
value based on undiscounted net cash Öows or other estimates of fair value.

The FASB is currently considering the proposed Statement of Position (SOP), ""Accounting
for Certain Costs and Activities related to Property, Plant and Equipment'' If this SOP is issued,
certain costs and activities that are currently capitalized may require immediate expense
recognition and alternatively, some costs and activities that are currently expensed may require
capitalization. In addition, the SOP would require additional reÑnement in asset componentization.
potentially altering the amount of depreciation expense recognized. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact on the Ñnancial statements, but is not yet in a position to
determine what eÅect it may have if passed by the FASB. However, the eÅect could be material.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Surface Transportation (rail and intermodal) revenue and expense are recognized propor-
tionately as freight moves from origin to destination. Prior to the conveyance of CSX Lines in
2003, container-shipping revenue, and a corresponding accrual for the estimated cost to
complete delivery, was recorded when cargo Ñrst sailed from its port of origin. International
Terminals revenue and expense are recognized when vessels depart from the terminal. All other
revenue is recorded upon completion of service.
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Casualty Reserves

Casualty reserves represent accruals for the uninsured portion of occupational injury and
personal injury claims. These reserves are recorded upon the Ñrst reporting of a claim, and
estimates are updated as information develops. The amount of liability accrued is based on the
type and severity of the claim and an estimate of future claims development based on current
trends and historical data. The Company believes it has recorded liabilities in suÇcient amounts
to cover all identiÑed claims and estimates of incurred but not reported personal injury and
accident claims. In 2003, the Company changed its estimate of casualty reserves to also include
an estimate of incurred but not reported claims for asbestos and other occupational injuries to be
received over the next seven years. Other occupational claims include allegations of exposure to
certain materials in the work place, such as solvents and diesel fuel, or alleged physical injuries,
such as carpal tunnel syndrome or hearing loss. In conjunction with the change in estimate, in
2003 the Company recorded a charge of $206 million to increase its provision for these claims.
Approximately $141 million of this amount relates to asbestos claims. Additionally, the provision
for personal injury claims was increased by $26 million as a result of a change in estimate.

Personal and occupational injury liabilities amount to $864 million and $605 million at
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, respectively.

Environmental Costs

The Company incurs costs for environmental corrective eÅorts, such as the study and clean-
up of environmental contamination. Environmental costs are charged to expense when they relate
to an existing condition caused by past operations and do not contribute to current or future
revenue generation. Liabilities for environmental corrective eÅorts are recorded when CSX's
responsibility is (1) deemed probable and (2) the amount can be reasonably estimated.
Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with the completion of a feasibility study or the
Company's commitment to a formal plan of action. Environmental reserves at December 26, 2003
and December 27, 2002 were $45 million and $35 million, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

EÅective beginning with Ñscal year 2003, CSX voluntarily adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,'' and adopted the
disclosure requirements of SFAS 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition
and Disclosure Ì an amendment of SFAS 123.'' In accordance with the prospective method of
adoption permitted under SFAS 148, the Company has adopted the fair value recognition
provisions on a prospective basis and accordingly, expense of $5 million was recognized in the
year ended December 26, 2003 for stock options granted in May 2003. Additionally, $3 million of
other stock-based compensation was recorded pursuant to other stock compensation arrange-
ments, but was oÅset by an expense reversal related to a retirement. The following table sets
forth net earnings and the pro-forma computation of basic earnings per share and earnings per
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share, assuming dilution had stock compensation expense been determined based on the fair
values of stock awards at the date of grant:

December 26, December 27, December 28,
2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Net Earnings (Loss) Ì As ReportedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 246 $ 424 $ 293

Add: Stock Based Employee Compensation
Expense Included in Reported Net
Income Ì Net of Related Tax EÅects ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 4 6

Deduct: Total Stock Based Employee
Compensation Expense Determined under
the Fair Value Based Method for all
Awards Ì Net of Related Tax EÅects ÏÏÏÏÏÏ (34) (29) (19)

Pro Forma Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 215 $ 399 $ 280

Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Basic Ì As Reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.14 $2.00 $1.39

Basic Ì Pro FormaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.00 $1.87 $1.32

Diluted Ì As ReportedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.14 $1.99 $1.38

Diluted Ì Pro FormaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.00 $1.86 $1.32

Comprehensive Earnings

CSX reports comprehensive earnings (loss) in accordance with SFAS 130, ""Reporting
Comprehensive Income,'' in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity.
Comprehensive earnings is deÑned as all changes in shareholders' equity during a period, other
than those resulting from investments by and distributions to shareholders (i.e. issuance of
equity securities and dividends). Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 26, 2003
and December 27, 2002 consists primarily of minimum pension liabilities.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of
Ñnancial position and measures those instruments at fair value.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company has entered into several interest rate swaps as part of its program to address
interest rate market risk exposure. CSX's interest rate swaps are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges under SFAS 133, ""Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.''
For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, the gains and
losses on the derivative instrument, as well as the oÅsetting gain or loss on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, are recognized in current earnings during the period of change in
fair values. If the change in the value of the hedging instrument oÅsets the change in the value of
the hedged item, the hedge is considered perfectly eÅective. The accounting for hedge
eÅectiveness is measured at least quarterly based on the relative change in fair value between
the derivative contract and the hedged item over time. Any change in fair value resulting from
ineÅectiveness, the amount by which the change in the value of the hedge does not exactly oÅset
the change in the value of the hedged item, is recognized immediately in earnings. The
Company's interest rate swaps qualify as perfectly eÅective fair value hedges. As such, there is
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no ineÅective portion to the hedge recognized in earnings. Adjustments to the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements are recorded in other assets and other liabilities.

The diÅerential to be paid or received under these agreements is accrued consistently with
the terms of the agreements and is recognized in interest expense over the term of the related
debt. The related amounts payable to or receivable from counterparties are included in other
liabilities or assets. Cash Öows related to interest rate swap agreements are classiÑed as
""Operating activities'' in the Cash Flow Statement.

Fuel Hedging

In 2003, CSX began a program to hedge a portion of its 2004 and 2005 locomotive fuel
purchases. In order to minimize exposure to fuel price Öuctuation risk, the Company has entered
into a series of swaps in order to Ñx the price of a portion of its estimated future fuel purchases.

The program limits fuel hedges to a 24-month duration and a maximum of 80% of CSX's
average monthly fuel purchased for any month within the 24-month period, and places the
hedges among selected counterparties. Fuel hedging activity did not have an eÅect on fuel
expense for the year ended December 26, 2003. IneÅectiveness, or the extent to which changes
in the fair values of the fuel swaps did not oÅset changes in the fair values of the expected fuel
purchases, is recorded in fuel expense and is immaterial.

These instruments qualify, and are designated by management, as cash-Öow hedges of
variability in expected future cash Öows attributable to Öuctuations in fuel prices. The fair values
of fuel derivative instruments are determined based upon quoted market prices and are recorded
on the balance sheet with oÅsetting adjustments to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, a
component of Shareholders' Equity. This amount was approximately $6 million as of Decem-
ber 26, 2003. Fair value adjustments are noncash transactions, and accordingly, are excluded
from the Cash Flow Statement.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by other parties to
interest rate swap and fuel hedge agreements. However, the Company does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparties.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (""SFAS'') 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retire-
ment Obligations'' was issued in 2001. This statement addresses Ñnancial accounting and
reporting for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the
associated retirement costs. In conjunction with the group-life method of accounting for asset
costs, the Company historically accrued crosstie removal costs as a component of depreciation,
which is not permitted under SFAS 143. With the adoption of SFAS 143 in Ñscal year 2003, CSX
recorded pretax income of $93 million, $57 million after tax as a cumulative eÅect of an
accounting change, representing the reversal of the accrued liability for crosstie removal costs.
The adoption of SFAS 143 did not have a material eÅect on prior reporting periods, and the
Company does not believe it will have a material eÅect on future earnings. On an ongoing basis,
depreciation expense will be reduced, while labor and fringe and materials, supplies and other
expense will be increased by approximately $12 million annually.

SFAS 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition and Disclosure'' was
issued in December 2002. SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,'' to provide alternative methods of transition to Statement 123's fair value method
of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and require disclosure of the eÅects of an
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entity's accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation. EÅective
beginning with Ñscal year 2003, CSX has voluntarily adopted the fair value recognition provisions
of SFAS 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,'' and adopted the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition and
Disclosure Ì an amendment of SFAS 123.'' In accordance with the prospective method of
adoption permitted under SFAS 148, stock-based awards issued subsequent to Ñscal year 2002
are accounted for under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 utilizing the Black-
Scholes valuation method and, accordingly, are expensed. (See Note 15, Stock Plans.)

In 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'') issued Interpretation No. 46,
""Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,'' requires a variable interest entity (""VIE'') to be
consolidated by a company that is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable
interest entity's activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity's residual returns, or
both. Interpretation No. 46 also requires disclosures about VIEs that the company is not required
to consolidate but in which it has a signiÑcant variable interest. Also in 2003, Interpretation 46
(""46R''), a revision to FASB Interpretation No. 46, to clarify some of the provisions of, and to
exempt certain entities from Interpretation 46 requirements. Under the new guidance, CSX will
consolidate Four Rivers Transportation, Inc. (""FRT''), a short-line railroad, into its Ñnancial
statements beginning December 27, 2003. Presently, FRT is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting. The adoption of Interpretation No. 46 will not have a material impact on
future reporting periods.

In 2002, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard Interpretation (""FASI'') No. 45,
""Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.'' This statement requires that certain guarantees be
recorded at fair value on the statement of Ñnancial position and additional disclosures be made
about guarantees. CSX adopted the accounting provisions of this statement in Ñscal year 2003.
(See Note 18, Commitments and Contingencies.)

In 2001, SFAS 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets'', was issued. Under the
provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill and other indeÑnite lived intangible assets are no longer
amortized, but are reviewed for impairment on a periodic basis. The Company adopted this
standard for Ñscal 2002, and incurred a pretax charge of $83 million, $43 million after tax and
minority interest as a cumulative eÅect of an accounting change, which represents the diÅerence
between book value and the fair value of indeÑnite lived intangible assets. These indeÑnite lived
intangible assets are permits and licenses that the Company holds relating to a proposed
pipeline to transfer natural gas from Alaska's North Slope to the port in Valdez, Alaska. The fair
value was determined using a discount method of projected future cash Öows relating to these
assets. The carrying value of these assets is now approximately $3 million. The adoption of
SFAS 142 did not have a material eÅect on prior reporting periods, and the Company does not
believe it will have a material eÅect on future earnings. The Company does not have any other
signiÑcant indeÑnite lived intangible assets.

In 2002, SFAS 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,'' was
issued. This statement requires that long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are no longer
measured on a net realizable value basis, and future operating losses are no longer recognized
before they occur. In addition, this statement modiÑes the reporting requirements for discontin-
ued operations. Long-lived assets, whether to be held for disposition or held and used, should be
measured at the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less cost to dispose. The Company
applied the provisions of this statement relating to the accounting for the conveyance of its
wholly-owned subsidiary, CSX Lines, to a third party in 2003 (See Note 3, Divestitures). In
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addition, another of the Company's subsidiaries, CSX World Terminals, was notiÑed of a
signiÑcant customer loss for 2004 and possible customer loss for 2005. Given these indicators,
the Company evaluated the undiscounted cash Öows estimated to be generated by this terminal,
whose long-lived assets are recorded at $59 million and concluded that the forecasted future
undiscounted cash Öows exceeded the book value of its long-lived assets, therefore no
impairment write-down is necessary at this time.

Prior-year Data

Certain prior-year data has been reclassiÑed to conform to the 2003 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires that management make estimates in reporting the
amounts of certain assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the Ñnancial statements and the reported amount of certain revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results may diÅer from those estimates. Critical accounting
estimates using management judgment are made for the following areas:

1. Casualty, legal and environmental reserves

2. Pension and postretirement medical plan accounting

3. Depreciation polices for its assets under the group-life method

Note 2. Investment In and Integrated Rail Operations with Conrail

Background

CSX and Norfolk Southern Corporation (""Norfolk Southern'') acquired Conrail Inc.
(""Conrail'') in May 1997. Conrail owns the primary freight railroad system serving the
Northeastern United States, and its rail network extends throughout several Midwestern states
and into Canada. CSX and Norfolk Southern, through a jointly owned acquisition entity, hold
economic interests in Conrail of 42% and 58%, respectively, and voting interests of 50% each.
CSX and Norfolk Southern operate over allocated portions of the Conrail lines.

The rail subsidiaries of CSX and Norfolk Southern each operate separate portions of the
Conrail system pursuant to various operating agreements. Under these agreements, the railroads
pay operating fees to Conrail for the use of right-of-way and rent for the use of equipment.
Conrail continues to provide rail services in certain shared geographic areas (""Shared Asset
Areas'') for the joint beneÑt of CSX and Norfolk Southern, for which it is compensated on the
basis of usage by the respective railroads.

In June 2003, CSX, Norfolk Southern Corporation (""NS'') and Conrail jointly Ñled a petition
with the Surface Transportation Board (""STB'') to establish direct ownership and control by
CSX's and NS' respective subsidiaries, CSX Transportation Inc. (""CSXT'') and Norfolk Southern
Railway (""NSR'') of their portions of the Conrail system already operated by them separately
and independently under various agreements. These portions of the Conrail system are currently
owned by Conrail's subsidiaries, New York Central Lines (""NYC'') and Pennsylvania Lines LLC
(""PRR''). The ownership of NYC and PRR would be transferred (""spun oÅ'') to CSXT and
NSR, respectively. Conrail would continue to own, manage and operate the Shared Asset Areas
as previously approved by the STB. STB approval to proceed with the spin-oÅ transaction and a
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favorable ruling from the IRS qualifying the transaction as a non-taxable disposition were
received in November 2003. The transaction remains subject to a number of other conditions.

If all necessary conditions are satisÑed, unsecured debt securities of newly formed
subsidiaries of CSXT and NSR would be oÅered in a 42%/58% ratio in exchange for Conrail's
unsecured debentures. The debt securities issued by its respective subsidiary would be fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by CSXT or NSR. Upon completion of the proposed transaction, the
subsidiaries would be merged into CSXT and NSR, respectively, and the new debt securities thus
would become direct unsecured obligations of CSXT or NSR. Conrail's secured debt and lease
obligations will remain obligations of Conrail and are expected to be supported by new leases
and subleases which, upon completion of the proposed transaction, would be the direct lease
and sublease obligations, also on a 42%/58% ratio, of CSXT and NSR. CSX will record the
proposed transaction at fair value based on the results of an independent valuation of NYC, with
any diÅerence from carrying value resulting in a gain or loss. The Company can not predict the
outcome of the valuation and the impact on the Company's Ñnancial statements.

CSX, NSR and Conrail are working to complete all necessary steps to consummate the spin-
oÅ transaction in 2004. Upon consummation of the proposed transaction, CSX's investment in
Conrail will no longer include the amounts related to NYC and PRR. Instead the assets and
liabilities or NYC will be reÖected in their respective line items in CSX's consolidated balance
sheet. Conrail will continue to own, manage and operate the Shared Asset Areas.

Accounting and Financial Reporting EÅects

CSX's rail and intermodal operating revenue includes revenue from traÇc previously moving
on Conrail. Operating expenses include costs incurred to handle that traÇc and operate the
former Conrail lines. Rail operating expense includes an expense category, ""Conrail Fees, Rents
and Services,'' which reÖects:

1. Right of way usage fees and equipment rental payments to Conrail

2. Transportation, switching, and terminal service charges provided by Conrail in the
Shared Asset Areas that Conrail operates for the joint beneÑt of CSX and Norfolk Southern

3. Amortization of the fair value write-up arising from the acquisition of Conrail

4. CSX's 42% share of Conrail's net income recognized under the equity method of
accounting

Detail of Conrail Operating Fees, Rents and Services

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Rents and Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $357 $346 $353

Purchase Price Amortization and Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54 52 56

Equity in Income of Conrail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (69) (76) (73)

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $342 $322 $336
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Conrail Financial Information

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Income Statement Information:

Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $918 $893 $903

Expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 659 623 639

Operating IncomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $259 $270 $264

Net Income Before Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏ $163 $180 $174

Cumulative EÅect of Accounting ChangeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 40 Ì Ì

Net IncomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $203 $180 $174

Dec. 31,

2003 2002

(Dollars in
Millions)

Balance Sheet Information:

Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 257 $ 300

Property and Equipment and Other Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,959 7,857

Total AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $8,216 $8,157

Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 279 $ 329

Long-term DebtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,067 1,123

Other Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,416 2,479

Total LiabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,762 3,931

Stockholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,454 4,226

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' EquityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $8,216 $8,157

Transactions with Conrail

As listed below, CSX has amounts payable to Conrail, representing expenses incurred under
the operating, equipment and shared area agreements with Conrail. Also, Conrail advances its
available cash balances to CSX and Norfolk Southern under variable-rate notes, with CSX's note
maturing on March 28, 2007.

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

CSX Payable to Conrail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 71 $ 69

Conrail Advances to CSX ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $515 $371

Interest Rates on Conrail Advances to CSXÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.66% 1.82%

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Interest Expense Related To Conrail Advances ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7 $8 $5

The agreement under which CSXT operates its allocated portion of the Conrail route system
has an initial term of 25 years and may be renewed at CSXT's option for two Ñve-year terms.
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Operating fees paid to Conrail under the agreement are subject to adjustment every six years
based on the fair value of the underlying system. Lease agreements for the Conrail equipment
operated by CSXT cover varying terms. CSXT is responsible for all costs of operating,
maintaining, and improving the routes and equipment under these agreements.

On December 26, 2003, future minimum payments to Conrail under the operating, equipment
and shared area agreements were as follows:

Future Minimum Payments

(Dollars in Millions)

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 260

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 247

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 236

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 229

2008 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 224

Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,118

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,314

In the event of the consummation of the spin-oÅ transaction, the future minimum payments
will be reduced.

Note 3. Divestitures

In February 2003, CSX conveyed most of its interest in its domestic container-shipping
subsidiary, CSX Lines LLC (""CSX Lines''), to a new venture formed with the Carlyle Group for
approximately $300 million (gross cash proceeds of approximately $240 million, $214 million net
of transaction costs and $60 million of securities). CSX Lines was subsequently renamed
Horizon Lines LLC (""Horizon''). Horizon has subleased vessel and equipment from certain
aÇliates of CSX covering the primary Ñnancial obligations related to $300 million of leases under
which CSX or one of its aÇliates will remain a lessee/sublessor or guarantor. A deferred pretax
gain of approximately $127 million as a result of the transaction will be recognized over the
12-year sub-lease term. Approximately $9 million of this gain was recognized in 2003. The
securities have a term of 7 years and a preferred return feature. During the third quarter, CSX
received a $15 million payment from Horizon Lines, which included $3 million of interest, in return
of a portion of its investment in Horizon and now holds $48 million of securities.

Note 4. Restructuring

In November 2003, the Company announced a management restructuring plan to streamline
the structure at a number of its companies, eliminate organizational layers and realign certain
functions. The initiative will reduce the non-union workforce by 800 to 1,000 positions over the
last quarter of 2003 and the Ñrst half of 2004. As of December 26, 2003, 20 employees have
been terminated under this program. The Company recorded an initial charge related to this
reduction of $34 million pretax, in 2003, to record the lowest amount of expense to be incurred
under this program. The total estimated cost of the program is expected to be in the range of
$60 million to $80 million. The majority of separation beneÑts will be paid from CSX's qualiÑed
pension plans, with the remainder being paid from general corporate funds.

Also in 2003, the Company recorded a $10 million restructuring charge related to another
workforce reduction program. Substantially all of this amount had been paid out at December 26,
2003.
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In 2003, the Company recorded a $22 million pretax credit related to a favorable change in
estimate related to the 1991 and 1992 separation plans. These plans provided for workforce
reductions, improvements in productivity and other cost reductions. The reduction in estimate for
these plans results from lower railroad retirement taxes and other beneÑts than had been built
into the initial $1.3 billion charge.

A net $22 million restructuring charge was recorded representing the cost of the
restructuring initiatives oÅset by reductions in 1991/1992 separation reserves. The associated
expense is included in operating expense on the Income Statement as ""Restructuring Charge Ì
Net.''

Note 5. Operating Expense

Operating expense consists of the following:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Labor and Fringe ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,740 $2,886 $2,934

Materials, Supplies and OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,627 1,693 1,662

Conrail Rents, Fees and Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 342 322 336

Building and Equipment Rent ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 566 601 626

Inland Transportation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 320 370 337

DepreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 629 638 613

Fuel ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 581 515 585

Provision for Casualty Claims (See Note 10) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 232 Ì Ì

Additional Loss on Sale (See Note 18)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 108 Ì Ì

Restructuring Charge Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22 Ì Ì

New Orleans Litigation Provision ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 60

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7,167 $7,025 $7,153

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses included in
above categories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 651 $ 657 $ 708
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Note 6. Other Income

Other income consists of the following:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Interest Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 21 $ 27 $ 47

Income from Real Estate and Resort Operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 95 108 101

Discounts on Sales of Accounts ReceivableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (10) (26) (34)

Minority Interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (42) (42) (39)

Equity Income (Loss) of Other AÇliatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2 (3) (27)

Miscellaneous ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (9) (23) (39)

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 57 $ 41 $ 9

Gross Revenue from Real Estate and Resort Operations Included
in Other Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $274 $261 $254

Note 7. Income Taxes

Earnings from domestic and foreign operations and related income tax expense are as
follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes:

DomesticÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $186 $648 $379

Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 79 75 69

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes: $265 $723 $448

The signiÑcant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities include:

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

(Dollars in Millions)

Productivity/Restructuring Charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 79 $ Ì $ 80 $ Ì

Employee BeneÑt PlansÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 336 Ì 445 Ì

Accelerated DepreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 4,047 Ì 3,812

OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 917 901 741 893

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,332 $4,948 $1,266 $4,705

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $3,616 $3,439

The primary factors in the change in year-end net deferred income tax liability balances
include:

‚ Annual provision for deferred income tax expense

‚ Minimum pension liability

‚ Cumulative eÅects of accounting changes
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The Company has not recorded domestic deferred or additional foreign income taxes related
to undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are considered to be indeÑnitely reinvested.
These earnings amounted to $387 million, $341 million and $291 million at December 26, 2003,
December 27, 2002 and December 28, 2001, respectively. These amounts may become taxable
upon their remittance as dividends or upon the sale or liquidation of these foreign subsidiaries. It
is not practical to determine the amount of net additional income tax that may be payable if such
earnings were repatriated.

The Company Ñles a consolidated federal income tax return, which includes its principal
domestic subsidiaries. Examinations of the federal income tax returns of CSX have been
completed through 1993. Tax returns for 1994 through 2002 currently are under examination.
Management believes adequate provision has been made for any adjustments that might be
assessed.

The breakdown of income tax expense (beneÑt) between current and deferred is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Current:

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(68) $ 50 $(64)

Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18 16 15

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7 17 3

Total Current ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(43) $ 83 $(46)

Deferred:

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $125 $154 $176

Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2 Ì 10

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8) 19 15

Total Deferred ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $119 $173 $201

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 76 $256 $155

Income tax expense reconciled to the tax computed at statutory rates is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Tax at Statutory Rates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $93 35% $253 35% $157 35%

State Income TaxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 23 3% 12 3%

Equity in Conrail Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (9) (3)% (12) (2)% (10) (2)%

Foreign OperationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (6) (2)% (9) (1)% (1) Ì

Other Items ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2) (1)% 1 Ì (3) (1)%

Income Tax Expense/Rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $76 29% $256 35% $155 35%

The decrease in the eÅective income tax rate is attributable to a larger portion of the
Company's earnings being earned in foreign jurisdictions with statutory income tax rates below
the U.S. statutory income tax rate and the cumulative impact of adjustments to the deferred
eÅective state income tax rate due to favorable state tax regulations.
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Note 8. Accounts Receivable

Sale of Accounts Receivable

During 2003, CSXT discontinued the sale of accounts receivable, which resulted in a
$380 million increase in accounts receivable. Previously, CSXT sold, without recourse, a revolving
pool of accounts receivable to CSX Trade Receivables Corporation (""CTRC''), a bankruptcy-
remote entity wholly-owned by CSX Corporation. CTRC transferred the accounts receivable to a
master trust and caused the trust to issue multiple series of certiÑcates representing undivided
interests in the receivables. The certiÑcates issued by the master trust were sold to investors,
and the proceeds from those sales were paid to CSXT.

Two series of certiÑcates were outstanding as of December 27, 2002. One series in the
amount of $300 million was sold to investors in 1998 and matured in June 2003. A second series
of $200 million was sold to a private entity in 2000 and matured in June 2003 as well. As of
December 27, 2002, the amounts sold under the private and public series were $80 million and
$300 million respectively. The amount retained in the master trust at December 27, 2002 was
$534 million. The fair value of retained interests approximated book value as the receivables
were collected in approximately one month.

Net losses associated with the sale of receivables are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Discounts on Sales of Accounts Receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $10 $26 $34

CSXT retained responsibility for servicing accounts receivables held by the master trust. The
average servicing period was approximately one month. No servicing asset or liability was
recorded since the fees CSXT received approximated its related costs.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the expected
collectibility of all accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts is included in the
balance sheet as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Allowance for Doubtful AccountsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $71 $ 90

The decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts is due to the write-oÅ of uncollectible
receivables during 2003.
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Note 9. Properties

Properties consist of the following:

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Net Cost Depreciation Net

(Dollars in Millions)

Rail:

Road ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $12,147 $2,683 $ 9,464 $11,541 $2,498 $ 9,043

EquipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,686 2,225 3,461 5,671 2,225 3,446

Total RailÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 17,833 4,908 12,925 17,212 4,723 12,489

IntermodalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 488 209 279 442 173 269

Total Surface
Transportation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18,321 5,117 13,204 17,654 4,896 12,758

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 946 420 526 906 378 528

Total Properties ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $19,267 $5,537 $13,730 $18,560 $5,274 $13,286

Note 10. Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves

Activity related to casualty, environmental and other reserves is as follows:

Casualty and Other Separation
Reserves Liabilities Environmental Reserves Total

(Dollars in Millions)

Balance Dec. 29, 2000 ÏÏÏÏ $698 $256 $ 41 $ 995

Charged to Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 234 Ì 1 235

Payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (271) (14) (10) (295)

Balance Dec. 28, 2001 ÏÏÏÏ 661 242 32 935

Charged to Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 231 Ì 17 248

Payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (287) (32) (14) (333)

Balance Dec. 27, 2002 ÏÏÏÏ 605 210 35 850

Charged to Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 307 44 23 374

Changes in Estimate ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 232 (22) Ì 210

Payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (280) (25) (13) (318)

Balance Dec. 26, 2003 ÏÏÏÏ $864 $207 $ 45 $1,116

60



CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Reserve balances are as follows:

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Current Reserves

Casualty and Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 198 $216

Separation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52 15

Environmental ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 30 15

Total Current Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 280 246

Long-term Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏ 836 604

Total Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,116 $850

Casualty Reserves

Casualty reserves represent accruals for the uninsured portion of occupational injury and
personal injury claims. In the third quarter of 2003, the Company changed its estimate of casualty
reserves to include an estimate of incurred but not reported claims for asbestos and other
occupational injuries to be received over the next seven years. Other occupational claims include
allegations of exposure to certain materials in the work place, such as solvents and diesel fuel,
or alleged physical injuries, such as carpal tunnel syndrome or hearing loss.

In conjunction with the 2003 change in estimate, the Company recorded a charge of
$232 million to increase its provision for casualty reserves. Approximately $141 million relates to
asbestos claims.

Asbestos and Other Occupational Injuries

During 2003, the Company retained third party professionals to work with it to project the
number of asbestos and other occupational injury claims to be received over the next seven
years and the related costs. Based on this analysis the Company established reserves for the
probable and reasonably estimable asbestos and other occupational injury liabilities.

The methodology used by the third party to project future occupational injury claims was
based largely on CSX's recent experience, including claim-Ñling and settlement rates, injury and
disease mix, open claims and claim settlement costs. However, projecting future occupational
injury claims and settlements costs is subject to numerous variables that are diÇcult to predict. In
addition to the signiÑcant uncertainties surrounding the number of claims that might be received,
other variables, including the type and severity of the injury or disease alleged by each claimant,
the long latency period associated with exposure, dismissal rates, costs of medical treatment,
uncertainties surrounding the litigation process from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and from case to
case and the impact of changes in legislative or judicial standards, may cause actual results to
diÅer signiÑcantly from estimates. Furthermore, predictions with respect to these variables are
subject to greater uncertainty as the projection period lengthens. In light of these uncertainties,
CSX believes that seven years is the most reasonable period for estimating future claims, and
that claims received after that period are not reasonably estimable.

CSX increased its reserve for asbestos and other occupational claims by a net $206 million
to cover the estimate of incurred but not reported claims to be Ñled during the next seven years.
ReÖecting the additional provisions, CSX's reserve for asbestos and other occupational claims on
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an undiscounted basis amounted to $345 million at December 26, 2003, compared to $171 million
at December 27, 2002.

A summary of existing claims activity is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

Asserted Claims:

Open Claims Ì Beginning of Period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,278 15,365

New Claims Filed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,368 2,095

Claims SettledÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,382) (2,877)

Claims DismissedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (360) (305)

Open Claims Ì End of Period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,904 14,278

Approximately 5,500 of the open claims above are asbestos claims against the Company's
previously owned international container-shipping business, Sea-Land. Because the Sea-Land
claims are claims against multiple vessel owners, the Company's reserves reÖect its portion of
those claims. The remaining open claims have been asserted against CSX Transportation. At
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, the Company had approximately $13 million and
$10 million reserved for the Sea-Land claims.

Estimates for these claims are subject to signiÑcant uncertainty relating to the outcomes of
negotiated settlements and other developments. As facts and circumstances change, the
Company may have to change its estimates, and changes could have a material impact on the
Company's Ñnancial results. Such events as adverse verdicts, catastrophic accidents and legal
settlements will cause the Company to revise its estimated liabilities, which the Company reviews
and appropriately adjusts quarterly.

Personal Injury

During 2003, CSX retained an independent actuarial Ñrm to assess the value of CSX's
personal injury portfolio. This Ñrm's methods and procedures yielded a slightly higher valuation
for personal injury claims than previously recognized by CSX due to a higher estimated cost for
adverse development. Utilizing the analysis provided, CSX increased its reserves for alleged
personal injury claims by $26 million.

Separation Liability

Separation liabilities at December 26, 2003, include productivity charges recorded in 1991
and 1992 to provide for the estimated costs of implementing workforce reductions, improvements
in productivity and other cost reductions at the Company's major transportation units. The
remaining separation liabilities are expected to be paid out over the next 15 to 20 years.

In 2003, the Company recorded a $22 million pretax credit related to revised estimates for
railroad retirement taxes and the amount of beneÑts that will be paid to individuals under the
$1.3 billion charges initially recorded in 1991 and 1992. This amount is netted with separation
expenses related to the 2003 Management Restructuring, as discussed in Note 4.
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Environmental Reserves

CSXT is a party to various proceedings, including administrative and judicial proceedings,
involving private parties and regulatory agencies related to environmental issues. CSXT has been
identiÑed as a potentially responsible party (""PRP'') at approximately 260 environmentally
impaired sites, many of which are, or may be, subject to remedial action under the Federal
Superfund statute (""Superfund'') or similar state statutes. A number of these proceedings are
based on allegations that CSXT, or its railroad predecessors, sent hazardous substances to the
facilities in question for disposal. Some of the proceedings involve property formerly or currently
owned by CSXT or its railroad predecessors. Proceedings arising under Superfund or similar
state statutes can involve numerous other companies who generated the waste or owned or
operated the property and involve the allocation of liability for costs associated with site
investigation and cleanup, which could be substantial.

At least once each quarter, CSXT reviews its role with respect to each such location, giving
consideration to a number of factors, including the type of cleanup required, the nature of
CSXT's alleged connection to the location (e.g., generator of waste sent to the site, or owner or
operator of the site), the extent of CSXT's alleged connection (e.g., volume of waste sent to the
location and other relevant factors), the accuracy and strength of evidence connecting CSXT to
the location, and the number, connection, and Ñnancial viability of other named and unnamed
PRP's at the location.

Based on the review process, CSXT has recorded reserves to cover estimated contingent
future environmental costs with respect to such sites. The recorded liabilities for estimated future
environmental costs at December 26, 2003, and December 27, 2002 were $45 million and
$35 million, respectively. These liabilities, which are undiscounted, include amounts representing
CSXT's estimate of unasserted claims, which CSXT believes to be immaterial. The liability
includes future costs for all sites where the Company's obligation is (1) deemed probable and
(2) where such costs can be reasonably estimated. The liability includes future costs for
remediation and restoration of sites as well as any signiÑcant ongoing monitoring costs, but
excludes any anticipated insurance recoveries. The majority of the December 26, 2003
environmental liability is expected to be paid out over the next seven years.

The Company does not currently possess suÇcient information to reasonably estimate the
amounts of additional liabilities, if any, on some sites until completion of future environmental
studies. In addition, latent conditions at any given location could result in exposure, the amount
and materiality of which cannot presently be reliably estimated. Based upon information currently
available, however, the Company believes its environmental reserves are adequate to accomplish
remedial actions to comply with present laws and regulations, and that the ultimate liability for
these matters, if any, will not materially aÅect its overall results of operations and Ñnancial
condition.

63



CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Note 11. Debt and Credit Agreements

Debt is as follows:

Average Interest
Rates at

December 26, December 26, December 27,
Maturity 2003 2003 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Convertible Debentures, net
of $91 and $97 discount,
respectively ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2021 1.0% $ 447 $ 467

Notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2004Ó2032 6.8% 5,956 5,285

Equipment Obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2004Ó2015 7.0% 703 855

Mortgage Bonds ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ N/A N/A Ì 55

Other Obligations, Including
Capital Leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2004Ó2010 2.9% 206 248

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,312 6,910

Less Debt Due Within One
YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 426 391

Total Long-Term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,886 $6,519

Debt Issuances

In December 2003, CSX executed a $75 million revolving loan that matures in 2005.
Borrowings under the facility will bear interest at a rate that Öuctuates with LIBOR. In addition,
the Company pays an annual commitment fee of 0.15% for the period the facility is not drawn.
This debt may be redeemed at any time after May 2004, with additional borrowings allowed
through the maturity of the facility. As of December 26, 2003, the Company had $75 million in
aggregate principal amount outstanding under this borrowing.

In November 2003, CSX issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's
Notes due 2014 and $200 million aggregate principal amount of the Company's Notes due 2006.
The 2014 Notes bear interest at the rate of 5.30% per year and mature on February 15, 2014.
The 2006 Notes bear interest at the rate of 2.75% per year and will mature on February 15, 2006.
The 2014 Notes may be redeemed by the Company at any time, but the 2006 Notes cannot be
redeemed before maturity.

CSX increased its borrowings from Conrail by approximately $144 million year-over-year in
2003 in addition to the $146 million increase in 2002. Also, during 2002 the Conrail note was
extended to a Ñve year term.

In August 2003, the Company issued $300 million aggregate principal amount Notes due in
2013. These Notes bear interest at the rate of 5.5% and mature on August 1, 2013. The Notes
may be redeemed by the Company at any time.

During 2002, CSX issued $200 million of 4.88% notes due in 2009 and $400 million of 6.30%
notes due in 2012.

Credit Facilities

The Company has a $1 billion Ñve-year revolving credit facility and a $345 million 364-day
revolving credit facility. Generally these facilities may be used to support the Company's
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commercial paper, working capital and other general corporate purposes. Under the 364-day
facility, the Company pays an annual fee to the participating banks of .125% of total commitment.
Under the Ñve-year facility, the Company pays annual fees to the participating banks that may
range from 0.08% to 0.23% of total commitment, depending on the Company's credit rating. As of
December 26, 2003, the Company had no borrowings outstanding under these facilities. CSX had
commercial paper borrowings supported by these credit facilities of $140 million at the end of
2002.

Convertible Debentures

In October 2001, CSX issued $564 million aggregate principal amount at maturity in
unsubordinated zero coupon convertible debentures (the ""debentures'') due October 30, 2021
for an initial oÅering price of approximately $462 million. At December 26, 2003 and
December 27, 2002, outstanding debentures are included in long-term debt, at a carrying value of
$447 million and $467 million, respectively. These debentures accrete in value at a yield to
maturity of 1% per year. The accretion rate may be reset on October 30, 2007, October 30, 2011,
and October 30, 2016 to a rate based on Ñve-year United States Treasury Notes minus 2.8%. In
no event, however, will the yield to maturity be reset below 1% or above 3% per annum.
Accretion in value on the debentures is recorded for each period, but will not be paid prior to
maturity.

Under the terms of the debentures, holders had the option to require the Company to
purchase their debentures at a purchase price equal to the accreted value of the debentures in
October 2003. CSX purchased $15 million aggregate principal amount at maturity of the
debentures at an aggregate cost of $13 million. In November 2003, the Company made a one-
time cash payment of $23.00 per $1,000 aggregate principal amount at maturity to holders who
did not require the Company to purchase their debentures. This resulted in a $13 million cash
payment, which will be amortized over the remaining term of the debentures. In addition, the
terms of the debentures were amended to permit holders to cause the Company to purchase the
debentures on October 30, 2005, at their accreted value of $852.48 per $1,000 principal amount
at maturity, in addition to the purchase dates provided under the terms of the debentures.
Similarly, the debentures allow holders to require the Company to purchase their debentures in
October 2006, October 2008, October 2011, and October 2016, at a purchase price equal to the
accreted value of the debentures. In 2005, 2006 and 2008, CSX may elect to pay the purchase
price in cash and/or shares of common stock, while CSX may pay the purchase price only in
cash on the last two purchase dates. CSX may redeem the debentures for cash at any time on or
after October 30, 2008, at a redemption price equal to the accreted value of the debentures.

Holders may convert debentures into CSX common stock if certain requirements deÑned in
the debentures and the related indenture are met. Holders may convert if the closing sale price of
CSX common stock for at least 20 of the 30 preceding trading days is more than the applicable
percentage (which is initially 120% and will decline over the life of the debentures to 110%) of
the accreted conversion price per share of the Company's common stock. The ""accreted
conversion price'' per share of common stock is the quotient of the accreted value of a
debenture divided by the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of that
debenture. Holders may also convert if the Company's senior long-term unsecured credit ratings
are downgraded by Moody's Investors Service Inc. to below Ba1 and by Standard & Poor's
Rating Services to below BB°, if the debentures have been called for redemption, if the
Company makes speciÑed distributions to holders of CSX common stock, or if the company is a
party to speciÑed consolidations, mergers, or transfers or leases of all or substantially all of the
Company's assets. For each debenture surrendered for conversion, a holder will initially receive
17.75 shares of CSX common stock, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of $46.16
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per share. The initial conversion rate will be adjusted for reasons speciÑed in the indenture, but
will not be adjusted for accretion. Instead, accretion on the debentures will be deemed paid by
the common stock received by the holder on conversion.

Shelf Registration Statements

CSX has $600 million of remaining capacity under a shelf registration that may be used,
subject to market conditions, to issue debt or other securities at the Company's discretion. The
Company presently intends to use the proceeds from the sale of any securities issued under its
shelf registration statements to Ñnance cash requirements, including reÑnancing existing debt as
it matures. While the Company seeks to give itself Öexibility with respect to meeting such needs,
there can be no assurance that market conditions would permit the Company to sell such
securities on acceptable terms at any given time, or at all.

Short-term Debt Balance and Rates

Dec. 26, 2003 Dec. 27, 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Short-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2 $143

Weighted Average Interest Rates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.21% 1.46%

Long-term Debt Maturities

(Dollars in Millions)

2004ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 426

2005ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 247

2006ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 598

2007ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,080

2008ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 615

2009 and Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,291

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7,257(a)

(a) The fair market value of the interest rate swap agreements of $55 million, which is included
in long-term debt on the balance sheet, is not included on the debt maturity schedule.

Certain of CSX's rail unit properties are pledged as security for various rail-related long-term
debt issues. In addition, the Company has approximately $111 million in assets which are
speciÑcally designated to fund an equal amount of long-term debt.
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Note 12. Derivative Financial Instruments

Interest Rate Swaps

CSX has entered into various interest rate swap agreements to hedge the fair value of the
following Ñxed rate notes:

Notional Fixed
Amount Interest Variable Rate at

Maturity Date (Millions) Rate December 26, 2003

May 1, 2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 450 7.45% 4.42%

May 4, 2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 300 7.25% 3.91%

August 15, 2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 300 9.00% 6.09%

May 1, 2032 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 150 8.30% 2.76%

June 22, 2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50 6.46% 2.66%

Total/Average ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,250 7.00% 3.95%

Under these agreements, the Company will pay variable interest based on LIBOR in
exchange for a Ñxed rate, eÅectively transforming the notes to Öoating rate obligations. The
instruments qualify, and are designated, as fair value hedges.

The interest rate swap agreements are designated and qualify as fair value hedges and the
gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the oÅsetting gain or loss on the Ñxed rate
note attributable to the hedged risk, are recognized in current earnings during the period of
change in fair values. Hedge eÅectiveness is measured at least quarterly based on the relative
change in fair value of the derivative contract in comparison with changes over time in the fair
value of the Ñxed rate notes. Any change in fair value resulting from ineÅectiveness, as deÑned
by SFAS 133, ""Accounting For Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,'' is recognized
immediately in earnings. The Company's interest rate swaps qualify as perfectly eÅective fair
value hedges, as deÑned by SFAS 133. As such, there was no ineÅective portion to the hedge
recognized in earnings during the current or prior year periods. Long-term debt has been
increased by $55 million and $78 million for the fair market value of the interest rate swap
agreements at December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, respectively.

The diÅerential to be paid or received under these agreements is accrued based on the
terms of the agreements and is recognized in interest expense over the term of the related debt.
The related amounts payable to, or receivable from, counterparties are included in other current
liabilities or assets. Cash Öows related to interest rate swap agreements are classiÑed as
""Operating Activities'' in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement. For the years ended
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, the Company reduced interest expense by
approximately $44 million and $34 million, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap
agreements that were in place during that year.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other parties
to the interest rate swap agreements. However, the Company does not anticipate nonperform-
ance by the counterparties.

Fuel Hedging

In 2003, CSX began a program to hedge a portion of its 2004 and 2005 locomotive fuel
purchases. This program was established to manage exposure to fuel price Öuctuations. In order
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to minimize this risk, CSX has entered into a series of swaps in order to Ñx the price of a portion
of its estimated future fuel purchases.

Following is a summary of fuel swaps executed during the year:

Dec. 26, 2003

Approximate Gallons Hedged (Millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 236

Average Price Per Gallon ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $0.70

Swap MaturitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Feb. 2004 Ó Dec. 2005

2004 2005

Estimated % of Future Fuel Consumption Hedged at December 26, 2003 ÏÏ 18% 21%

The program limits fuel hedges to a 24-month duration and a maximum of 80% of CSX's
average monthly fuel purchased for any month within the 24-month period, and places the
hedges among selected counterparties. Fuel hedging activity did not have an eÅect on fuel
expense for the year ended December 26, 2003. IneÅectiveness, or the extent to which changes
in the fair values of the fuel swaps did not oÅset changes in the fair values of the expected fuel
purchases, is recorded in fuel expense and is immaterial.

These instruments qualify, and are designated by management, as cash-Öow hedges of
variability in expected future cash Öows attributable to Öuctuations in fuel prices. The fair values
of fuel derivative instruments are determined based upon quoted marked prices and are recorded
on the balance sheet with oÅsetting adjustments to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, a
component of Shareholders' Equity. As of December 26, 2003 this component was $6 million
after tax. The amounts recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income will be recorded in
earnings in the period in which the hedged fuel is consumed. Fair value adjustments are noncash
transactions, and accordingly, are excluded from the Cash Flow Statement.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by other parties to
fuel swap agreements. However, the Company does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparties.

Note 13. Shareholders Equity

Common and Preferred Stocks

Common and Preferred Stock consists of (in thousands):

Common Stock, $1 Par Value Dec. 26, 2003

Common Shares Authorized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 300,000

Common Shares Issued and Outstanding ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 215,071

Additional Potential Shares:

Stock Options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,297

Convertible Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,924

Preferred Stock Dec. 26, 2003

Preferred Shares AuthorizedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25,000

Preferred Shares OutstandingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote on all matters requiring a vote for each
share held. Preferred Stock is senior to common stock with respect to dividends and upon
liquidation of the Company.
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Prior to October 2003, 3,000,000 shares had been designated as Series B Preferred Stock in
conjunction with the Company's Shareholder Rights Plan. In October 2003, the expiration date of
the shareholder rights under the Shareholder Rights Plan was accelerated, resulting in the
eÅective termination of the Plan, and the Company's Articles of Incorporation were amended to
eliminate the designation of shares for Series B Preferred.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholders' Equity consists of the following:

Balance Balance
December 27, Net Gain December 26,

2002 (Loss) 2003

(Dollars in Millions)

Minimum Pension Liability (Net of $160 and $153
of taxes as of December 27, 2002 and
December 26, 2003, respectively) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(318) $ 8 $(310)

Fuel Hedging Adjustment (Net of $3 taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 6 6

Other (Net of $3 taxes) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 6 6

$(318) $20 $(298)

Other comprehensive income in 2002 and 2001 represented adjustments to the minimum
pension liability, net of taxes of $152 million and $10 million, respectively.

Note 14. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per share and earnings per
share, assuming dilution:

2003 2002 2001

Numerator (Millions):

Net Earnings Before Cumulative EÅect of Accounting
ChangeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 189 $ 467 $ 293

Denominator (Thousands):

Average Common Shares Outstanding ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 213,964 212,729 211,668

EÅect of Potentially Dilutive Common Shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 432 783 741

Average Common Shares Outstanding, Assuming
Dilution ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 214,396 213,512 212,409

Earnings Per Share:

Before Cumulative EÅect of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.88 $ 2.20 $ 1.39

Assuming Dilution, Before Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting ChangeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.14 $ 2.19 $ 1.38

Earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. Earnings per share, assuming dilution, are based on the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding adjusted for the eÅect of potential common shares outstanding
during the period, mainly arising from the exercise of employee stock options. Potential common
shares at CSX include stock options and awards and shares that would be issued relating to
convertible long-term debt.
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Certain potential common shares (convertible debt and stock options) for all three years
shown were not included in the computation of earnings per share, assuming dilution, since their
exercise or conversion prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares
during the period and, therefore, their eÅect is antidilutive. These potential common shares were
as follows:

Fiscal Year

2003 2002 2001

Number of Shares (thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28,421 33,800 29,900

Average Exercise/Conversion Price ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $46.94 $46.31 $47.26

A substantial increase in the fair market value of the Company's stock price could negatively
impact earnings per share due to the dilutive eÅect of stock options and convertible debt.

Note 15. Stock Plans

The Company maintains several stock option and award plans designed to encourage
ownership of its stock and provide incentives for employees to contribute to its success.

EÅective beginning with Ñscal year 2003, CSX voluntarily adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,'' and adopted the
disclosure requirements of SFAS 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition
and Disclosure Ì an amendment of SFAS 123.'' Under SFAS 123, all stock based awards will be
expensed at fair value. In accordance with the prospective method of adoption permitted under
SFAS 148, the Company has adopted the fair value recognition provisions on a prospective
basis. Previously, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation under the intrinsic-
value method of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, ""Accounting to Stock
Issued to Employees.'' Under APB 25, CSX expensed amounts associated with stock-based
awards and disclosures were required for any stock option awards.

Total compensation expense associated with stock based compensation was $5 million,
$6 million and $9 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Stock Options and Awards

CSX stock option and award plans provide primarily (1) stock options and (2) restricted
stock awards (""RSAs'') to eligible oÇcers and employees. Awards granted under the various
plans are determined by the board of directors.

At December 26, 2003, there were 3,554 current or former employees with grants
outstanding under the various plans. A total of approximately 39 million shares were reserved for
issuance under the plans of which 9 million were available for new grants. The remaining shares
are assigned to outstanding stock options and stock awards.

The fair value of options granted in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was estimated as of the dates of
grant using the Black-Scholes option model.
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Fiscal Year

2003 2002 2001

Black-Scholes Assumptions:

Expected Dividend YieldÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.10% 1.10% 2.30%

Risk-free Interest Rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.53% 4.30% 5.00%

Expected Stock Volatility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28% 27% 27%

Expected Term Until Exercise ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6 years 6 years 6 years

Average Fair Value of Stock Options Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $8.93 $11.76 $10.71

1. Stock Options

The majority of stock options have been granted with 10-year terms. Options outstanding at
December 26, 2003, are generally exercisable three to ten years after date of grant. The exercise
price for options granted equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant. A
summary of the Company's stock option activity and related information for the Ñscal years
ended December 26, 2003, December 27, 2002 and December 28, 2001 follows:

2003 2002 2001

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Shares Exercise Shares Exercise
(000s) Price (000s) Price (000s) Price

Outstanding at Beginning of
Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26,022 $40.45 23,650 $39.49 20,126 $38.69

Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,477 $38.14 3,438 $38.14 5,041 $39.42

Exchanged, Canceled or
ExpiredÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5,909) $39.91 (46) $44.89 (737) $40.25

ExercisedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (293) $22.42 (1,020) $31.45 (780) $25.16

Outstanding at End of Year ÏÏ 23,297 $39.35 26,022 $40.45 23,650 $39.49

Exercisable at End of YearÏÏÏ 7,104 $41.13 8,513 $41.58 8,426 $40.00

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at Decem-
ber 26, 2003:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-
average Weighted-

Number Remaining average Number Weighted-
Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Outstanding average

Exercise Price (000s) (Years) Price (000s) Exercise Price

$20 to $29 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,050 6.3 $23.85 614 $24.09

$30 to $39 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,167 7.4 $36.87 1,386 $37.75

$40 to $49 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,805 4.2 $43.60 4,628 $43.34

$50 to $59 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,275 2.9 $53.07 476 $51.43

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,297 5.9 $39.27 7,104 $41.13

During the years ended December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, 0.3 million and
1.0 million options, respectively, were exercised.
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2. Restricted Stock Awards (""RSAs'')

At December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, 248,500 and 469,500 RSAs, respectively
were outstanding. The RSA's outstanding at December 26, 2003, vest over a three- to Ñve-year
employment period. The weighted-average fair value of RSAs was $30.97 as of the date of grant.
Approximately $2 million, $6 million and $9 million was expensed in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, in connection with restricted stock awards.

Stock Purchase and Loan Plan

The Stock Purchase and Loan Plan (""SPLP'') provided for the purchase of common stock
and related rights by eligible oÇcers and key employees of the Company and entitled them to
obtain loans with respect to the shares purchased. There were no shares issued, withdrawn,
exchanged or cancelled under the SPLP in 2003, 2002 or 2001. The Plan expired in 2003. There
were approximately 70,000 shares outstanding in 2002 and 2001, respectively, under this
program.

Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plans

1. Stock Purchase Plan

The 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (""ESPP'') allows eligible employees to purchase
CSX common stock at a discount. SpeciÑcally, participating employees were able to purchase
CSX stock at the lower of 85% of fair market value on December 1 (beginning of the annual
oÅering period) or 85% of fair market value on November 30 of the following year (end of the
annual oÅering period). In eÅect, employees received a 12-month stock option to purchase
Company stock. Once purchased, the shares were unrestricted and could generally be sold or
transferred at any time. Approximately 540,000 shares and 570,000 shares were purchased by
employees under this plan during 2003 and 2002, respectively. This plan was not extended for
2004.

The predecessor to the 2001 ESPP was the 1991 Employee Stock Purchase and Dividend
Reinvestment Plan. Employees purchased 25,565 shares under the plan in 2001 at a weighted-
average market price of $30.43.

2. Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Company maintains the Shareholder Dividend Reinvestment Plan under which share-
holders may purchase additional shares of stock. At December 26, 2003, there were 4,626,035
shares available for issuance under this plan.

Stock Plan for Directors

The Stock Plan for Directors, approved by the shareholders in 1992, governs in part the
manner in which directors' fees and retainers are paid. A minimum of 40% of the retainers must
be paid in common stock of the Company. In 2004, the minimum retainer to be paid in stock
increases to 50%. In addition, each director may elect to receive up to 100% of the remaining
retainer and fees in the form of common stock of the Company. In 1997, shareholders approved
amendments to the Plan that would permit additional awards of stock or stock options. In 2003,
36,219 shares of stock were issued to the directors, resulting in $1 million of expense. In 2002,
45,195 shares of stock were issued to the directors, resulting in $1 million of expense. In 2001,
52,000 stock options were granted with an exercise price of $35.08. The Plan permits each
director to elect to transfer stock into a trust that will hold the shares until the participant's death,
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disability, retirement as a director, other cessation of services as a director, or change in control
of the Company. At December 26, 2003, there were 0.6 million shares of common stock reserved
for issuance under this Plan.

Note 16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of the Company's Ñnancial instruments are estimated by reference to quoted
prices from market sources and Ñnancial institutions, as well as other valuation techniques.
Long-term debt is the only Ñnancial instrument of the Company with fair values signiÑcantly
diÅerent from their carrying amounts. At December 26, 2003, the fair value of long-term debt,
including current maturities, was $7.8 billion, compared with a carrying amount of $7.3 billion. At
December 27, 2002, the fair value of long-term debt, including current maturities, was $7.4 billion,
compared with a carrying amount of $6.9 billion. The fair value of long-term debt has been
estimated using discounted cash Öow analysis based upon the Company's current incremental
borrowing rates for similar types of Ñnancing arrangements. The Company's interest rate swap
agreements at December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002 had a positive value of $55 and
$78 million, respectively. The Company's fuel hedging agreements at December 26, 2003 had a
positive value of $9 million. CSX had no fuel hedge agreements at December 27, 2002.

Note 17. Employee BeneÑt Plans

The Company sponsors deÑned beneÑt pension plans, principally for salaried personnel. The
plans provide eligible employees with retirement beneÑts based principally on years of service
and compensation rates near retirement.

In addition to the deÑned beneÑt pension plans, the Company sponsors three plans that
provide medical and life insurance beneÑts to most full-time salaried employees upon their
retirement. The postretirement medical plans are contributory (partially funded by retiree), with
retiree contributions adjusted annually. The life insurance plan is non-contributory.

The beneÑt obligation for these plans represents the liability of the Company for current and
retired employees and is aÅected primarily by the following:

1. Service cost (beneÑts attributed to employee service during the period)

2. Interest cost (interest on the liability due to the passage of time)

3. Actuarial gains/losses (experience during the year diÅerent from that assumed and
changes in plan assumptions)

4. BeneÑts paid to participants

Plan assets are amounts that have been segregated and restricted to provide beneÑts, and
include amounts contributed by the Company and amounts earned from investing contributions,
less beneÑts paid. The Company uses a plan year of October 1 through September 30 to value
its pension and postretirement plans on an actuarial basis. The Company funds the cost of the
postretirement medical and life insurance beneÑts on a pay-as-you go basis. The pension plans
are funded at not less than the minimum funding standards set forth in the Employee Retirement
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Income Security Act of 1974. The distribution of pension plan assets as of the September 30,
2003 measurement date is as follows:

2003 2002

Percent of Percent of
Amount Total Assets Amount Total Assets

(Dollars in Millions)

Common Stocks ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 863 60% $ 732 55%

Fixed IncomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 557 38% 590 45%

Cash and Cash EquivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31 2% 2 Ì

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,451 100% $1,324 100%

CSX has established a target allocation of 60% equity and 40% Ñxed income investments.
Further diversiÑcation and risk control is achieved by policy allocations to various equity styles
and investment managers. Allocations are maintained at within 3% of targets. No leverage or
investment in CSX securities is allowed. The goal is to maintain assets at or above beneÑt
obligations (long-term liabilities) without corporate contributions.

CSX expects to make cash contributions of $14 million to its pension plan in 2004.

BeneÑt obligation and plan asset information is as follows:

Postretirement
Pension BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Actuarial Present Value of BeneÑt Obligation

Accumulated BeneÑt Obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,785 $1,688 N/A N/A

Projected BeneÑt Obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,916 $1,806 $ 513 $ 499

Change in Projected BeneÑt Obligation:

Projected BeneÑt Obligation at Beginning of
Plan Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,806 $1,700 $ 499 $ 420

Service Cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38 40 11 11

Interest Cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 113 119 25 29

Impact of Plan Changes(1)/Business Dispositions (7) Ì (32) Ì

Plan Participants' Contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 12 10

Actuarial Loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 135 84 46 70

BeneÑts Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (169) (137) (48) (41)

BeneÑt Obligation at End of Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,916 $1,806 $ 513 $ 499
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Postretirement
Pension BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Plan Year $1,324 $1,493 $ Ì $ Ì

Actual Return on Plan AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 241 (48) Ì Ì

Employer Contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 55 16 36 31

Plan Participants' Contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 12 10

BeneÑts Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (169) (137) (48) (41)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,451 $1,324 $ Ì $ Ì

Funded Status ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (465) $ (482) $(513) $(499)

(1) Postretirement beneÑts reÖects the impact of changing the plan beneÑt for individuals
retiring after February 2003 which caps the employer cost at $8,000 (plus $7,000 for
spouses).

The funded status, or amount by which the beneÑt obligation exceeds the fair value of plan
assets, represents a liability. At December 26, 2003, the status of CSX plans is as follows:

Aggregate Aggregate
Projected Fair Value

BeneÑt Obligation of Plan Assets

For plans with a projected beneÑt obligation in excess of
plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.9 billion $1.5 billion

For plans with an accumulated beneÑt obligation in
excess of plan assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.8 million $1.5 million

The following table shows the reconciliation of the funded status of the plan with the amount
recorded in the statement of Ñnancial position:

Pension Postretirement
BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Funded StatusÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(465) $(482) $(513) $(499)

Unrecognized Actuarial LossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 487 474 222 190

Unrecognized Prior Service Cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 34 40 (27) Ì

Fourth Quarter Activity:

Employer Contributions to Pension Plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 3 Ì Ì

Net Postretirement BeneÑts Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 10 8

Net Amount Recognized in Consolidated Balance
Sheet ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 59 $ 35 $(308) $(301)

A liability is recognized if net periodic pension cost (cost of a pension plan for a period,
including service cost, interest cost, actual return on plan assets, gain or loss, amortization of
unrecognized prior service cost) recognized exceeds amounts the employer has contributed to
the plan. An asset is recognized if net periodic pension cost is less than amounts the employer
has contributed to the plan.
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The amount recognized in the statement of Ñnancial position consists of:

Pension Postretirement
BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in Millions)

Accrued BeneÑt Liability ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(393) $(430) $(308) $(301)

Intangible Asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 34 40 Ì Ì

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 418 425 Ì Ì

Net Amount Recognized in Consolidated
Balance Sheet ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 59 $ 35 $(308) $(301)

Components of net periodic pension cost are as follows:

Pension Postretirement
BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Service Cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 38 $ 40 $ 41 $11 $11 $ 9

Interest Cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 113 119 121 25 29 26

Expected Return on Plan Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (137) (152) (150) Ì Ì Ì

Amortization of Prior Service Cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4 5 3 (5) Ì (1)

Recognized Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss ÏÏ Ì (9) (11) 14 8 3

Net Periodic BeneÑt CostÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18 3 4 45 48 37

Special Termination BeneÑts Ì

Workforce Reduction Program/
CurtailmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13 Ì 10 Ì Ì Ì

Net Periodic BeneÑt Cost Including
Special Termination BeneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 31 $ 3 $ 14 $45 $48 $37

The $13 million termination charge in 2003 represents a curtailments charge associated with
the retirement of the Company's former Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer. The $10 million
charge was the result of a workforce reduction program that occurred in 2001.

During 2003 and 2002, CSX recorded changes in its minimum pension liability. These
changes did not aÅect net earnings, but are a component of accumulated other comprehensive
loss on an after-tax basis. In 2003, the minimum pension liability increased by $6 million,
reducing accumulated other comprehensive income by $3 million after tax. In 2002, the minimum
pension liability increased by $398 million, reducing accumulated other comprehensive income by
$248 million after tax. The Company also recorded $10 million and $25 million after tax eÅect of
accumulated other comprehensive income, relating to Conrail's minimum pension liability for
December 26, 2003 and December 27, 2002, respectively.
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Weighted-average assumptions used in accounting for the plans are as follows:

Pension Postretirement
BeneÑts BeneÑts

2003 2002 2003 2002

Expected Long-term Return on Plan Assets:

BeneÑt Cost for Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.90% 9.50% n/a n/a

BeneÑt Obligation at End of Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.90% 8.90% n/a n/a

Discount Rates:

BeneÑt Cost for Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.50% 7.25% 5.50% 7.25%

BeneÑt Obligation at End of Plan YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.00% 6.50% 5.00% 5.50%

Salary Scale InÖation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.30%

The net postretirement beneÑt obligation was determined using the assumption that the
health care cost trend rate for medical plans was 11% for 2003 and 2002, decreasing gradually to
4.5% by 2012 and remaining at that level thereafter. A 1% change in the assumed health care
cost trend rate would have the following eÅects:

1% 1%
Increase Decrease

(Dollars in Millions)

EÅect on postretirement beneÑts service and interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 2 $ (2)

EÅect on postretirement beneÑt obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $27 $(28)

In December 2003, the President of the United States signed into law the ""Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003'' (""the Act''), which introduces a
prescription drug beneÑt under Medicare Part D as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of
retiree health care beneÑt plans that provide a beneÑt that is actuarially equivalent to Medicare
Part D. SFAS 106 requires that changes in the law that take eÅect in the future and aÅect future
beneÑt coverage shall be considered in current-period beneÑt measurements. However, as
signiÑcant uncertainties exist for how to account for the subsidy a plan sponsor may not have
suÇcient information available to measure eÅects of the Act, prepare related actuarial valuations,
and ensure proper accounting. Therefore, FASB has issued staÅ position No. FAS 106-1 which
allows a plan sponsor to elect to defer recognizing the eÅects of the Act until authoritative
guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy is issued, or until certain other events occur.
When the guidance is issued, it may cause CSX to revise previously reported information. CSX is
currently evaluating how this legislation may impact its postretirement beneÑt plans.

Other Plans

The Company maintains savings plans for virtually all full-time salaried employees and
certain employees covered by collective bargaining agreements. Expense associated with these
plans was $15 million, $15 million and $16 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Under collective bargaining agreements, the Company participates in a number of union-
sponsored, multi-employer beneÑt plans. Payments to these plans are made as part of aggregate
assessments generally based on number of employees covered, hours worked, tonnage moved
or a combination thereof. Total contributions of $360 million, $315 million and $292 million were
made to these plans in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Note 18. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company has various lease agreements with other parties with terms up to 42 years.
Non-cancelable, long-term leases generally include provisions for maintenance, options to
purchase and options to extend the terms.

At December 26, 2003, minimum building and equipment rentals under these operating
leases are as follows:

Operating Sublease Net Lease
Leases Income Commitments

(Dollars in Millions)

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 210 $ 60 $ 150

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 190 52 138

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 163 51 112

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 177 60 117

2008 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 141 43 98

Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 678 162 516

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,559 $428 $1,131

Rent expense on operating leases totaled $564 million in 2003, $605 million in 2002 and
$629 million in 2001. These amounts include net daily rental charges on railroad operating
equipment aggregating $297 million, $295 million, and $289 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively which are not long-term commitments. In addition to these commitments, the
Company also has agreements covering routes and equipment leased from Conrail. See Note 2,
Investment In and Integrated Rail Operations with Conrail, for a description of these
commitments.

Purchase Commitments

The Company has a commitment under a long-term maintenance program for approximately
40% of CSXT's Öeet of locomotives. The agreement expires in 2026 and totals $2.6 billion.
Minimum payments under this agreement are as follows:

Minimum Payments

(Dollars in Millions)

2004ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 132

2005ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 138

2006ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 166

2007ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 171

2008ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 171

ThereafterÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,866

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,644

The long-term maintenance program assures CSX access to eÇcient, high-quality locomotive
maintenance services at settled price levels through the term of the program. Under the program,
CSX paid $130 million, $124 million and $126 million in Ñscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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Guarantees

The Company and its subsidiaries are contingently liable individually and jointly with others
as guarantors of obligations principally relating to leased equipment, joint ventures and joint
facilities used by CSX in its business operations. Utilizing a CSX guarantee for these obligations
allows CSX to take advantage of lower interest rates and obtain other favorable terms when
negotiating leases or Ñnancing debt. Guarantees are contingent commitments issued by the
Company that could require CSX or one of its aÇliates to make payment to or to perform certain
actions for the guaranteed party based on another entity's failure to perform. Upon the adoption
of FIN 45 in 2003, the Company's evaluation of its guarantees did not result in any amounts for
guarantees being recorded on the balance sheet. CSX's guarantees can be segregated into three
main categories:

1. Guarantees of approximately $440 million of lease commitments assumed by
A.P. Moller-Maersk (""Maersk'') for which the Company is contingently liable. CSX believes
that Maersk will fulÑll its contractual commitments with respect to such leases and that CSX
will have no further liabilities for those obligations.

2. Guarantees of approximately $97 million relating to construction and cash deÑciency
support guarantees at several of the Company's international terminal locations under
development. The non-performance of one of its partners, cost overruns or non-compliance
with Ñnancing loan covenants could cause the Company to have to perform under these
guarantees.

3. CSX guarantees of approximately $300 million relating to leases assumed as part of
CSX's conveyance of its interest in CSX Lines in February 2003, as discussed in Note 3,
Divestitures.

The maximum amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these
guarantees is the amount of the guarantees themselves.

Self-Insurance

The Company obtains substantial amounts of commercial insurance for potential losses for
third-party liability and property damages. SpeciÑed levels of risk (up to $35 million for property
and $25 million for liability per occurrence) are retained on a self-insurance basis. The Company
uses a combination of third-party and self-insurance to realize savings on insurance premium
costs.

Matters Arising Out of Sale of International Container-Shipping Assets

In 2003, CSX Ñnalized a settlement agreement with Maersk resolving all remaining material
disputes pending directly between the two companies, consisting predominantly of two major
disputes. The Ñrst dispute involved a post-closing working capital adjustment to the sale price for
which the Company had recorded a receivable of approximately $70 million. The second dispute
involved a claim of 425 million Dutch Guilders (approximately $180 million at then prevailing
currency exchange rates) plus interest by Europe Container Terminals BV (""ECT'') alleging
breaches of contract by the Company at the Rotterdam container terminal facility owned by ECT.

Also in 2003, CSX entered into a Ñnal settlement agreement with Maersk allocating
responsibility between the two companies for third party claims and litigation relating to the
assets acquired by Maersk.
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The two settlements reduced the Company's 2003 earnings by $108 million pretax,
$67 million after tax. This charge is reÖected in the Ñnancial statements as an additional loss on
the sale of the international container-shipping assets. Neither settlement has a material impact
on cash Öows.

STB Proceeding

In 2001 Duke Energy Corporation (""Duke'') Ñled a complaint before the U.S. Surface
Transportation Board (""STB'') alleging that certain CSXT common carrier coal rates are
unreasonably high. In February 2004, the STB issued a decision Ñnding that the CSXT common
carrier rates were reasonable. While approving the rate levels, the STB also invited Duke to
request a phase-in of rate increases over some time period. The nature and amount of any such
phase-in is uncertain, and would only apply to billings subsequent to December 2001. CSXT will
continue to consider and pursue all available legal defenses in this matter. Administrative and
legal appeals are possible, and could take several years to resolve. An unfavorable outcome to
this complaint would not have a material eÅect on the Company.

Contract Settlement

In 2002, the Company received $44 million as the Ñrst of two payments to settle a contract
dispute. During 2002, the Company recognized approximately $7 million of the Ñrst payment in
other income as this amount related to prior periods. The remaining $37 million will be
recognized over the contract period, which ends in 2020. The second payment of $23 million was
received in 2003 and will be recognized over the contract period which ends in 2020. The results
of this settlement will provide approximately $3 million in annual pretax earnings through 2020.

Other Legal Proceedings

CSX is involved in routine litigation incidental to its business and is a party to a number of
legal actions and claims, various governmental proceedings and private civil lawsuits, including
those related to environmental matters. Federal Employers' Liability Act claims by employees,
other personal injury claims, and disputes and complaints involving certain transportation rates
and charges. Some of the legal proceedings include claims for punitive as well as compensatory
damages, and others purport to be class actions. While the Ñnal outcome of these matters
cannot be predicted with certainty, considering among other things the meritorious legal defenses
available and liabilities that have been recorded along with applicable insurance, it is the opinion
of CSX management that none of these items will have a material adverse eÅect on the results of
operations, Ñnancial position or liquidity of CSX. However, an unexpected adverse resolution of
one or more of these items could have a material adverse eÅect on the results of operations in a
particular quarter or Ñscal year. The company is also party to a number of actions, the resolution
of which could result in gain realization in amounts that could be material to results of operations
in the quarters received.

Note 19. Business Segments

The Company operates in three business segments: rail, intermodal, and international
terminals. The rail segment provides rail freight transportation over a network of more than
23,000 route miles in 23 states, the District of Columbia and two Canadian provinces. The
intermodal segment provides transcontinental intermodal transportation services and operates a
network of dedicated intermodal facilities across North America. The international terminals
segment operates container freight terminal facilities and related businesses in Asia, Europe,

80



CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Australia, Latin America and the United States. The Company's segments are strategic business
units that oÅer diÅerent services and are managed separately based on the diÅerences in these
services. Because of their close interrelationship, the rail and intermodal segments are viewed on
a combined basis as Surface Transportation operations.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on several factors, of
which the primary Ñnancial measure is business segment operating income, deÑned as income
from operations excluding the eÅects of non-recurring charges and gains. The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of signiÑcant
accounting policies (Note 1), except that for segment reporting purposes, CSX includes minority
interest expense on the international terminals segment's joint venture businesses in operating
expense. These amounts are reclassiÑed through eliminations in CSX's consolidated Ñnancial
statements to other income. Intersegment sales and transfers are generally accounted for as if
the sales or transfers were to third parties, at current market prices.

Business segment information for the years ended December 26, 2003, December 27, 2002
and December 28, 2001 is as follows:

Surface Transportation International
Rail Intermodal Total Terminals Other(1) Total

(Dollars in Millions)

2003

Revenues from External
CustomersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,182 $1,257 $7,439 $ 226 $128 $7,793

Intersegment RevenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 4 4 Ì Ì 4

Segment Operating Income ÏÏ 541 110 651 69 1 721

AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,923 611 13,534 1,020 Ì 14,554

Depreciation Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 579 32 611 9 Ì 620

Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 974 47 1,021 9 12 1,042

2002

Revenues from External
CustomersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,003 $1,156 $7,159 $ 235 $758 $8,152

Intersegment RevenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 24 24 1 Ì 25

Segment Operating Income ÏÏ 854 141 995 69 38 1,102

AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,738 537 13,275 959 309 14,543

Depreciation Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 576 29 605 9 17 631

Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 981 29 1,010 11 19 1,040

2001

Revenues from External
CustomersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $6,082 $1,092 $7,174 $ 234 $681 $8,089

Intersegment RevenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 20 20 2 Ì 22

Segment Operating Income ÏÏ 803 104 907 71 32 1,010

AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,948 432 13,380 880 504 14,764

Depreciation Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 550 31 581 8 24 613

Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 848 12 860 19 11 890
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(1) Prior to the conveyance of CSX Lines, it was a segment of CSX and was presented with
international terminals on a combined basis, as the Marine Services operations of the
Company. Results for CSX Lines are now presented in the other column.

A reconciliation of the totals reported for the business segments to the applicable line items
in the consolidated Ñnancial statements is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Revenues:

Total External Revenues for Business Segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7,793 $8,152 $8,089

Intersegment Revenues for Business Segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4 25 22

Elimination of Intersegment Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (4) (25) (22)

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 21

Total Consolidated Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7,793 $8,152 $8,110

Operating Income:

Total Operating Income for Business Segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 721 $1,102 $1,010

ReclassiÑcation of Minority Interest Expense for
International Terminals Segment(a)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 36 39 36

Unallocated Corporate ExpensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (23) (14) (29)

New Orleans Litigation Provision ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (60)

Additional Loss on Sale (See Note 13)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (108) Ì Ì

Total Consolidated Operating Income (Loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 626 $1,127 $ 957

Fiscal Years Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in Millions)

Assets:

Assets for Business Segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $14,554 $14,543 $14,764

Investment in Conrail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,678 4,653 4,655

Elimination of Intersegment ReceivablesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (17) (128) (185)

Non-segment Assets(b) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,545 1,883 1,567

Total Consolidated Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $21,760 $20,951 $20,801

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation for Business Segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 620 631 613

Non-segment Depreciation(b)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9 18 9

Total Consolidated Depreciation Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 629 $ 649 $ 622

Property Additions

Property Additions for Business Segments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,042 1,040 890

Non-segment Property Additions(b) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 17 40 40

Total Consolidated Property AdditionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1,059 $ 1,080 $ 930
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(a) International Terminals minority interest expense which is reclassiÑed to other income in
consolidation.

(b) Non-segment assets include corporate cash and cash equivalents and assets of non-
transportation businesses and discontinued operations. Non-segment depreciation and
property additions are primarily attributable to non-transportation businesses and discontin-
ued operations. Principal non-transportation businesses include real estate and resort
operations.

Revenues in the United States comprise more than 95% of total consolidated revenues.
Approximately 95% of the Company's long-lived assets are located in the United States. The
Company does not have a single external customer that represents 10% or more of its
consolidated revenue.

Note 20. Summarized Consolidating Financial Data Ì CSX Vessel Leasing (formerly Sea-
Land)

During 1987, Sea-Land entered into agreements to sell and lease back, by charter, three new
U.S.-built , U.S.-Öag, D-7 class container ships. The ships were not included in the sale of
international liner assets to Maersk in December 1999 and the related debt remains an obligation
of CSX Lines. CSX has guaranteed the obligations of CSX Lines pursuant to the related charters
which, along with the container ships, serve as collateral for debt securities registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). As noted in Note 3 of the Annual Report,
Divestitures, CSX agreed to convey certain assets of CSX Lines to Horizon Lines LLC. These
obligations are not part of this transaction and another CSX entity became the obligor in 2003. In
accordance with SEC disclosure requirements, consolidating summarized Ñnancial information for
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the parent and obligor are as follows (certain prior year amounts have been reclassiÑed to
conform to the 2003 presentation):

Consolidating Income Statement

CSX CSX Vessel
Fiscal Year Ended December 26, 2003 Corporation Leasing Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating RevenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $ Ì $7,866 $ (73) $7,793

Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (152) Ì 7,383 (64) 7,167

Operating Income (Loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 152 Ì 483 (9) 626

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries ÏÏ 414 Ì Ì (414) Ì

Other Income (Expense) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (23) 4 100 (24) 57

Interest ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 373 Ì 78 (33) 418

Earnings Before Income Taxes and
Cumulative EÅect of Accounting
Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 170 4 505 (414) 265

Income Tax Expense (BeneÑt) ÏÏÏÏ (76) Ì 152 Ì 76

Earnings Before Cumulative EÅect
of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 246 4 353 (414) 189

Cumulative EÅect of Accounting
Change Ì Net of Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 57 Ì 57

Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 246 $ 4 $ 410 $(414) $ 246

CSX
Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 2002 Corporation CSX Lines Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating RevenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $758 $7,485 $ (91) $8,152

Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (241) 720 6,628 (82) 7,025

Operating Income(Loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 241 38 857 (9) 1,127

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries ÏÏ 549 Ì Ì (549) Ì

Other Income (Expense) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (24) 5 103 (43) 41

Interest ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 394 7 96 (52) 445

Earnings Before Income TaxesÏÏÏÏÏ 372 36 864 (549) 723

Income Tax Expense (BeneÑt) ÏÏÏÏ (52) 14 294 Ì 256

Earnings Before Cumulative EÅect
of Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 424 22 570 (549) 467

Cumulative EÅect on Prior Years of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (43) Ì (43)

Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 424 $ 22 $ 527 $(549) $ 424
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Consolidating Income Statement

CSX
Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2001 Corporation CSX Lines Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating RevenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $681 $7,862 $(433) $8,110

Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (199) 649 7,128 (425) 7,153

Operating Income(Loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 199 32 734 (8) 957

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries ÏÏ 480 Ì Ì (480) Ì

Other Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (11) 9 88 (77) 9

Interest ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 469 13 121 (85) 518

Earnings before Income Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏ 199 28 701 (480) 448

Income Tax Expense (BeneÑt) ÏÏÏÏ (94) 11 238 Ì 155

Net Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 293 $ 17 $ 463 $(480) $ 293

85



CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

CSX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

CSX
CSX Vessel

December 26, 2003 Corporation Leasing Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term
Investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1,210 $ 45 $ (887) $ Ì $ 368

Accounts Receivable Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45 15 1,126 (23) 1,163
Materials and Supplies ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 170 Ì 170
Deferred Income TaxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 136 Ì 136
Other Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6 Ì 197 (137) 66

Total Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,261 60 742 (160) 1,903
Properties ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25 Ì 19,242 Ì 19,267
Accumulated Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24 Ì 5,513 Ì 5,537

Properties Ì NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1 Ì 13,729 Ì 13,730
Investment in Conrail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 331 Ì 4,347 Ì 4,678
AÇliates and Other CompaniesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,638 Ì 944 (13,067) 515
Investment in Consolidated Subsidiaries ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì
Other Long-term Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,299 Ì 269 (634) 934

Total Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $15,530 $ 60 $20,031 $(13,861) $21,760

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 88 $ Ì $ 761 $ (22) $ 827
Labor and Fringe BeneÑts Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6 Ì 391 Ì 397
Payable to AÇliates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 137 (137) Ì
Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏ 5 Ì 275 Ì 280
Current Maturities of Long-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 300 Ì 126 Ì 426
Short-term DebtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 2 Ì 2
Income and Other Taxes PayableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,464 Ì (1,340) (1) 123
Other Current LiabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21 20 114 Ì 155

Total Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,884 20 466 (160) 2,210
Long-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,085 Ì 801 Ì 6,886
Deferred Income TaxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (12) Ì 3,764 Ì 3,752
Casualty, Environmental and Other reservesÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 836 Ì 836
Long-term Payable to AÇliates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 396 Ì 128 (524) Ì
Other Long-term Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 748 36 957 (118) 1,623

Total LiabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,101 56 6,952 (802) 15,307

Shareholder's Equity
Preferred Stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 396 (396) Ì
Common Stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 215 Ì 209 (209) 215
Other Capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,579 1 8,052 (8,053) 1,579
Retained EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,957 3 4,398 (4,401) 4,957
Accumulated Other Comprehensive LossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (322) Ì 24 Ì (298)

Total Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,429 4 13,079 (13,059) 6,453

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' EquityÏÏÏÏ $15,530 $ 60 $20,031 $(13,861) $21,760
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CSX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

CSX CSX
December 27, 2002 Corporation Lines Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents & Short-term Investments $ 379 $ 37 $ (152) $ Ì $ 264
Accounts Receivable Ì Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 43 Ì 902 (146) 799
Materials and Supplies ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 180 Ì 180
Deferred Income Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 128 Ì 128
Assets Held for Disposition ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 263 Ì Ì 263
Other Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5 Ì 287 (137) 155

Total Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 427 300 1,345 (283) 1,789
Properties ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33 11 18,516 Ì 18,560
Accumulated Depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (29) (2) (5,243) Ì (5,274)
Properties, NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4 9 13,273 Ì 13,286
Investment in Conrail ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 342 Ì 4,311 Ì 4,653
AÇliates and Other CompaniesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 414 (33) 381
Investment in Consolidated SubsidiariesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,761 Ì 396 (13,157) Ì
Other Long-term Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,192 Ì 273 (623) 842

Total Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $14,726 $309 $20,012 $(14,096) $20,951

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 77 $ 20 $ 848 $ (143) $ 802
Labor and Fringe BeneÑts Payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 49 11 397 Ì 457
Payable to AÇliates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 137 (137) Ì
Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1 Ì 245 Ì 246
Current Maturities of Long-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 150 Ì 241 Ì 391
Short-term DebtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 140 Ì 3 Ì 143
Liabilities Held for Disposition ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 104 Ì Ì 104
Income and Other Taxes PayableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,458 9 (1,284) (39) 144
Other Current LiabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28 4 99 36 167

Total Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,903 148 686 (283) 2,454
Casualty, Environmental and Other Reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4 1 599 Ì 604
Long-term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,510 Ì 1,009 Ì 6,519
Deferred Income Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 3 3,564 Ì 3,567
Long Term Payable to AÇliates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 396 Ì 148 (544) Ì
Other Long-term Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 685 49 925 (93) 1,566

Total Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,498 201 6,931 (920) 14,710

Shareholders' Equity
Preferred Stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 396 (396) Ì
Common Stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 215 Ì 209 (209) 215
Other Capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,547 73 8,238 (8,311) 1,547
Retained EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,797 35 4,225 (4,260) 4,797
Accumulated Other Comprehensive LossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (331) Ì 13 Ì (318)

Total Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,228 108 13,081 (13,176) 6,241

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' EquityÏÏÏÏÏÏ $14,726 $309 $20,012 $(14,096) $20,951
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Consolidating Cash Flow Statements
Fiscal Year Ended December 26, 2003

CSX CSX Vessel
Corporation Leasing Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating Activities

Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities ÏÏÏÏ $ 41 $Ì $ 1,004 $(241) $ 804

Investing Activities

Property Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (1,059) Ì (1,059)

Net Proceeds from Divestitures 214 Ì Ì Ì 214

Short-term InvestmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 69 Ì (1) Ì 68

Other Investing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29 Ì 220 (279) (30)

Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Investing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏ 312 Ì (840) (279) (807)

Financing Activities

Short-term Debt-NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (140) Ì (1) Ì (141)

Long-term Debt Issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 919 Ì Ì Ì 919

Long-term Debt RepaidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (175) Ì (325) Ì (500)

Cash Dividends Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (86) Ì (239) 239 (86)

Other Financing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29 45 (375) 281 (20)

Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Financing Activities ÏÏÏÏ 547 45 (940) 520 172

Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents 900 45 (776) Ì 169

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Beginning of PeriodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 263 Ì (136) Ì 127

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
End of PeriodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,163 $45 $ (912) $ Ì $ 296
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Consolidating Cash Flow Statements
Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 2002

CSX
Corporation CSX Lines Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating Activities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 288 $ 15 $ 1,041 $(217) $ 1,127

Investing Activities

Property Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (4) (19) (1,057) Ì (1,080)

Short-term Investments-NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 135 (26) 241 Ì 350

Other Investing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (10) 14 (29) (20) (45)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 121 (31) (845) (20) (775)

Financing Activities

Short-term Debt-Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 140 Ì Ì Ì 140

Long-term Debt Issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 746 Ì 2 Ì 748

Long-term Debt RepaidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (950) Ì (209) Ì (1,159)

Dividends PaidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (86) Ì (209) 209 (86)

Other Financing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 32 Ì (65) 28 (5)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Financing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (118) Ì (481) 237 (362)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash EquivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 291 (16) (285) Ì (10)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Beginning of PeriodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 156 Ì (19) Ì 137

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End
of PeriodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 447 $(16) $ (304) $ Ì $ 127
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Consolidating Cash Flow Statements
Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2001

CSX
Corporation CSX Lines Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating Activities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (85) $80 $ 1,090 $ (258) $ 827

Investing Activities

Property Additions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (11) (919) Ì (930)

Short-term Investments-NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 169 Ì (220) Ì (51)

Other Investing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (191) 1 1,369 (1,163) 16

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (22) (10) 230 (1,163) (965)

Financing Activities

Short-term Debt-Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (524) Ì Ì Ì (524)

Long-term Debt Issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 962 Ì Ì Ì 962

Long-term Debt RepaidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (60) (21) (185) Ì (266)

Cash Dividends Paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (174) Ì (222) 225 (171)

Common Stock Issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26 Ì (160) 134 Ì

Common Stock RetiredÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1) Ì 1 Ì Ì

Other Financing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (13) (49) (986) 1,062 14

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Financing ActivitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 216 (70) (1,552) 1,421 15

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash EquivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 109 Ì (232) Ì (123)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Beginning of PeriodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 47 Ì 213 Ì 260

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End
of PeriodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 156 $Ì $ (19) $ Ì $ 137

90



CSX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Note 21. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)(a)

2003 2002Year
Quarter 1st(b) 2nd 3rd(c) 4th(d) 1st(e) 2nd 3rd 4th

(Dollars in Millions,
Except Per Share Amounts)

Operating RevenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,016 $1,942 $1,882 $1,953 $1,964 $2,073 $2,055 $2,060

Operating ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,839 1,657 1,980 1,691 1,752 1,752 1,779 1,742

Operating Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 177 285 (98) 262 212 321 276 318

Other Income (Expense) ÏÏÏÏÏ (10) 19 21 27 9 4 28 Ì

Interest Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 103 105 103 107 114 116 108 107

Earnings Before Income Taxes
And Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 64 199 (180) 182 107 209 196 211

Income Tax Expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22 72 (77) 59 39 74 69 74

Earnings before Cumulative
EÅect of Accounting Change 42 127 (103) 123 68 135 127 137

Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change Ì Net of
Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 57 Ì Ì Ì (43) Ì Ì Ì

Net EarningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 99 $ 127 $ (103) $ 123 $ 25 $ 135 $ 127 $ 137

Per Common Share

Earnings Per Share:

Before Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.20 $ 0.59 $(0.48) $ 0.57 $ 0.32 $ 0.63 $ 0.60 $ 0.64

Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.26 Ì Ì Ì (0.20) Ì Ì Ì

Including Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.46 $ 0.59 $(0.48) $ 0.57 $ 0.12 $ 0.63 $ 0.60 $ 0.64

Earnings Per Share, Assuming
Dilution:

Before Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.20 $ 0.59 $(0.48) $ 0.57 $ 0.32 $ 0.63 $ 0.60 $ 0.64

Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.26 Ì Ì Ì (0.20) Ì Ì Ì

Including Cumulative EÅect of
Accounting Change ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.46 $ 0.59 $(0.48) $ 0.57 $ 0.12 $ 0.63 $ 0.60 $ 0.64

Dividend Per ShareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.10

Market Price

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $30.85 $33.16 $32.99 $36.29 $41.40 $37.90 $36.77 $30.12

LowÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $25.50 $28.20 $28.92 $29.07 $34.81 $32.41 $25.75 $25.09

(a) Periods presented are 13 week quarters.
(b) Included in the Ñrst quarter of 2003 is a credit of $57 million after tax, 26 cents per share,

resulting from the cumulative eÅect of an accounting change for asset retirement
obligations.

(c) Included in the third quarter of 2003 is a charge of $232 million reÖecting a change in
estimate of casualty reserves. Also included in the third quarter of 2003 is a charge of
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$108 million to account for the Company entering into two settlement agreements with
Maersk that resolved all material disputes between the two companies arising out of the
1999 sale of international container shipping assets to Maersk.

(d) Included in the fourth quarter of 2003 is a charge of $34 million representing the initial
charge for separation expenses related to the management restructuring announced in
November 2003. Also, in the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company recorded a credit of
$22 million related to revised estimates for amounts to be paid to individuals under
separation plans initially recorded in 1991 and 1992.

(e) Included in the Ñrst quarter of 2002 is a charge of $83 million ($43 million after tax and
minority interest) to write-down indeÑnite lived intangible assets, resulting from the
cumulative eÅect of an accounting change.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of December 26, 2003, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's
Chief Executive OÇcer (CEO) and the Chief Financial OÇcer (CFO), management has evaluated
the eÅectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures were eÅective as of December 26, 2003. There were no
changes in the Company's internal controls over Ñnancial reporting during the fourth quarter of
2003 that have materially aÅected or are reasonably likely to materially aÅect the Company's
internal control over Ñnancial reporting.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

In accordance with Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement, except for the information regarding the
executive oÇcers of the Registrant which is included in Part I of this report under the caption
""Executive OÇcers of the Registrant.''

Item 11. Executive Compensation

In accordance with Instruction G (3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management

In accordance with Instruction G (3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In accordance with Instruction G (3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

In accordance with Instruction G (3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)(1) Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 39.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The information required by Rule 3-09 is included in Note 2 to the consolidated Ñnancial
statements, ""Investment in and Integrated Rail Operations with Conrail'' and the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of Conrail Inc., Ñled herewith as exhibit 99.3. The information
required by Schedule II is included in Note 9 to the consolidated Ñnancial statements, ""Casualty,
Environmental and Other Reserves.'' All other Ñnancial statement schedules are not applicable.

(3) Exhibits

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q dated October 10,
2003)

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, amended as of May 7, 2003 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant's Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2003).

4.1(a) Indenture, dated August 1, 1990, between the Registrant and The Chase Manhattan
Bank, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Form SE,
dated September 7, 1990, Ñled with the Commission)

4.1(b) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 15, 1991, between the Registrant and
The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4(c) to the Registrant's Form SE, dated May 28, 1992, Ñled with the
Commission)

4.1(c) Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 6, 1997, between the Registrant
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration
No. 333-28523) Ñled with the Commission on June 5, 1997)

4.1(d) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 22, 1998, between the Registrant and
The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the Commission
on May 12, 1998)

4.1(e) Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 30, 2001, between the Registrant
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q Ñled with the Commission on
November 7, 2001)

4.1(f) Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 27, 2003 between the Registrant
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the registrant's Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the Commission on
October 27, 2003).

Pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(4)(iii), instruments that deÑne the rights of
holders of the Registrant's long-term debt securities, where the long-term debt securities
authorized under each such instrument do not exceed 10% of the Registrant's total assets, have
been omitted and will be furnished to the Commission upon request.

10.1* CSX Stock Plan for Directors (as amended through January 1, 2004)**

10.2* Corporate Director Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended through January 1,
2004)**
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10.3* CSX Corporation 2002 Corporate Director Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended
through January 1, 2004)**

10.4 CSX Directors' Charitable Gift Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 4, 1994)**

10.5* CSX Directors' Matching Gift Plan (as amended through December 31, 2003)**

10.6 Employment and Consulting Agreement with J. W. Snow (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated November 7,
2001)**

10.7 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with J. W. Snow (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated November 7,
2001)**

10.8 Stock Option Agreement with J. W. Snow (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated November 7, 2001)**

10.9 Agreement with J. W. Snow (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 4, 1994)**

10.10 Employment Agreement with J. W. Snow (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March, 7,
2000)**

10.11 Special Employment Agreement with M. J. Ward (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated November 7, 2001)**

10.12 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with M. J. Ward (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated November 7,
2001)**

10.13 Railroad Retirement BeneÑts Agreement with M. J. Ward (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated
February 26, 2003)**

10.14 Form of Agreement with R.J. Grassi (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6
to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 3, 1995)**

10.15 Form of Amendment to Agreement with R.J. Grassi (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 14,
1997)**

10.16 Supplement to Agreement with R.J. Grassi (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 4,
2002)**

10.17 Amendment to Supplement to Agreement with R.J. Grassi (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated
February 26, 2003)**

10.18 Employment Agreement with O. Munoz (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2003)**

10.19 Restricted Stock Award Agreement with O. Munoz (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30,
2003)**

10.20 Retirement and Consulting Agreement with Paul R. Goodwin (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q dated April 30,
2003)**

10.21 Form of Employment Agreement with P. R. Goodwin and M. J. Ward (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated
February 28, 2001)**

10.22 Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated March 4, 2002)**
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10.24* 1987 Long-Term Performance Stock Plan, as Amended and Restated eÅective
April 25, 1996 (as amended through February 7, 2003)**

10.25* Deferred Compensation Program for Executives of CSX Corporation and AÇliated
Companies (as amended through January 1, 1998)**

10.26* 2002 Deferred Compensation Plan of CSX Corporation and AÇliated Corporations
(as amended through February 7, 2003)**

10.27* Supplementary Savings Plan and Incentive Award Deferral Plan for Eligible
Executives of CSX Corporation and AÇliated Companies (as Amended through
February 7, 2003)**

10.28 Special Retirement Plan of CSX Corporation and AÇliated Companies, as Amended
through February 14, 2001(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated March 4, 2002)**

10.29 Supplemental Retirement BeneÑt Plan of CSX Corporation and AÇliated Companies,
as Amended through February 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24
of the Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated March 4, 2002)**

10.30 Senior Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Appendix B to the Registrant's DeÑnitive Proxy Statement dated March 17, 2000)**

10.31 CSX Omnibus Incentive Plan, as Amended through February 14, 2001 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Registrant's Report on Form 10-K dated March 4,
2002)**

10.32 1990 Stock Award Plan as Amended and Restated EÅective February 14, 1996 (as
Amended through September 8, 1999) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to
the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 7, 2000)**

10.34 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the
Commission on June 4, 1997)

10.35 Transaction Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the Commission on July 8, 1997)

10.36 Amendment No. 1, dated as of August 22, 1998, to the Transaction Agreement, dated
as of June 10, 1997, by and among CSX Corporation, CSX Transportation, Inc.,
Norfolk Southern Corporation, Norfolk Southern Railway Company, Conrail Inc.,
Consolidated Rail Corporation, and CRR Holdings LLC. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with
the Commission on June 11, 1999)

10.37 Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 1, 1999, to the Transaction Agreement, dated
June 10, 1997, by and among CSX Corporation, CSX Transportation, Inc., Norfolk
Southern Corporation, Norfolk Southern Railway Company, Conrail Inc., Consolidated
Rail Corporation, and CRR Holdings, LLC. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the
Commission on June 11, 1999)

10.38 Amendment No. 3, dated as of August 1, 2000, to the Transaction Agreement by and
among CSX Corporation, CSX Transportation, Inc., Norfolk Southern Corporation,
Norfolk Southern Railway Company, Conrail Inc., Consolidated Rail Corporation, and
CRR Holdings LLC. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 1, 2001)

10.39 Operating Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1999, by and between New York Central
Lines LLC and CSX Transportation, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the
Commission on June 11, 1999)
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10.40 Shared Assets Area Operating Agreement for North Jersey, dated as of June 1,
1999, by and among Consolidated Rail Corporation, CSX Transportation, Inc., and
Norfolk Southern Railway Company, with exhibit thereto (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with
the Commission on June 11, 1999)

10.41 Shared Assets Area Operating Agreement for Southern Jersey/Philadelphia, dated as
of June 1, 1999, by and among Consolidated Rail Corporation, CSX Transportation,
Inc., and Norfolk Southern Railway Company, with exhibit thereto (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K
Ñled with the Commission on June 11, 1999)

10.42 Shared Assets Area Operating Agreement for Detroit, dated as of June 1, 1999, by
and among Consolidated Rail Corporation, CSX Transportation, Inc., and Norfolk
Southern Railway Corporation, with exhibit thereto (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the
Commission on June 11, 1999)

10.43 Monongahela Usage Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1999, by and among CSX
Transportation, Inc., Norfolk Southern Railway Company, Pennsylvania Lines LLC,
and New York Central Lines LLC, with exhibit thereto (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with
the Commission on June 11, 1999)

10.44 364-Day, $300 Million Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of May 17, 2002

10.45* Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of June 8, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with the Commission
on October 29, 2001) ®this Agreement was amended by First Amendment, dated as
of May 17, 2002 and by Second Amendment, dated as of May 14, 2003©

10.46 364-Day $345 Million Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of May 14, 2003
(incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K Ñled with
the Commission on August 1, 2003)

12* Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

14* Code of Ethics

21* Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

23.2* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP and KPMG LLP, Independent Auditors

24* Powers of Attorney

31.1* Principal Executive OÇcer CertiÑcation Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Principal Financial OÇcer CertiÑcation Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.1* Principal Executive OÇcer CertiÑcation Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Principal Financial OÇcer CertiÑcation Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.3* Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Conrail Inc. for the Years Ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

* Filed herewith

** Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement
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(b) Reports on Form 8-K

‚ Form 8-K Ñled on October 2, 2003, to report as an ""Item 5: Other Item'' the issuance of a
press release announcing its intention to satisfy in cash its obligation to purchase its Zero
Coupon Convertible Debentures due October 30, 2021.

‚ Form 8-K Ñled on October 10, 2003, to report as an ""Item 5: Other Item'' Board of Director
approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Rights Agreement between the Company and Harris
Trust and Savings Bank, to change the Ñnal expiration date of the Rights Agreement from
June 8, 2008 to October 10, 2003 and to eÅectively cause the expiration of the preferred
stock purchase rights granted under the Rights Agreement on October 10, 2003.

‚ Form 8-K Ñled on October 27, 2003, to report as an ""Item 5: Other Item'' the
announcement that it would make a one-time cash payment of $23.00 per $1,000
aggregate principal amount at maturity to holders of its Zero Coupon Convertible
Debentures due 2021 (the ""Debentures'') who do not require the Corporation to purchase
their Debentures on October 30, 2003 and were holders of record as of the close of
business on October 31, 2003. In addition, the Corporation announced that eÅective as of
October 27, 2003, it amended the terms of the Debentures to permit holders of the
Debentures, at their option, to cause the Corporation to purchase the Debentures on
October 30, 2005, at their accreted value of $852.48 per $1,000 principal amount at
maturity.

‚ Form 8-K Ñled on November 10, 2003, to report as an ""Item 5: Other Item'' the issuance
of a press release announcing streamlining of management structure.

‚ Form 8-K Ñled on November 14, 2003, to report as an ""Item 5: Other Item'' entering into
an Underwriting Agreement for the public oÅering of $200,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of the Company's 5.30% Notes due 2014 and $200,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of the Company's 2.75% Notes due 2006.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

CSX CORPORATION

(Registrant)

By: /s/ CAROLYN T. SIZEMORE

Carolyn T. Sizemore
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting OÇcer)

Dated: March 10, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated
on March 10, 2004.

Signature Title

* Chairman of the Board, President, Chief
Executive OÇcer and DirectorMichael J. Ward
(Principal Executive OÇcer)

* Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial OÇcerOscar Munoz

(Principal Financial OÇcer)

/s/ ELIZABETH E. BAILEY Director

Elizabeth E. Bailey

/s/ ROBERT L. BURRUS JR. Director

Robert L. Burrus Jr.

/s/ BRUCE C. GOTTWALD Director

Bruce C. Gottwald

/s/ EDWARD J. KELLY III Director

Edward J. Kelly III

/s/ ROBERT D. KUNISCH Director

Robert D. Kunisch

/s/ SOUTHWOOD J. MORCOTT Director

Southwood J. Morcott
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Signature Title

/s/ DAVID M. RATCLIFFE Director

David M. RatcliÅe

/s/ CHARLES E. RICE Director

Charles E. Rice

/s/ WILLIAM C. RICHARDSON Director

William C. Richardson

/s/ FRANK S. ROYAL M.D. Director

Frank S. Royal M.D.

/s/ DONALD J. SHEPARD Director

Donald J. Shepard

*By: /s/ ELLEN M. FITZSIMMONS

Ellen M. Fitzsimmons
Attorney-in-Fact
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DIRECTORS + OFFICERS

Key committees of the Board: 1-Executive, 2-Audit, 3-Compensation, 4-Finance, 5-Governance, 6-Public Affairs

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Elizabeth E. Bailey (1,2,6)

John C. Hower Professor of Business 
and Public Policy, 
The Wharton School, 
University of Pennsylvania, 
Philadelphia, Pa.

Robert L. Burrus Jr. (1 ,4 ,5)

Partner and Chairman,
McGuireWoods LLP, 
Richmond, Va.

Bruce C. Gottwald (2,6)

Chairman, Ethyl Corporation, 
Richmond, Va.

Edward J. Kelly III (1 ,2 ,4)

Chairman, President and CEO,
Mercantile Bankshares Corporation, 
Baltimore, Md.

Robert D. Kunisch (1,3,5)

Special Partner ABS Capital Partners Inc.
and Adviser and Former Vice Chairman,
Cendant Corporation, Hunt Valley, Md.

Southwood J. Morcott (4 ,6)

Retired Chairman and CEO,
Dana Corporation, Toledo, Ohio

David M. Ratcliffe (5,6)

CEO, Georgia Power Company and 
President-Elect and Executive Vice President,
Southern Company, Atlanta, Ga.

Charles E. Rice (4,6)

Chairman, Mayport Venture Partners LLC
and Retired Vice Chairman Corporate
Development, Bank of America, 
Jacksonville, Fla.

William C. Richardson (2,3)

President and CEO,
W.K. Kellogg Foundation, 
Battle Creek, Mich.

Frank S. Royal, M.D. (1,3,5)

Physician and Health Care Authority,
Richmond, Va.

Donald J. Shepard (3,4)

Chairman, Executive Board and CEO, 
Aegon N.V.,
Baltimore, Md.

Michael Ward (1)

Chairman, President and CEO,
CSX Corporation
Jacksonville, Fla.

CORPORATE OFFICERS

Michael Ward* 
Chairman, President and CEO 

Oscar Munoz* 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer

Clarence W. Gooden* 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Commercial Officer

Ellen M. Fitzsimmons* 
Senior Vice President-Law and Public 
Affairs and Corporate Secretary 

Robert J. Haulter*  
Senior Vice President-Human Resources 
and Labor Relations 

Jeffrey C. McCutcheon 
Senior Vice President-Corporate 
Human Resources

David A. Boor 
Vice President-Tax and Treasury 

Michael A. Hollingsworth 
Vice President-Corporate Communications 
and Public Affairs 

Lester M. Passa 
Vice President-Strategic Planning 
and Process Management

Michael J. Ruehling 
Vice President-Legislative Affairs

Peter J. Shudtz 
Vice President-Regulatory Affairs and
Washington Counsel

Carolyn T. Sizemore* 
Vice President and Controller 

* Executive officers of the corporation. 

UNIT OFFICERS

CSX TRANSPORTATION INC.  

Michael Ward
President and CEO

Tony L. Ingram 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Operating Officer 

CSX INTERMODAL INC. 

Val T. Noel 
President 

CSX WORLD TERMINALS LLC 

Andrew B. Fogarty*
President and CEO 

CSX TECHNOLOGY INC. 

Charles J. 0. Wodehouse Jr. 
President 

CSX REAL PROPERTY INC.

Steve A. Crosby
President

THE GREENBRIER 

Ted J. Kleisner 
President and Managing Director 

* Executive officers of the corporation. 

CSX wishes to express its deep appreciation to Director Bruce C. Gottwald for his 
counsel and many contributions. He will be retiring from the Board of Directors in 2004.



WITHOUT DEMAND, 
CAPACITY IS A
LIABILITY...
DEMAND FOR RAIL
IS CHANGING AND 
GREAT SERVICE 
IS THE KEY. 

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

CSX Corporation

500 Water Street, 15th Floor

Jacksonville, FL 32202

(904) 359-3200

www.csx.com

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR 

AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT

Computershare Investor Services LLC

Attn: Shareholder Communications

2 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60602

Most questions regarding your account may be answered by

contacting the automated Computershare Investor Services

Help Line at (800) 521-5571 from your touch-tone phone, 24

hours a day, 7 days a week. Service representatives are 

available on the Help Line from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Central Time,

Monday through Friday. You may also write to Computershare

at the address listed above or on the internet at 

www.computershare.com/contactus.

STOCK LISTING 

CSX’s common stock is listed on the New York, London and

Swiss exchanges and trades with unlisted privileges on the

Midwest, Boston, Cincinnati, Pacific and Philadelphia stock

exchanges. The official trading symbol is “CSX.” 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Ernst & Young LLP

Jacksonville, FL

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

May 5, 2004 at 10 a.m. EST

Times-Union Center for the Performing Arts

300 West Water Street 

Jacksonville, FL 32202

INVESTOR INQUIRIES

To receive copies of reports filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission, recent press releases, quarterly 

and annual report and additional information about CSX

Corporation, visit our website at www.csx.com. Institutional

investors and financial analysts with questions can contact

Investor Relations at (904) 359-4812. Media and public 

relations inquiries should be directed to CSX Corporate

Communications at (904) 366-2949. 

DIRECT STOCK PURCHASE AND DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT

CSX provides dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plans

for shareholders and potential shareholders as a convenient

method of acquiring CSX shares through direct purchase, 

dividend reinvestment and optional cash payments. 

CSXDirectInvestSM permits the purchase and sale of shares

directly though Computershare, our transfer agent. Through

this plan, no service charges or brokerage commissions apply

to share purchases, and sales can be made with minimal

charges and commissions. Initial investment for a non-share-

holder is $500 plus a $10 one-time enrollment fee. You do 

not need to own shares of CSX stock to enroll in this plan.

However, if you are a current shareholder, the initial invest-

ment and enrollment fee are waived. Other benefits of

CSXDirectInvestSM include the ability to: 

- Reinvest dividends automatically in CSX common stock 

without payment of any brokerage commissions or service

charges, or you may receive dividend payments on some 

or all of your shares. 

- Make optional cash investments with as little as $50 per

month, or up to $10,000 per month, without any charges

or commissions. 

- Make gifts of CSX shares to others through the plan.

To obtain a prospectus or other information regarding

CSXDirectInvestSM, please call or write the Computershare

Dividend Reinvestment Department at the phone number or

address below. Or, if you prefer, please visit the web site at

www.computershare.com. 

Computershare Investor Services LLC

CSXDirectInvestSM

2 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60602 

(800) 521-5571

SHAREHOLDER HOUSE PARTIES AT THE GREENBRIER

Throughout the year, The Greenbrier offers Shareholder House

Parties featuring discounted rates and special activities. The

2004 dates are: April 8-11 (Easter), July 2-5 (Independence

Day) and September 3-6 (Labor Day). For information, contact

Maryann Sanford, Reservations Department, The Greenbrier,

300 W. Main Street, White Sulphur Springs, WV 24986, or

phone toll-free (800) 624-6070.

The Greenbrier also offers shareholders a 10 percent discount

on its Modified American Plan rates, applicable to one visit per

year. Reservations are on a space-available basis and do not

apply during CSX House Parties or when a shareholder attends

a conference.
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CSX CORPORATION 2003 ANNUAL REPORT

CREATING 
DEMANDCSX CORPORATION

500 Water Street, 15th Floor

Jacksonville, FL 32202 

(904) 359-3200
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